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Via E-mail and Overnight Delivery

Apnl 15,2004
Stephen J. Johnson Randy L. Rohrbaugh
Deputy Commissioner Deputy Comrmnissioner
Office of Corporate and Financial Regulatdon Office of Insurance Product Regulation
1345 Strawberry Square and Market Enforcernent
Hardsburg, PA 17120 1311 Strawberry Square

. Hardsburg, PA 17120
Re: Pennsylvania Bulletin Notice 2004-01

Dear Deputy Johnson and Deputy Rohrbaugh:

In Pennsylvania Bulletin Notice 2004-01 (the “Notice”), Hospital Service Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania, d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”)
was requested by the Pennsylvania Insurance Department (the “Department”) to submit
various information to the Department  The information requested by the Notice was
subsequently amended by representations proffered by the Department before Judge
Pellegrini in Capital Blue Cross v. Koken, No. 172 M.D. 204 (Commonwealth Court).

As a resnlt of the Notice and the Department’s subsequent representations, BCNEPA
understands that the Department has requested the following information:

(2) the claims reserve and related unpaid liabilities, and capital and surplus levels, for BCNEPA
and its insurance company subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003;

(b) an identification of the Risk Based Capital (‘RBC”) range that BCNEPA believes is
appropriate for its operations (“Selected RBC Range”), and an explanaton for that
Selected RBC Range;

(¢) an identification of BCNEPA' charitable contributions in 2002 and 2003, and those
planned for 2004 through 2006; and

(d) a proposed business plan describing how BCNEPA intends to manage its surplus.
Attached hereto is information provided by "BCNEPA relative to those matters
(“Submission”). For ease of reference, attached hereto as Attachment 1 is a listing of the
documents that are included in this Submission.

The Submission contains a2 vast amount of confidential, proprietary and trade secret

information (collectvely “Confidential Information”). As such, attached hereto is a “prvilege
log” which identifies the documents for which BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege,
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attached hereto. BCNEPA inlends 10 1ake all steps necessary and appropriate to ensure that
its Confidential Information is not improperly released into the public domain. BCNEPA has
not consented, 2and docs not hereby consent, to the publication, dissemination, circulation,
release, or disclosure of the Confidential Information subsnitted herewith. BCNEPA hereby
advises that the Department may not rely upon any oral consent to any such publication,
dissemination, circulation, or release by any person for or on behalf of BCNEPA. Any such
consent will be issued by BCNEPA only in writing executed by a duly anthorized officer of
BCNEPA.  Furthermoré, BCNEPAs assertion of confidentiality is consistent with the .
Commonwealth Court’s Order dated March 23, 2004 in Capital Blue Cross v. Koken, holding
that “a preliminary injunction is pranted to the extent. that a/ plans submitted will be kept
confidential until further order of court” [emphasis added].

Finally, please note that by this Submission, BCNEPA does not concede that the Department
has authonty to mandate that BCNEPA submit an application for approval of BCNEPA’s
surplus; to require that BCNEPA adopt a Selected RBC Range; to approve BCNEPAs
current RBC ratio or Selected RBC Range; 10 use RBC stindards for a purpose other than
mezsuting the minimum amount of capital approprdate for the support of an insurer’s overall
business operations; to establish 2 maximum permissible RBC ratio; to establish a target range
of RBC ratios or force BCNEPA to operate within such a tatget RBC range; to mandate,
direct or approve BCNEPA’s busincss plans and strategies, including but not limited to the
manncr in which BCNEPA intends 10 urilize its surplus in the exercise of its sound business
judgment; 10 mandate the distribution of BCNEPA’s alleged “cxcess surplus” to plan
participants, the Commonwealth’s underinsured and vninsured citizens, or any other person;
to regulate any of BCNEPAs non-insurance company affiliates; to approve BCNEPA’s
surplus; to solicit public comments on BCNEPA’s current ox anticipated RBC levcls, charitable
contributions or surplus management or business plans; or otherwise seek to iopose
requirements or take any other action which is outside of the authority pgranted to the
Department by the General Assembly under enacted statutes. BCNEPA reserves all of its
nights to contest or challenge the issuance of the January 17, 2004 Notice and all matters
ansing thercunder or related thereto, or under the January 5, 2004 Letter. '

Nevertheless, as with BCNEPA’s response 1o the Department of requested information on
March 22, 2004, and in a show of conlinucd pood faith with its domestic regulator,
BCNEPA hereby responds 1o the Notice, subject 1o the tesms sel forth herein, by
submiiting the enclosed for the Department’s information. With (his Submission, the
March 22 submission and the other information provided to the Department, BCNEPA

believes it has been fully responsive to the inquirics posed in the Notice and the Januvary 5
Letter.

Sincerely,

M

William C. Keed

Executive Vice President and COO

attachments
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April 15, 2004 Submission to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department (the “Department™)
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”™)

Index to Attachments

l. List of Attachments to April 15, 2004 letter to the Department from BCNEPA

2. Privilege Log

3. Ttem (a) - Statement of claim reserves and related unpaid liabilities, and total capital and
surplus, for BCNEPA, HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania, d/b/a First Priority Health
(“FPH”) and First Priority Life Insurance Company (“FPLIC"), as filed with the
Department for the year ended December 31, 2003

4. Item (b) — Identification and Explanation of Sglected Risk Based Capital (“RBC”) Range

5. Item (c) — Statement of BCNEPA’s Contributions to Charitable Organizations 2002-2006

6. Item (d) — Surplus Management Business Plan
7. Memorandum regarding confidentiality of documents
8. Memorandum regarding lack of authority by the Insurance Commissioner of the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the Department

PHILA 120484862
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Privilege Log

Documents Submitted with the April 15, 2004 Letter

to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department (the “Department’)

as to which Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA™) asserts a

Confidentiality Privilege
Appendix | Description of Document Applicable Confidentiality
No. Privilege (see also
attached Memorandum in
Support)
1. List of Attachments to April 15, 2004 letter to March 23, 2004 Opinion
the Department from BCNEPA. and Order from J.
Pellegrini in Capital Blue
Cross v. Koken (“March
23 Order’™); describes and
explains Confidential
Information which is
protected under the RBC
statute, Exam Law,
Uniform Trade Secrets
Act, Right to Know Law,
and common law
2. Privilege Log March 23 Order;
describes and explains
Confidential Information
which is protected under
the RBC statute, Exam
Law, Uniform Trade
Secrets Act, Right to
Know Law, and common
law
3 Item (a) — Statement of claim reserves and March 23 Order
related unpaid liabilities, and total capital and
surplus, for BCNEPA, HMO of Northeastern
Pennsylvania, d/b/a First Priority Health
(“FPH”) and First Priority Life Insurance
Commpany (“FPLIC"), as filed with the
Department for the year ended December 31,
2003
4. Item (b) — Identification and Explanation of March 23 Order, RBC

Selected Risk Based Capital (“RBC”) Range

statute, Exam Law,
Uniform Trade Secrets
Act, Right to Know Law,
and common law

Page 1 of 2
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5. Item (c) — Statement of BCNEPA's March 23 Order, Exam
Contributions to Charitable Organizations 2002- | Law, Uniform Trade

2006 Secrets Act, Right to
Know Law, and common
law
6. Item (d) — Surplus Management Business Plan | March 23 Order, RBC

statute, Exam Law,
Uniform Trade Secrets
Act, Right to Know Law,
and common law

7. Memorandum regarding confidentiality of March 23 Order;
documents descnibes and explains
Confidential Information
which 1s protected under
the RBC statute, Exam
Law, Uniform Trade

Secrets Act, Right to
Know Law, and common
, law
8. Memorandum regarding lack of authority of the | March 23 Order, Exam
Insurance Commissioner of the Commonwealth | Law, and Right to Know
of Pennsylvania and the Department Law

PHILA1\20485052
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Aprl 15, 2004 Submission to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department (the “Department”)
from Blue Cross of Northeastem Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”)

Statement of claiin reserves and related unpaid liabilities,
and total capital and surplus,
for BCNEPA, HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania,
L d/b/a First Priority Health (“FPH”) and
First Priority Life Insurance Company (“FPLIC”),
as filed with the Department
for the year ended December 31, 2003

i

Item (2)

The following table displays certain amounts reflected on the Annual Statements filed by
BCNEPA, FPH and FPLIC with the Department for the year ended December 31, 2003.

BCNEPA EPH FPLIC!
Claim reserves and related unpaid liabilities:
Claims unpaid $ 53,316,837 $ 33,028,263 & -
Accrued medical incentive pool and bonus amounts - 1,426,959 -
Unpaid claim adjustment expenses 1,651,902 1,607,896 -
Apgrepate health policy reserves 8,380,213 - -
Total claim reserves and related unpaid liabililies § 63348952 % 36063118 I =
Total capital and surplus § 404,694,781 §64,730,755° $3,871251%

PHILA 120482154

! FPLIC has not begun insurance operations. Total capital and surplus is the result of the initial

capitalization required by the Pennsylvania Insurance Department in 1998 less start-up expenses incurred
since inception.

2 Total capital and surplus for FPH and FPLIC is separalely reperted under each company’s
respective filing with the Department. As wholly-owned subsidiaries, the capital and surplus of FPH and
FPLIC is included in the $404,694,781 tolal capital and surplus of its parent, BCNEPA.

Page lof 1
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Aprl 15,2004 Submission to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department (the "Department")
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”)

Identification and Explanation of Selected Risk Based Capital (“RBC”) Range

Item (b)

BCNEPA strongly believes that the risk based capital (“RBC") methodology in its statutorily
prescribed current form does not appropriately serve the purpose of identifying a level of surplus
that is adequate to protect the viability of BCNEPA, and therefore objects to this query. The
current RBC methodology identifies the minimum acceptable surplus Ievels to operate an
insurance company, and does not aid in determining an appropriate level of surplus for a well-
managed going concern or the level of surplus necessary to allow, for example, business growth
or diversification, service enhancements or catastrophe management. Moreover, RBC
establishes a regulatory minimum level of capital based upon quantifiably measurable risk and
does not set a standard for a specific, targeted surplus level. Indeed, the RBC formula does not
consider many of an insurer’s unique facts and circumstances nor does the formula take into
account an insurer’s future needs and business decisions.

Notwithstanding the limitations of the RBC methodology, the Department has asserted that
knowledge of BCNEPA’s plans for its RBC ratio will be an aid in some manner to the
Depariment. In the spirit of cooperation with its domestic regulator, BCNEPA hereby advises
the Department of the RBC range that BCNEPA believes is appropriate to meet its needs and
ongoing business objectives. Based upon its thorough analysis, BCNEPA believes that a RBC
level in tf:le range of 750% to 850% is appropriate for BCNEPA at this time (“Selected RBC
Range”)

1t is important to note that BCNEPA’s required surplus level will vary with circumstances and
time. Industry risks and business needs as they exist today will change over time. New
challenges and changing objectives will alter the landscape in which BCNEPA. currently operates-
and, with this evolution, changing surplus requirements will follow. The risks facing BCNEPA
are extensive and pose a serious threat to the long-term stability of the insurance market in
northeastern and north central Pennsylvania. The impact of such risks to that market in the
foreseeable and distant future is unknown. Nevertheless, through comprehensive analysis,
BCNEPA has evaluated the various quantitative and qualitative factors that are likely to impact
BCNEPA's RBC ratio, as explained below.

! The January 17, 2004 Bulletin Notice requested that BCNEPA submit a maximum RBC ratio within the
350% to 650% range. However, before the Commonwealth Court in the Capilal Blue Cross v. Koken case, the
Department represented that its request for 2 “maximum” RBC ratio within the 350% to 650% range was merely a
guideline and the Blues Plans (including BCNEPA) were permitted to submit an RBC range that fell oulside the
guidelines. This representation was consistent with oral guidance provided by the Department to BCNEPA at a
meeting held on February 17, 2004. For the reasons stated herein, BCNEPA asserts that the 350%-650% guideline
range is not appropriate {o its business or operations.

Page 1 of 5
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REDACTED
Quantitative Faclors

The Selected RBC Range was based upon a consideration of many factors, a number of which
are quantitative, including:

Underwriting Cycle: Health insurance underwriting results have historically been cyclical in
nature. Surplus needs are higher for an insurer nearing the end of an *“up” underwriting cycle
than for one coming out of a “down” cycle, given the exposure to more immediate risk. The
required surplus must include a reasonable allowance for such adverse experience. To assure
adequate protection from such downward cycles, surplus, representing " of premiums
written, is necessary for BCNEPA to weather such adverse events over an extended period.
Furthermore, this surplus commitment would only provide BCNEPA with the ability to
withstand adverse underwriting cycles at the 90™ and 95™ percentiles of severity.

Organizational self-governance: Under both corporate” and insurance laws,” BCNEPA is
entitled to wide latitude in the pursuit of its operational objectives. In determining its Selected
RBC Range, BCNEPA determined that its reasonable surplus level should lie comfortably above
the level at which its organizational self-governance and autonomy could be compromised. The
Blue Cross Blue Shield Association (“BCBSA”), the licensing body of Blue Cross Blue Shield
organizations, requires an RBC ratio of 375% or higher to avoid early warning monitoring by
BCBSA.* The Department has the statutory authority to impose regulatory restrictions and
requirements if an insurer does not maintain an RBC ratio of 200% or higher. BCNEPA’s
Selected RBC Range was designed to avoid any likelihood that BCNEPA’s surplus would ever
be deemed “inadequate” by regulators or the BCBSA, and to preserve the normal operational
prerogatives granted to nonprofit hospital plan corporations.

Reasonably expected or foreseeable service enhancements, product development and growth
initatives: BCNEPA is focused on service enhancements and plans to invest in certain key
product development and system improvement initiatives during the future. These new product
initiatives include :

Start-up expenditures and related
underwriting risks associated with product development are not yet fully and specifically
identified, but will require significant expenditures. Furthermore, incremental underwriting risk
associated with a * will reduce the RBC ratio by
approximately ) BCNEPA will also require

in the foreseeable future, ' )
Investments, yet to be fully and
specifically identified, will be required creating expenditures up to §

2 See e.g. 15 Pa.C.S. §5732(b).

! See e.g. 40 P.S. §221.1(c).

* If the RBC ratio falls below 375%, BCBSA imposes more siringent monitoring and aclions, and,

eventually, if the RBC ratio falls below 200%, licensing from thg BCBSA would be lost.

Page 2 of 5
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Qualitative Factors Ebacrgp

A reasonable surplus requirement entails consideration of a variety of factors, many of which are
very difficult to estimate but, nonetheless, real. Examples of hard-to-quantify factors that
uniquely affect BCNEPA’s surplus needs include:

Epidemic or Catastrophic Risk: BCNEPA is particularly susceptible to the economic impact of
an epidemic or catastrophe in light of its limited operating region and self-funding of
catastrophic risk. The underwriting cycle referenced previously does not fully capture the
potential impact of this contingency.

Asset Risk: Given its significant investment portfolio, BCINEPA is subject to the risk of adverse
investment market fluctuations. For example, volatility in the financial markets was evident in
the aftermath of the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, whereby investment carrying values
were greatly impacted.

Provider Risk: BCNEPA bears significant risk in relation to the health care providers in its
service area. For example, many markets served by BCNEPA. lack healthy provider competition.
Providers cannot negotiate payment rates for Medicare, Medicaid, and uninsured market
segments, and as a result, related reimbursement levels historically have been low. Many
providers today are challenged by ongoing operating deficits. Given BCNEPA’s wide member
base, BCNEPA often becomes the “balancing item” for providers in meeting overall revenue
projections. Without changes in government retmbursement practices, this “cost shifing” to
BCNEPA will continue to escalate.

Economic: The generally depressed economic environment in northeastern and north central
Pennsylvania and the region’s inability to retain or attract a new or younger workforce adds a
layer of uncertainty to BCNEPA’s future.

Hliness: An above average share of high nisk individuals, as measured by smoking, over-weight,
blood pressure, and cholesterol levels that are higher than national and state-wide norms,
unfortunately distinguishes northeastem and north central Pennsylvania (and thus BCNEPA'’s
subscribers) from other areas of the Commonwealth.

Malpractice: An unsettling history of malpractice claims in BCNEPA’s operating region, and the
number of services resulting from “defensive” medical practices, fuels ever-increasing health
care costs. '

Non-group products: BCNEPA continues to provide products to the individual market that, in
many cases, are not offered by other insurers. These include community rated insurance products
that target the economically disadvantaged in BCNEPA’s region, including Adult Basic
Coverage, Blue CHIP, and the Special Care programs. While BCNEPA. presently targets

these socially focused products, surplus requirements to manage the risks
associated with them are significant.

Page 3 of 5
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REDA CTED

Additionally, the statutory lack of participation in and protection from the state guaranty fund by
Blue Plans in Pennsylvania adds further challenges to the Blue Plans, ’

Concerning the risks discussed above, three areas contribute most towards the Selected RBC
Range. First, to provide a strong degree of certainty that BCNEPA can maintain its
organizational self-governance and autonomy, a surplus requirement of approximately 300%
RBC is reasonably necessary. Second, to provide a strong degree of certainty that BCNEPA can
weather a severe downward underwriting cycle, an additional surplus requirement of
approximately 350% is reasonably necessary. Finally, )

will create a surplus requuement of another Management of these
three risk components alone requires 2 combined RBC of approxlmately 750% to assure a strong
degree of certainty. When the other risks described above are considered, both quantitative and
qualitative, an outside range of 850% RBC is reasonable in our judgment.

As described above, the risks facing BCNEPA. are extensive and pose a serious threat to the
long-term stability of the insurance market in northeastern and north central Pennsylvania. Their
impact and uncertainty to that market in the foreseeable and distant future is even a greater
unknown.

While the establishment of a Selected RBC Range is not precise, one item is known with :
certainty. Times change and, with passing time, the needs of BCNEPA will change as well. An
organization, such as BCNEPA, must remain vibrant, responsive, and fiscally ready to meet

these chatlenges head-on, now and over time. BCNEPA plans to continue to provide security
and protection to its subscribers who count on BCNEPA. BCNEPA plans to be there for those
subscribers tomorrow, and also be there for their subsériber’s children and grandchildren for
generations to come. BCNEPA has been successfully providing health insurance for the past
sixty-five years and plans to continue providing this coverage for years to come, with focus on
and commitment to its subscribers coupled with a strong financial position as an organization.
BCNEPA believes that its Selected RBC Range will permit it to achieve these goals.

This response is shared with the Department to provide information to assist the Department in
its role as regulator. BCNEPA does not hereby seek the Department’s approval of BCNEPA’s
current RBC ratio or its Selected RBC Range. BCNEPA strongly asserts that the Department
has been given no statutory authority to approve an RBC range for BCNEPA, the maximum
amount BCNEPA’s surplus, or the business plans by which BCNEPA plans to manage its
surplus.

Further, this response contains forward looking statements. These forward-looking statements
are necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgment of BCNEPA that rely on a number of
assumptions concemning future events, many of which are outside of BCNEPA’s control, and
involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. BCNEPA has not committed, and does

L}

Page 4 of 5
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not hereby commit to pursue the activity or otherwise ‘perfoml in adherence to the matters stated
herein. BCNEPA reserves all of its rights to conduct its business in its own discretion, consistent
with applicable legal requirements, without regard to the forward-looking statements contained
in the Submission. BCNEPA disclaims any undertaking fo advise the Department of changes in
the matters described hereto, except to the extent that reporting of such matters to the
Department is required under applicable law.

PHILA Q0432677 147740.000
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April 15, 2004 Submission to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department (the ‘“Department’™)
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA™)

Statement of BCNEPA’s Contributions to Charitable Organizations 2002-2006

Item (c)

BCNEPA is a Pennsylvania nonprofit corporation, operating as a non-profit hospital plan

_corporation under a Certificate of Authority granted by the Department. BCNEPA complics
with the legal obligations imposed on non-profit corporations under Pennsylvania law. As
previously disclosed to the Department through testimony and BCNEPA’s March 22, 2004
letter, BCNEPA has demonstrated its commitment td its customers and its mission of
“Making Better Health Basier” through various activities that reflect BCNEPA’s role as a non-
profit, community focused organization. Those explanations will not be repeated here.
However, in response to Item (c) of the Bulletin Notice, wherein the Department asked to be
apprised of BCNEPA's charitable expenditures for 2002 and 2003, and those planned for
2004-2006, BCNEPA provides the following information:

In 2002, BCNEPA contributed $7.8 million in fiinds to charitable organizations, as defined by
Section 503(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, including Hospital Service Association of
Northeastemn Pennsylvania Foundation, d/b/a The Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of
Northeastern Pennsylvama (“Blue Ribbon Foundation™).

In 2003, BCNEPA contributed $ 1.2 million in funds to chantable 503(c)(3)organizations,
including the Blue Ribbon Foundation.

BCNEPA plans to make future contributions to charitable organizations as follows:

2004 approximately $.04 million.
2005 approximately $0.4 million.
2006 approximately $0.5 million.

BCNEPA'’s planned confributions are dependent on a number of factors including its financial
status at the time the contribution is budgeted and/or paid.

PHILA 1204837005
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April 15, 2004 Submission to
Pennsylvamnia Insurance Department (the "Department")
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA™)

Surplus Management Business Plan

Item (d)

For the reasons set forth in Item (b) and elsewhere in this Submission, BCNEPA strongly
believes that the risk based capital (“RBC”) methodology in its statutorily prescribed current
form does not appropriately serve the purpose of idenfifying a level of surplus that is adequate to
protect the viability of BCNEPA. It must also be pointed out that while an RBC ratio may be
maintained at a constant level, surplus will increase or decrease commensurate with the relative
snze and insurance risk of the health plan mvolved Because BCNEPA is antlcxpatmg
d 1t is appropriate to

assurne that BCNEPA's level of surplus will T

Nevertheless, because BCNEPA had initiated its own surplus management strategy
well before receipt of the Department’s inquiries, and because that strategy has been recently
updated and refined, in the spirit of cooperation with its domestic regulator, BCNEPA hereby
advises the Department of its current business plans relating to surplus management.

Introduction: Source of the Surplus

As a nonprofit hospital plan corporation, BCNEPA’s ability to generate surplus is limited to two
sources: 1) operating margins angd 2) investment performance, including increases in the market
value of equity (stock) securitiecs. BCNEPA does not have at its discretion the capital flexibility
possessed by for-profit companies, whereby capital can be raised through company stock
offerings for those issues and risks as described in BCNEPA's response to item (b). To the
contrary, BCNEPA'’s surplus must be earned from efficient operations and prudent investment
decisions. :

During the 1990s, BCNEPA’s prudent investment practices resulted in a favorable impact on
BCNEPA’s surplus position, such that investment performance contributed over $200 million to
BCNEPA’s surplus position. This investment performance represented approximately two thirds
(2/3) of BCNEPA’s entire surplus growth during this period. This fact is noteworthy because it
demonstrates that the majority of BCNEPA’s current surplus was obtained independently of
premiums charged to its customers in the northeastern and north central Pennsylvania
communities it serves.

'The remainder of the surplus growth {approximately $100 million} resulted from operating
performance. During this decade, customer premiums totaled approximately $5.5 billion. Thus,
on average, operations yielded a contribution to surplus of two cents {$0.02) on each premium
dollar, consistent with the thin margins achieved by many health insurers in the industry.

' BCNEPA 00014



. ' REDACTED
The Surplus Strategy

Duning the later part of 2000, in recognition of the significant improvement 1n its surplus
position, BCNEPA embarked upon a surplus management strategy (“Surplus Strategy”} to utilize
a portion of its surplus to benefit its subscribers and the communities served. The Surplus
Strategy, introduced well before the Department’s attention to this issue, was initially designed

for implementation over a long range period The goal of BCNEPA's
strategy was to remove some of the volatility from customer rate increases through long-term
planned rate subsidies while utilizing surplus to fund ) expenditures such

as implementation of HIPPA and new operating systems acquisition costs, among others. In
addition, surplus will be utilized to invest in initiatives that improve the health status of
BCNEPA's membership and communities over time and to assist provider systems in raising the
level of quality of care being provided, thus mitigating the rate of rise in future healthcare
expenditures. The Surplus Strategy has been successful in meeting the objectives as initially
designed. For example, as of December 31, 2003,' BCNEPA’s surplus position totaled $36
million less than the surplus level at December 31, 1999.2 The initiatives implemented under

. the Surplus Strategy to date are outlined in more detail below.

Appreciation Credits

The first initiative of the Surplus Strategy was launched in September 2000, when BCNEPA’s
Board of Directors approved a premium rate credit targeted to group customers and administered
. self-insured accounts (“Appreciation Credit™). The Appreciation Credit was funded through the
application of a portion of the value resulting from the appreciation of BCNEPA's investment
portfolio. The purpose of the Appreciation Credit was to provide BCNEPA’s group customers
with relief from rising healthcare premiums, which were a direct result of dramatically rising
healthcare costs.® Through the Appreciation Credit, indicated increases in group premiums and
charges were reduced by the following percentage points: * ,and  inthe years

and" , respectively. It is important to note that the credit was to level off to a
range over the duration of the Surplus Strategy to ensure that the rates charged were not
subsidized substantially below actual required rates. This assumed that BCNEPA would forego
further contributions to surplus in the rate making process and that its expected future
appreciation in equity securities would be steadily returned to policyholders and subscribers.
The amount of Appreciation Credits applied during this period totaled $63 million.

Service Enhancement Initiatives

As part of its Surplus Strategy, BCNEPA also funded multiple service enhancement initiatives
over the past several years. BCNEPA's ability to fund these initiatives from its strong surplus

! In its Annual Statement filed with the Department for the year ending December 31, 2003, BCNEPA's

surplus was reported at $405 million.

2 In its Annnal Statement filed with the Department for the year ending December 31, 199%, BCNEPA's

surplus was reported at $441 million.

3 Similarly, self-insureds benefited from a reduction in fees that otherwise would have been charged.

Page 2 of 7
BCNEPA 00015



REDACTEI)

position avoided any increase in premiums or fees that would otherwise have been required to
fund these necessary expenditures. Included among these initiatives were:

o  the implementation of privacy and security measures mandated by the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA), at a cost to BCNEPA of approximately $27

million;
e  the implementation of a new claims adjudication system ,atacostto

BCNEPA in excess of § s and -
e  the development of ‘ + o provide more

timely and accurate small group quotes.

Each of these initiatives provided benefit of BCNEPA’s customers, and were made possible
without increasing premiums charged to policyholders or subscribers through strong surplus
management.

Blue Ribbon Foundation

* As part of its Surplus Strategy, BCNEPA also created the Hospital Service Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania Foundation, d/b/a The Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of
Northeastern Pennsylvania (Blue Ribbon Foundation). The Blue Ribbon Foundation was formed
in 2001 under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and operates within thirteen
counties of northeastern and north central Pennsylvania. Its purpose is to serve as a catalyst for
change by funding innovative programs targeted at improving the health and wellness of the
communities served by BCNEPA, hopefully having the long term impact of lowering the rate of
rise of healthcare costs in this aging community. BCNEPA funded its initial endowment to the
Blue Ribbon Foundation on December 27, 2001, * with approximately $7.5 million in securities.
An additional contribution of approximately $1.0 million as made by BCNEPA to the Blue
Ribbon Foundation duning 2003.

Future Surplus Management Initiatives and Impacts

Continuation of the Surplus Strategy

BCNEPA will continue its Surplus Strategy throughout 2004 and through year end

Specifically, during the ‘period from 2004 to ©  , BCNEPA plans to continue its
Appreciation Credit strategy. Appreciation Credits ranging from have been
provided to group underwritten customers beginning in 2004 and further reductions are
scheduled

Additionally, BCNEPA anticipates the need for continued expenditures in the area of technology
initiatives in the foreseeable future. BCNEPA is heavily dependent upon legacy operating
. information technology systems that require upgrades to provide cost-effective solutions, to

* The March 22 subrmission mistakenly attributed the initial funding to calendar year 2002.

Page 3 of 7
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maintain appropriate financial accounting, reporting and control systems, to meet the demands of
the provider community, to respond to changes in the law as they occur, and to provide
exceptional service to policyholders, subscribers and customers. In addition, as new markets,
products and cost containment services are introduced, the technology enabling BCNEPA's
ability to deliver consumer friendly solutions will require significant investments of surplus.
While the remainder of the Surplus Strategy is being continued, BCNEPA does not anticipate
making any further contributions to the Blue Ribbon Foundation during the three-year peniod
from 2004 to 2006. Additional contributions beyond 2006 are anticipated.

Entrance into the Medicare Advantage Program

Because of the large senior population in the counties served by BCNEPA and recent changes in
federal funding of managed Medicare programs, BCNEPA currently is studying the financial and
operational feasibility of entering the Medicare Advantage Program in If BCNEPA enters
this program, BCNEPA anticipates funding start-up expenditures from its surplus. BCNEPA
anticipates that incremental underwriting risk associated with a mature Medicare Advantage
program increases the risk profile of BCNEPA and will reduce its RBC ratio by approximately
100 RBC percentage points.

Increased Utilization Trends

BCNEPA expects to utilize a significant amount of its surplus to manage the escalating risk
associated with increased utilization trends that are projected. Near double-digit healthcare cost
trends are projected for the foreseeable future that will triple the levels of underwriting risk as
calculated under the current RBC formula over the next 10 years. Adding to already high,
medical inflationary pressures is an additional cost of 1% per year due to the aging population
that BCNEPA serves, and the greater usage of medical services by such a population.

Group Subsidy Equivalent

Surplus Contribution Component in Rate Making

BCNEPA requires a certain amount surplus in order to manage the risk associated with offering
non-group products. Normally this surplus is sourced through a contribution to surplus pricing
factor contained in the rate filing, BCNEPA has historically avoided assessing this charge to its
non-group subscribers as a result of its adequate surplus position. Continuation of this approach
is expected going forward, provided a sufficient surplus position is maintained. Absent an
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adequate level of surplus, surplus contribution charges to non-group customers would be
reinstated.

Additionally, because of its current strong surplus, BCNEPA expects to introduce this
methodology (of not seeking a contribution fo surplus) for its This

decision will have an immediate impact of reducing surplus.

Individual Market Premiums

BCNEPA anticipates utilizing a portion of its surplus to subsidize the premium deficiencies
currently existing in its non-group products. In December 2003, the Department denied a request
for a rate increase filed by BCNEPA relating to its non-group products. BCNEPA determined
not to seek an appeal of the denial of its rate request. Accordingly, to the extent that cutrent rates
are inadequate to cover BCNEPA’s liabilities relating to the policies currently in force, such
deficiency will be funded from BCNEPA’s surplus. This is currently estimated at approximately
$5 million per year.

Health Improvement Initiatives

BCNEPA anticipates utilizing a portion of its surplus to support a number of health improvement
initiatives, including initiatives relating to patient safety, reductions in medical errors and
improvements in provider sponsored services and technology.

Migration of Self-Funded Business

Because of increases in regulations surrounding self-funded groups (e.g. HIPAA compliance)
and dramatic increase in the pricing of pharmaceuticals and related technologies, BCNEPA
anticipates that a portion of self-funded business may migrate back to underwritten lines of
business. This migration will cause an underwriting risk to emerge, affect existing RBC levels,
and require significant surplus to manage.

L]

Surplus Analysis Methodology and Objective

A multitude of business scenarios were modeled and compared to a baseline scenario to
determine the impact of each assumption on levels of surplus and the corresponding RBC. For
example, BCNEPA analyzed the surplus impact that could result from the potential of a zero
return on invested assets, from various underwriting margins on BCNEPA’s various programs,
and from limited, if any, contributions to surplus from operations through year end The
scenarios were modeled overaf 7 with the intent of understanding the impact
over a sustained period of time. The longer horizon also provided greater stability in customer
pricing, a better linkage to a going-concern concept, and the least disruptive approach to the
insurance market in northeasterm and north central Pennsylvania.

After analyzihg and further understanding the intricacies of the business scenarios, various
scenarios were selected and merged to produce an all-inclusive, dynamic model. The objective

Page 5 of 7
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was to create a business model that would serve the néeds of BCNEPA and transition the RBC
level to within the established and required surplus range of 750% to 850% within a multi-year
but reasonable time period.

BCNEPA’s business plan anticipates achievement of its objectives, including:

1. Adequate surplus to serve the long-term needs of BCNEPA, its policyholders,

subscribers, customers and communities;

Commitment of funds to community healthcare initiatives;

Funding of key health improvement initiatives for its subscnibers;

Dedication of resources for service enhancement initiatives;

Linkage of surplus to increasing risks (i.e. underwriting and business) over an appropriate

period,;

6. Flexibility to address the evolving and ever-changing dynamics of the health insurance
industry; and :

7. Minimization of the potential for disruption in the marketplace.

il

Further, BCNEPA believes that its business plan addresses the concerns raised by the
Department; and assures BCNEPA’s compliance with its charter documents and applicable law.

Anticipated Effect of the Surplus Strategy

BCNEPA. anticipates that its Surplus Strategy, including the surplus reduction initiatives

described above, will fransition BCNEPA’s RBC ratio to within its Selected RBC Range within

approximately four years (2008). Thereafter, BCNEPA anticipates that its business plans will
permit it to maintain its RBC ratio within the Selected RBC Range for the remainder of the’

"~ “period analyzed" -

Conclusion

This response is shared with the Department to provide information to assist the Department in
its role as regulator. BCNEPA does not hereby seek the Department’s approval of BCNEPA’s
historic or future surplus levels or business plans, including but not limited to its plans to manage
its surplus. BCNEPA strongly asserts that the Department has been given no statutory authorty
to approve such plans or BCNEPA’s surplus.

Further, this response contains forward looking statements. These forward-looking statements
are necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgment of BCNEPA that rely ont a number of
assumptions concerning future events, many of which‘are outside of BCNEPA’s control, and
involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. BCNEPA has not committed, and does
not hereby commit to pursue the activity or otherwise perform in adherence to the matters stated
herein. BCNEPA reserves all of its rights to conduct its business in its own discretion, consistent
with applicable legal requirements, without regard to the forward-looking statements contained
in the Submission. BCNEPA disclaims any undertaking to advise the Department of changes in
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the matters described hereto, except to the extent that reporting of such matters to the
Department is required under applicable law.
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Memorandum in Support of Assertions of Confidentiality
Relative to Information Contained in the April 15, 2004 Submission
to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department

Background Information

On January 17, 2004, the Pennsylvania Insurance Department (“Department”™) published
a notice in the Permsylvania Bulletin (“Bulletin Notice™),' requesting that the Hospital Service
Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania, d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvama
(“BCNEPA”) submit certain information to the Department no later than Apnil 15, 2004.
BCNEPA has submitted information to the Department under a cover letter dated April 15, 2004
(“Submission™). This Memorandum is included as an Attachment to that Submission.

Previous to the Bulletin Notice, the Department provided BCNEPA with advance copies
of the Bulletin Notice, by a letter dated January 5, 2004 (“January 5 Letter”), as revised January
8,2004. The January 5 Letter requested various information from BCNEPA to be submitted no
later than March 22, 2004. BCNEPA submitted information to the Department under a cover
letter dated March 22, 2004 (“March 22 submission”).

In its January 5 Letter, the Department stated:?

If you contend that any of the information requested should
be maintained as confidential, please stamp as confidential each
page that you believe should be so maintained, identify the basis
upon which the assertion of confidentiality, privilege or trade
secret 1s premised, and 1dentify the person to whom inquiries
regarding the issue of confidential treatment should be directed. In
addition, please submit both complete and redacted versions of
those pages. [Emphasis added].

In its January 5, 2004 Letter, the Department acknowledged that the Department expected
BCNEPA to submit confidential, propretary and trade secret information. Indeed, the
Submission contains a vast amount of such confidential, proprietary and trade secret material
{collectively “Confidential Information”). BCNEPA has identified to the Department all
Confidential Information contained in its Submission. This memorandum is submitted in
support of BCNEPA’s assertion of confidentiality for the documents so identified.

34 PaB. 458.

This statement did not appear in the Notice published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin,
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The Submission is Confidential Pursuant to the March 23 Order

On February 26, 2004, Capital Blue Cross filed a Petition for Review before the
Commonwealth Court challenging the Bulletin Notice, on various grounds, and seeking various
relief. Capital Blue Cross v. Koken, No. 172 M.D. 2004. BCNEPA intervened in that action.
Following a hearing on March 17, 2004, Judge Pellegrini issued an Opinion and Order on March
23, 2004 (“March 23 Order”). The March 2::3 Order stated in pertinent pact:

However, a preliminary injunction is granted to the extent that all plans submitted will be
kept confidential unti! further order of Court.

!

The March 23 Order has not been modified by further order of Court as of the date of this
Submission. Accordingly, BCNEPA. asserts confidentiality for the entire Submission (including
its March 22, 2004 submission) pursuant to the March 23 Order. BCNEPA incorporates herein
by reference the issues and arguments raised in its filings in the Capital Blue Cross v. Koken

action, specifically including the Application for Reargument pursuant to PA. R.AP. 2543(2) as
to the Court’s Order dated March 23, 2004.

RBC Information is Confidential by Statute

Applicable law (40 P.S. §221.1-B et seq.)’ (“RBC statute™) specifically provides that
information relating to BCNEPA’s risk based capital (“RBC”) levels must be protected from
public disclosure. The RBC Statute explicitly acknowledges the confidentiality of RBC
information in several sections, stating in pertinent part:

(a) The following information filed with the department shall constitute information
that may be damaging to a health organization if made avatlable to its competitors
and shall be confidential:

(1) RBC rcportk‘f| to the extent the information in the report is not required to
be included in a publicly available annual statement schedule.

BCNEPA is govemed by the RBC statute pursuant to Section 221.1-B (definition of “health organization™).

4

“RBC report” is defined as “a report of RBC levels.” 40 P.S. §221.1-B (definition of “RBC report”).
Clearly, the Bulletin Notice requests that BCNEPA identify an RBC range appropriate to its operations, provide
Justification for (he Selected RBC Range, and provide a business plan relating to the managements of surplus levels
(an integral component of an RBC ratio calculation). Accordmgly, the Submission is appropriately viewed as an
“RBC report” under the RBC statute.
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(2)  RBC plans,’ including the results of reports of any examination or
analysis6 of a health organization performed under this article.

(b)  Except for insurance or other regulatory officials of the Commonwealth or other
jurisdictions, inforration under subsection (a) shall be confidential and may not
be subject to subpoena by any Federal, State or other jurisdiction or made public
by the department or any other person without the prior written consent of the
health organization unless the commissioner makes the information public for
purposes of Article V [the liquidation law].

(c) The following shall apply to publication of RBC levels:

(1)  Except as required by this article, the publication, dissemination,
circulation or placement before the public, or directly or indirectly causing
the publication, dissemination, circulation or placement before the public,
of an assertion, representation or statement with regard to the RBC levels
or component denived in the calculation of RBC levels of a health
organization, including assertions, representations or statements intended
or used to rank health organizations, by an insurer, agent, broker or [any]
other person in a newspaper, magazine or other publication, notice,
pamphlet, letfer or other printed matter or by broadcast or electronic
transmission, is prohibited.... 40 P.S. § 221.11-B [emphasis added].

Accordingly, the RBC statute makes it abundantly clear that RBC information is not be
disclosed or disseminated by BCNEPA, the Department or any other person. For this reason,
BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege for all documents reporting BCNEPA's current or
projected RBC levels, including but not limited to the Selected RBC Range contained in the
Submission, all analysis relating to BCNEPA’s Selected RBC Range and its current or projected
RBC levels, and all statements relating to BCNEPA's Selected RBC Range and its current or
projected RBC levels or components derived in the calculation of such RBC range or levels.

3 An “RBC plan” is defined as a comprehensive financial plan filed in accordance with [40 P.S. §221.5-B] .”

40 P.S. §221.1-B (definition of “RBC plan”}. Section 221.5-B requires an RBC plan when a health organization has
sustained a “company action level event.” Even though BCNEPA has not suslained a “company action level event,”
the Bulletin Notice requests that BCNEPA submit to the Department a statement of the range of RBC that BCNEPA
believes is appropriate for its operations, justification for the Selected RBC range, and a business plan to manage its
surplus (and thereby affect its RBC levels) in the future. Accordingly, the Submission is appropriately viewed as an
“RBC plan™ under the RBC statute. The confidentiality provisions of the RBC statule apply to protect the
submitied information relating to BCNEPA's current or proposed RBC levels, identification of current or anticipated
conditions that may affect such RBC levels, and the business plans that BCNEPA anticipates following to manage
ils surplus levels in the future.

6 Clearly, the Bulletin Notice requests that BCNEPA perform analysis relating to its Selected RBC Range.
Additionally, the Bulletin Notice advises that the Department has underfaken various analysis of RBC levels for the

Blues Plan to date, and inlends to conduct additional analysis in the future. The RBC statute requires that al! such
analyses be maintained as confidential.
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BCNEPA also asserts this confidentiality privilege for all documents prepared or obtained by the
Department which relate to the reporting or analysis of BCNEPA’s Selected RBC Range or
current or projected RBC levels or components derived in the calculation of such RBC range or
levels.

The Examination Law Mandates Confidentiality

BCNEPA is also entitled to confidentiality protection under the Examination Law, 40
P.S. § 323.1 et seq. (“Exam Law”).” Under that law, all documents produced dunng an
examination® must be held as confidential, and are not subject to public disclosure.

All working papers, recorded information, documents and copies thereof produced by,

obtained by or disclosed to the department or any other person in the course of an
examination made under this article shall be given confidential treatment and are not

subject to subpoena and may not be made public by the department or any other person
except to the extent provided in subsection {€) [relating to the final examination report].
Access may also be granted to the NAIC. Such parties must agree in writing prior to
receiving the information to provide it the same confidential treatment as required by the
act of June 1, 1957 (P.L. 390, No. 212), referred to as the Right-To-Know Law, unless
the prior written consent of the company to which it pertains has been obtained. 40 P.S.
§323.5(f) [emphasis added].

Under Section 323.5(f), confidential treatment is required by law to be applied to
documents created by, obtained by or disclosed to the Department during the course of an
examination. Although no “examination warrant”* hds been issued to BCNEPA, there is no
doubt that the Department is conducting an “examination” of BCNEPA in this matter. The
Department has requested BCNEPA’s books and records in order that the Department can verify
BCNEPA’s financial condition and ascertain whether BCNEPA is in compliance with the laws
of the Commonwealth.'® The Department is conducting an analysis of BCNEPA’s financial
statement, analyzing other financial information and ratios, and evaluating actuarial opinions
obtained by BCNEPA."' Further, the Department has retained consultants to assist it in its
review, and has required that BCNEPA and the other Blues Plans pay for the costs of such

7 BCNEPA is governed by the Exam Law pursuant to 40 P.S. §323.2 (definition of “insurer” includes

hospital plan corporations).
8 BCNEPA acknowledges that a final report of examination, and the insurer’s response (hereto, are gublic
information. 40 P.S. §323.5(e)(1).

? The Exam Law provides for the issuance of an examination warrant prior to the commencement of an

examination., 40 P.S. §323.4(a).
I 10

See e.g. 40 P.S. §323.3(a).

Seee.g. 40 P.S. §323.3(b).
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consultants. The only available statutory authority for the imposition of such costs on BCNEPA
is the Exam Law.'?  The Department is clearly relying upon the Exam Law as a basis for its
authority in this matter; BCNEPA understood that if it did not agree to pay these consultant fees,
the Department would formally institute a financial examination.

Because the Department is acting as if an examination has been initiated, BCNEPA. is
entitled to the confidentiality protections afforded by the Exam Law. The Exam Law makes it
abundantly clear that examination work papers prepared, and documents produced, during the
course of an exarmination are not subject to public disclosure. Accordingly, BCNEPA asserts a
confidentiality privilege for all documents included in its Submission, because they are
submitted relative to a de facto Department examination. BCNEPA also asserts a confidentiality
privilege over work papers and other documents prepared or obtained by the Department which
relate to this matter.

-BCNEPA’s Submission contains “Trade Secrets” E}ntitled to Protection from Disclosure
under the Uniform Trade Secrets Act

On February 19, 2004, Governor Rendell signed the Uniform Trade Secrets Act
(“UTSA”), 12 Pa. C. S. § 5301 et seq. The new law prohibits the Insurance Department from
disclosing the trade secrets that are contained in BCNEPA’s Submission.

In Section 5302 of the UTSA, a “trade secret” is defined as follows:

Information, including a formula, drawing, pattern, compilation including a customer list,
program, device. method, technique or process that:

(1) denives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being
generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by,
other persons who can obtain the economic value from its disclosure or use.

(2) 1s the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to
maintain its secrecy [emphasis added].

12 The Department has no authority to require that BCNEPA pay for consultants retained by the Department,

absent a statulory provision imposing such payment obligation on BCNEPA. See e.g. 40 P.S. §§323.4(d) and 323.7
{expenses may be assessed against the licensee). Compare 40 P.S. §1171.8 (no statutory authority to assess the costs
of an investigation). While the RBC law authorizes the department to relain consultants and charge such expenses
to the health organization, this provision applies only if there has been a “regulatory action event.” 40 P.S. §221.6-
B(d) and (¢). Inasmuch as BCNEPA has nol sustained a “regulatory action event,” the RBC law does not provide
any foundation for the Department's requirement that BCNEPA pay a portion of the expenses incurred by the
Department’s consultants in this matter.
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Section 5302 defines “misappropriation” to include the following:

(1) acquisition of a trade secret by one who knows or has reason to know that it
was acquired by improper means; or

(2) disclosure or use of a trade secret of another without express or implied
consent where the disclosure is done by one who:

(1) used improper means to acquire knowledge of the trade secret;

(11) knew or had reason to know at the time of disclosure that the trade secret
was:

 (A) derived from or through 2 person who had utilized improper means
to acquire it;

(B) acquired under circumstances giving rise to a duty to maintain its
secrecy or limit its use; or

(C)  derved from or through a person who owed a duty to the lawful
possessor of that trade secret to maintain its secrecy or limit its use.

The Department is prohibited from disclosing any BCNEPA trade secrets under 12
Pa.C.S. §5302(2)(i1)(B), which prohibits the disclosure of a trade secret by a persorlu who, at the
time of disclosure, knew or had reason to know that the trade secret was acquired under
circumstances giving rise to a duty to maintain its secrecy or limit its use. BCNEPA has
identified to the Department the trade secrets that are included within its Submission, including
its prospective business plans relating to surplus management, RBC levels and charitable
contributions. BCNEPA has expended considerable time, effort and expense to maintain the
confidentiality of its trade secrets. BCNEPA has not consented to the disclosure of its trade
secrets by the Department. The Department has statutory duties to maintain the secrecy of
BCNEPA’s trade secret under the RBC Law, the Exam Law, and the Right to Know Law, 64
P.S. §66.1 et seq. (discussed below). Accordingly, the UTSA prohibits the Department from
disclosing BCNEPA'’s trade secrets. '

13 The Insu:anc-é Department falls within the UTSA's definition of a “person,” which in¢ludes any

“government, governmental subdivision or agency...." 12Pa.C.8 §3302.
1 UTSA provides for injunctive relief, monetary and exemplary damages, and an award of attorneys fees, for
violalions of the act.
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BCNEPA’s Information is not a “Public Record”

BCNEPA’s submitted information is not available for inspection or duplication by a
person other than the Department under the Right to Know Law, 64 P.S. § 66.1 et seq. This
statute defines a “public record” as follows:

Any account, voucher or contract dealing with the receipt or disbursement of funds by an
agency ofr its acquisition, use or disposal of services or of supplies, materials, equipment
or other property and any minute, order or decision by an agency fixing the personal or
property rights, privileges, immunities, duties or obligations of any person or group of
persons: Provided, That the term "publie records” shall not mean any report,
communication or other paper, the publication of which would disclose the institution,
progress or result of an investigation undertaken by an agency in the performance of its
official duties, except those reports filed by agencies pertaining to safety and health in
industrial plants; it shall not include any record, document, material, exhibit, pleading,
report, memorandum or other paper, access to or the publication of which is prohibited,
restricted or forbidden by statute law or order or decree of court, or which would operate
to the prejudice or impairment of a person's reputation or personal security, or which
would result in the loss by the Commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions or
commissions or State or municipal authonties of Federal funds, excepting therefrom
however the record of any conviction for any criminal act. 65 P.S. §66.1 (definition of
“public record” [emphasis added].

Under the Right to Know Law, only “public records™ are available for public
dissemination.

Unless otherwise provided by law, a public record shall be
accessible for inspection and duplication by a requestor in
accordance with this act.... Nothing in this act shall provide
access to a record which is not a public record. 65 P.S. §66.2
[emphasis added].

It is clear from Bulletin Notice that the Department is conducting an investigation.

BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege for all documents that evidence the
institution, progress or results of the Department’s investigation in this matter, including the
documents submitted by BCNEPA to assist the Department in its analysis, because such
documents specifically are exempted from the definition of “public record.”'® Additionally,
BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege for its documents on the basis that the RBC statute,
Exam Law and the UTSA provide that BCNEPA s information is not to be disseminated.
Because confidentiality is “otherwise provided by law,” BCNEPA’s information is not a “public

13 The confidentiality protections available under the Right to Know law are very strong. Indeed, an agency

or public official whe violates the Right to Know Law is subject to criminal prosecution. 65 P.S, §66.5(a).
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record” and cannot be disclosed. Finally, because the RBC law explicitly acknowledges that
release of RBC information would be “damaging”'® to BCNEPA, BCNEPA asserts a
‘confidentiality privilege based upon the potential for prejudice to or impairment of its reputation.

The Confidential Information is Protected under Common Law Principles

BCNEPA’s Submission contains statements which relate to the premium rates that
BCNEPA may charge in the future, and rating methodologies that BCNEPA may employ in the
future. The Submission also discusses BCNEPA’s business plans, including matters relating to
organizational investment returns; planned product offerings and service enhancements;
expected business, growth and utilization trends; anticipated charitable contributions and social
mission activities; and planned technology expenditires. Additionally, the Submission discusses
. the methodology and analysis employed by BCNEPA (o determine the Selected RBC Range.
All such information constitutes confidential, proprietary and trade secrets that belong to
BCNEPA. These business plans and strategies were prepared and implemented at great time,
effort and expense to BCNEPA, and BCNEPA has taken all appropriate steps to keep such
matters out of the public domain. Further, such Confidential Information is not known to the
public and certainly is not known to competitors. Should any of this information fall into the
hands of competitors, BCNEPA will be severely and irreparably prejudiced. For this reason,
BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege under common law principles relative to all
information contained in its Submission which contains information relating to BCNEPA’s
anticipated future income, or past or projected liabilities, expenses, expenditures, investment
returns, business plans, financial status, or rate-making strategies, and all methodologies and
analysis relating thereto. '

Further, BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege regarding such Confidential
Information under common law principles. The Confidential Information (exclusive of Item a)
was prepared and 1s submitted to the Department relative only to the ongoing investigation and
examination. BCNEPA is currently the defendant in litigation relating to alleged “excess
surplus” issues.'” BCNEPA believes that it would be inappropriate to release, disclose or
disseminate Confidential Information to the public, as it was prepared solely for this Submission

to the Department.
\

Deocuments which reference Confidential Information are also Confidential Information.

BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege over documents (or those portions of
-documents) contained in the Submission which reference Confidential Information. To the
extent that a document i1dentifies, explains or describes Confidential Information, such references
are confidential for the reason applicable to the Confidential Information itself. In particular,

16 40 P.S. § 221.11-B(a).

1 Petty v. Hospital Service Association of Northeasler Pennsylvania d/b/a/ Blue Cross of Northeastern

Pennsylvania, Lackawanna Co. Ct. Com. Pi.. No. 02-2258.
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. BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege over this memorandum and the “privilege log” on
this basis.

The Confidentiality Privilege is Asserted with respect to BCNEPA and its Affiliates )

For ease of reference herein, BCNEPA has been identified as the entity asserting the
confidentiality privileges applicable to the Confidential Information. However, each of
BCNEPA, First Priority Life Insurance Company, HMQ of Northeastern Pennsylvania d/b/a
First Priority Health, the Blue Ribbon Foundation, and BCNEPAs other affiliates hereby assert
a confidentiality privilege with respect to any and all Confidential Information in which they
have a legally protectable interest.

Conclusion

The documents in BCNEPA’s Submission are entitled to confidentiality under the March
23 Order, the RBC and Examn Laws, the Right to Know Law, and the Uniform Trade Secrets Act.
Additionally, BCNEPA’s information is entitled to confidentiality under common law principles,
whereunder confidential, proprietary and trade secret information is entitled to confidential
treatment. All information identified by BCNEPA as confidential is entitled to protection from
disclosure by the Department. Further, all RBC reports and analyses created or obtained by the
Department are entitled to confidential treatment under the RBC statute. All Department work
papers (including materials prepared or obtained by Department consultants) are confidential
under the Exam Law. All Department analysis and work papers are also protected from
disclosure under the Right to Know Law.

BCNEPA requests that the Department follow its established procedures for release of
any information in the Submission, in the event the preliminary injunction contained in the
March 23 Order 1s lified and not replaced by a permanent injunction. Pursnant to the Right to
Know Law, agencies are required to establish written policies to implement that law. 64 P.S.
§66.8(2). Indeed, the Depa:tment has issued such written procedures, which are posted on the -
Depariment’s website.'® In releasing non-confidential public records, BCNEPA requests that the
Department strictly follow its published written procedures, and the requirements (including time
limitations) prescribed by the Right to Know Law. In light of those established procedures,
posting any of the non-confidential materials submitted by BCNEPA on the Department’s
website would be inappropriate and violative of the Right to Know Law.

BCNEPA intends to take all steps necessary and appropriate to ensure that its
Confidential Information is not improperly released into the public domain. BCNEPA has not,
and does not hereby, consent to the publication, dissemination, circulation, release or disclosure
of the Confidential Information submitted herewith. BCNEPA hereby advises that the
Department may not rely upon any oral consent to any such publication, dissemination,

See www,ins.state.pa.us/ PA Right to Know Policy.,
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circulation, release or disclosure by any person for or on behalf of BCNEPA. Any such consent
will be issued by BCNEPA only in a writing executed by a duly authorized officer of BCNEPA.

Philal'204857141
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Memorandum on Lack of Authority by the

the Insurance Commissioner and the Insurance Department
Relative to the April 15, 2004 Submission

to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department

A basis tenant of law is that the authority of an admimistrative agency is not boundless.
Administrative agencies may only exercise the power that has been delegated to the agency by

the General Assembly.

The Insurance Department’s supervisory authority over the insurance industry is not
without limitation ... An administrative agencies can only exercise those powers which
have been conferred upon it by the Legislature in clear and unmistakable language. The

Aetna Casualty and Surety Company v. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Insurance
Department, 638 A.2d 194 (200 (Pa. 1994) (citations omitted).

In delimiting the scope of an administrative agency's power, we do not write on a blank
slate, and the controlling principles are firmly established.... The power and anthority to
be exercised by administrative commissions must be conferred by legislative language
clear and unmistakable. A doubtful power does not exist. Such tribunals are
extrajudicial. They should act within the strict and exact limits defined. State Emploves'
Retirement Board v. Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission, 622 A.2d 412 (Pa.
Commw. 1993).

The Department,' as an administrative agency, is a creature of the legislature, and its
powers are only those conferred by way of statute, either expressly or by necessary implication.
See 36 Standard Pennsylvania Practice 2d §166:12. However, the power and authority presented

by legislative language must be clear and unmistakable, not strained by interpretation. Id.

! The Bulletin Notice was issued by Deputy Insurance Commissioners Johnson and

Rohrbaugh. Accordingly, for ease of reference herein, this memorandum specifically addresses
the Department’s power and authority. However, the Insurance Commissioner’s power and
authority is no more extensive than the authority granted to the Department. The Insurance
Commissioner posses no independent authority beyongd that delegated to the administrative
agency itself. Therefore, BCNEPA asserts that the Insurance Commissioner’s authority and
powers are limited in the same manners as the Department, as discussed herein.
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A doubtful power does not exist, and such power as is granted, must be sculpted
precisely, so that the agency’s operational figure strictly resembles its legislative
model.... An administrative agency cannot, by mere contrary usage, invest itself with
authority and powers not fairly or properly within the legislative grant. Id.

[Administrative agencies] must follow statutory established standards and not their ideas
of what would be charitable or equitable, and may not ignore or transgress the statutory
limitations on their power, even to accomplish what they deem to be laudable ends.
Their actions are valid only if they are within the limits of the powers granted to them by
the legislature; acts or orders which do not come clearly within the powers granted or
which fall beyond the purview of the statute granting the agency its powers are not
merely erroneous, but are void. See 73 C.1.S. Public Administrative Law and Procedure,
§58 (June 2003).

Accordingly, it is beyond dispute that the Pennsylvania Insurance Department (“the
Department™) may not take action relative to the Bulletin Notice or the January 5 Letter in the
absence of a specific delegation of statutory authority.’ The Department has identified no
statutory authority which supports the Bulletin Notice or the January 5 Letter, other than a
general reference to 40 Pa.C.S. Chapter 61 (relating to hospital pl;n corporations). However,

neither that law, nor any other statute, provides authority for any of the following maters arising

from the Bulletin Notice and the January 5 Letter:

1. a requirement that BCNEPA adopt an RBC range appropriate for its business and
operations; '

2. regulatory approval of BCNEPA's current RBC ratio or any RBC range which
BCNEPA may select as appropriate to its business and operations;

3. a mandate that BCNEPA. reduce its current RBC ratio;

2 BCNEPA incorporates herein by reference the issues and arguments raised in its filings

in the Capital Blue Cross v. Koken action.
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4. utilization of RBC standards for a purpose other than measuiring the minimum
amount of capital appropriate for the support of an insurer’s overall business operations;

5. utilization of RBC standards to measure BCNEAP’s surplus;

6. establishment of a maximum permissible RBC ratio or RBC range;
7. establishment of a target RBC ratio or 'RBC range;

8. a mandate that BCNEPA operate within a particular RBC range;

9. a mandate that BCNEPA submit an application for approval of BCNEPA’s
surplus, or regulatory approval of BCNEPA’s surplus;

10.  regulatory approval of BCNEPA’s business plans and strategies, including but
not limited to the manner in which BCNEPA intends to utilize and manage its surplus in
the exercise of its sound business judgment, or a2 mandate that BCNEPA adhere to any
such plan or strategy;

11.  arequirement that BCNEPA establish a surplus management program, or that
BCNEPA adhere to any such program that it adopts in the exercise of its sound business
judgment,

12. a mandate that BCNEPA’s distribute surplus to plan participants, the
Commonwealth’s underinsured and uninsured citizens, or any other person, or that
BCNEPA’s surplus be utilized in any particular manner whatsoever;

13.  approval of charijtable contributions that BCNEPA has made or plans to make in
the future;

14, regulation of any of BCNEPAs non-insurance company affiliates; or

15.  solicitation of public comments on any of the above mentioned matters.

In the absence of an express grant of authority from the General Assembly, the
Department is beyond its powers to cven begin a process which seeks to accomplish any of the
above-listed impermissible results. Further, authority cannot be implied under 40 Pa.C.S.

Chapter 61 or any other law.
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While BCNEPA has provided information to the Department , responsive to the Bulletin
Notice and January 5 Letter, on a voluntary basis, in the spirit of cooperation, BCNEPA
strenuously objects to all action relating to those matters which are beyond the scope of the

Department’s power and authority, as referenced in the Submission and the March 22

submission.
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July 27, 2004

VIA AIR EXPRESS

Steve Davis

Chief Counsel
Insurance Department
1341 Strawberry Square
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Re:  Redacted Submissions dated March 22, April 15 and May 17, 2004
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania
Conforming to J. Pellegrini’s Order dated July 21, 2004

Dear Steve:

NEW YORK

NEWARK

S5AN DIEGO

SAN FRANCISCO
SEATTLE

TRENTON
WASHINGTOM, DC
WEST CONSHOHOCKEN
WICHTA

WILMINGTOM

215.665.2013 FAX  www.cozen.com

Linda S. Kaiser
Direct Phone 215.665.2099
Direct Fax  215.701.2239

Ikaiser{@eozen.com

1440 TN VUNSNI ¥d
TASKNOJ J3IHI 03AI3IY

Enclosed herewith please find copies of the March 22, April 15 and May 17, 2004
submissions of Blue Cross of Northeastemn Pennsylvania, which submissions have been redacted
in compliance with the July 21, 2004 Order from Judge Pellegrini in the Capital Blue Cross et al.
v. Koken case. Other than the redactions approved by Commonwealth Court, the enclosed
copies differ from the originals only in that any notations asserting confidentiality have been
removed. Per your request, the enclosed copies do not contain any Bates numbering.

I trust you will find the redacted documents to be in compliance with the Court’s Order.
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me.

As a final matter, from our discussions, it is my understanding that the Department plans

to post only the redacted version of the April 15, 2004 submission on its website, and that it does
not consider the March 22 or May 17 submissions to be part of the “application” process being
pursued by the Department. I understand that the Department intends to post the materials on its
website at the earliest possible date. However, 1 also understand that the Department intends to
alert BCNEPA (and the other Blues Plans) before the materials are posted on the website, so that
the companies may be adequately prepared to deal with incoming inquiries from their
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Steve Davis
July 27, 2004
Page 2

subscribers and others regarding these materials. If I have misunderstood any of these matters,

please contact me at the earliest opportunity.

Sincerely,

COZEN O'CONNOR

Ofwbac

By: Linda S. Kaiser

cc: Sandra L. Ykema, Esq. (w/ attachments})
Ed Goodlander, BCNEPA (w/ attachments)

PHILA 1210767301 149949.000
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March 22, 2004

Stephen J. Johnson Randy L. Rohrbaugh

Deputy Commissioner Deputy Commissioner

Office of Corporate and Financial Office of Insurance Product Regulation
Regulation and Market Enforcement

1345 Strawberry Square 1311 Strawberry Square

Hamisburg, PA 17120 Harrisburg, PA 17120
Re: January 5, 2004 Letter Requesting Information

Dear Deputy Johnson and Deputy Rohrbaugh:

By letter dated January 5, 2004, (“January 5 Letter”), as revised January 8, 2004, Hospital
Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania, d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeasterm
Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”) was requested to submit certain information to the Pennsylvania
Insurance Department (“Department ) no later than March 22, 2004, This submission is in
response to that request.

For ease of reference, attached hereto as Attachment ! is a listing of the documents that are
included in this submission.

Inthe J ahuary S Letter, the Department stated:

If you contend that any of the information requested should be maintained as
confidential, please stamp as confidential each page that you believe should be so
maintained, identify the basis upon which the assertion of confidentiality, privilege or
trade secret is premised, and identify the person to whom inquiries regarding the issue of
confidential treatment should be directed. In addition, please submit both complete and
redacted versions of those pages. [Emphasis added].

In the January 5, 2004 Letter, the Department acknowledged that BCNEPA was expected to
produce confidential, proprietary and trade secret information (collectively “Confidential
Information™). Indeed, this submission-contains a vast amount of such Confidential Information.
Pursuant to the request that BCNEPA identify Confidential Information, attached hereto as
Attachment 2 is a “privilege log,” which identifies the documents for which BCNEPA asserts a

1
458.

This statement did not appear in the January 17, 2004 Pennsylvania Bulletin Notice published at 34 Pa.B.
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March 22, 2004 Page 2

confidentiality privilege, and a statement of the asserted basis for BCNEPA.’s claim of
confidentiality. A memorandum in support of BCNEPA'’s assertion of confidentiality for the
documents so identified is attached hereto as Attachment 3. BCNEPA intends to take all steps
necessary and appropriate to ensure that its Confidential Information is not improperly released
into the public domain. BCNEPA has not, and does not hereby, consent to the publication,
dissemination, circulation, release or disclosure of the Confidential Information submitted
herewith. BCNEPA hereby advises that the Department may not rely upon any oral consent to
any such publication, dissemination, circulation, or release by any person for or on behalf of
BCNEPA. Any such consent will be issued by BCNEPA only in 2 writing executed by a duly
authorized officer of BCNEPA.

Finally, please note that by this submission, BCNEPA does not concede that the Department has
authority to mandate that BCNEPA submit an application for approval of a maximum risk based
capital ("RBC”) ratio; to use RBC standards for a purpose other than measuring the minimum
amount of capital appropriate to support an insurer’s overall business operations; to establish a
maximum permissible RBC ratio; to establish a target range of RBC ratios or force BCNEPA to
operate within such a target RBC range; to mandate, direct or approve BCNEPA’s business plans
and strategies, including but not limited to the manner in which BCNEPA intends to utilize its
surplus in the exercise of its sound business judgment; to mandate the distribution of BCNEPA’s
alleged “excess surplus” to plan participants, the Commonwealth’s underinsured and uninsured
citizens, or any other person; to regulate any of BCNEPA’s non-insurance company affiliates; to
approve BCNEPA’s surplus; to solicit public comments on BCNEPA’s current or anticipated
RBC levels; or otherwise seek to impose requirements or take any other action which is outside
of the authority granteéd to the Department by the General Assembly under enacted statutes.
BCNEPA reserves all of its rights to contest or challenge the issnance of the January 17, 2004
Bulletin Notice and all matters arising thereunder or related thereto, or under the January S, 2004
Letter.

Nevertheless, in the spitit of cooperation with our domestic regulator, and in recognition of the
Department’s authority to examine BCNEPA’s books and records, approve BCNEPA’s rates and
reserves, and review certain inter-company transactions conducied by BCNEPA’s insurance -
company subsidiaries, BCNEPA hereby responds to the January 5 Letter by submitting the
enclosed for the Department’s information.

Sincerely,

C-

William C. Reed
Executive Vice President and COO

attachments
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Attachment 1

March 22, 2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (‘BCNEPA”)
Index to Attachments

List of Attachments to March 21, 2004 letter to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department

from BCNEPA.

“Privilege log” listing the documents as to which BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality
privilege, including a statement of the asserted basis for BCNEPA’s claim of
confidentiality

Memorandum Regarding Confidentiality of Documents

Identification of Confidentiality Contact Person

An independent actuarial review and certification from PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLC of
claims unpaid, accrued medical incentive pool and bonus payments, unpaid claim
adjustment expenses, aggregate policy reserves, and accident and health premiums due
and unpaid, premiums received in advance for BCNEPA and HMO of Northeastern
Pennsylvania d/b/a First Prionty Health (“FPH™). First Priority Life Insurance Company
(“FPLIC”) has a certificate of authority from the Department to operate as an insurer, but
has not begun insurance operations. Accordingly, FPLIC has no written premiums or
related accounts on its statutory annual statements so no actuarial review was performed.
Memorandum regarding amended annual statement.

Memorandum regarding description of affiliated foundations.

Incorporation documents filed with the PA Department of State for Hospital Service
Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania Foundation d/b/a The Blue Ribbon Foundation
of Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“Blue Ribbon Foundation™).

Bylaws for Blue Ribbon Foundation.

2002 and 2003 annual report of financial condition for Blue Ribbon Foundation.
Certified statement of Federal tax exemption for Blue Ribbon Foundation.

Listing of Officers for Blue Ribbon Foundation.

Incorporaﬁ;)n documents filed with the PA Department of State for Caring Foundation of
Northeastern Pennsylvania (“Caring Foundation™).

T ———
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14.
15.
16.
17,

18.°

19.

20.

Bylaws for Caring Foundation.

2002 and 2003 annual report of financial condition for Caring Foundation.
Certified statement of Federal tax exemption for Caring Foundation.
Listing of Officers for Caring Foundation.

Listing of Officers for'Blue Ribbon and Caring Foundations cross-referenced to positions
in parent or affiliates, if any.

Memorandum describing social mission activity.

Memorandum describing role of for-profit wholly owned subsidiaries.
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Privilege L.og

Attachment 2

Documents Submitted with its March 22, 2004 Letter

to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department

as to which Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania asseris a

Confidentiality Privilege

Attachment
No.

Description of Document

Applicable
Confidentiality Privileged
(see also attached
Memorandum in Support)

List of Attachments to March 22, 2004 letter to the
Pennsylvania Insurance Department from Blue Cross

Describes and explains
Confidential Information
which is protected under
the RBC statute, Exam
Law, Uniform Trade
Secrets Act, Right to
Know Law, federal tax
law and commeon law

Privilege log

Describes and explains
Confidential Information
which is protected under
the RBC statute, Exam
Law, Uniform Trade
Secrets Act, Right to
Know Law, federal tax
Jaw and common law

Memorandum in Support of Assertions of
Confidentiality Relative to Information Contained in
the March 21, 2004 Submission to the Pennsylvania
Insurance Department

Describes and explains
Confidential Information
which is protected under
the RBC statute, Exam
Law, Uniform Trade
Secrets Act, Right to
Know Law, federal tax
law and common law

Identification of Confidentiality Contact Person

hd

Actuarial certification and review from
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP relative to BCNEPA
and FPH. :

RBC Statute, Exam Law,
Uniform Trade Secret
Act, Right to Know Law,
common Jaw

Memorandum regarding annual statement amendment

RBC Statute, Exam Law,
Uniform Trade Secret
Act, Right to Know Law,
common law
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7. Description of foundafions affiliated with NEPA
8. Articles of Incorporation for Blue Ribbor Foundation
9. Bylaws for Blue Ribbon Foundation Exam Law, Right to
' Know Law, common law
10. 2002 and 2003 annual report of financial condition
- for the Blue Ribbon Foundation
11. Evidence of federal tax exemption for the Blue Federal tax law, Exam
Ribbon Foundation Law, common law
12. . Listing of officers for Blue ribbon Foundation '
13. Articles of Incorporation for Caring Foundation
14. Bylaws for Caring Foundation Exam Law, Right to
Know Law, common law
15. 2002 and 2003 financial report for the Caring
Foundation
16. Evidence of federal tax exemption for the Caring Federal tax law, Exam
Foundation Law, common law
17. Listing of officers for Caring Foundation
18. Listing of officers for Blue Ribbon and Caring
Foundations cross-referenced to positions in parent
and affiliates, if any
19. Memorandum describing social mission activity Exam law, common law
20. Explanation of the role of for-profit subsidiaries in the | Exam law, common law

furtherance of NEPA’s mission
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Attachment 3

March 22,2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Depariment
From Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”)
Memorandum in Support of Assertions of Confidentiality

Background Information

By letter dated Yanuary 5, 2004 (“January 5 Letter™), as revised January 8, 2004, the
Pennsylvania Insurance Department requested that the Hospital Service Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania, d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”) submit
certain information te the Department no later than March 22, 2004. The January 5 Letter
included a copy of a notice the Department intended to publish in the Pennsylvania Bulletin
relating to this subject. That notice was published on January 17, 2004 (“Bulletin Notice™). 34

Pa.B. 458.

In its January 5 Letter, the Department requested that BCNEPA submit the following five
categories of information to the Department by March 22, 2004:

(a)

®)
(c)

(d)

(e)

an independent actuarial review and certification of all claims paid, accrued
medical incentive pool and bonus payments, unpaid claims adjustment expenses,
aggregate policy reserves, aggregate claim reserves, and accidental and health
premium due and unpaid/premiums received in advance/unearned premiums
posted to BCNEPA s statutory annual statements for 2003, and such related
accounts on the life and property & casualty annual statement blanks, in order to
assess the statement of reserves, surplus and risk based capital (“RBC”) ratios;

the submission of an amended annual statement blank, should same be required;

a description of all affiliated foundations or similar affiliated entities, including
charter documents, annual reports of financial condition for 2002 and 2003;
financial reports for 2002 and 2003 showing funding from all sources, including
but not limited to the parent corporation, governments and outside sources; a
certified statement of federal tax exemption; and a listing of officers, including
their positions in the parent corporation or any of the parent’s subsidiaries;

a description of all social mission activity in 2002 and 2003 by BCNEPA and all
subsidiaries; and

an explanation of the role of any for-profit wholly owned subsidiaries in the
furtherance of BCNEPA’s mission.
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BCNEPA Confidentiality Memorandum
Page 2

BCNEPA has submitted information to the Department under a cover letter dated March 22,
2004 (“Submission”}. This Memorandum is included as an Appendix to that Submission.

In its January 5 Letter, the Department stated:!

If you contend that any of the information requested should
be maintained as confidential, please stamp as confidential each
page that you believe should be so maintained, identify the basis
upon which the assertion of confidentiality, privilege or trade
secret is premised, and identify the person to whom inquiries
regarding the issue of confidential treatment should be directed. In
addition, please submit both complete and redacted versions of
those pages. [Emphasis added].

In its January 5, 2004 Letter, the Department acknowledged that the Department expected
BCNEPA to submit confidential, proprietary and trade secret information. Indeed, the
Submission contains a vast amount of such confidential, proprietary and trade secret material
(collectively “Confidential Information™). BCNEPA has identified to the Department all
Confidential Information contained in its Submission. This memorandum is submitted in
support of BCNEPA’s assertion of confidentiality for the documents so identified.

RBC Information is Confidential by Statute

Applicable law (40 P.S. §221.1-B et seq.)* (“RBC statu te™) specifically provides that information
relating to BCNEPA's risk based capital (“RBC™) levels must be protected from public
disclosure. The RBC Statute explicitly acknowledges the confidentiality of RBC information in
several sections, stating in pertinent part:

(@)  The following information filed with the department shall constitute information
that may be damaging to a health organization if made available to its competitors

and shall be confidential:

(1)  RBC reports® to the extent the information in the report is not required to
be included in a publicly available annual statement schedule.

This statement did not appear in the Notice published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

BCNEPA is govemed by the RBC statute pursuant to Section 221.1-B {definition of “health organization™).
3 “RBC report” is defined as “a report of RBC levels.” 40 P.S. §221.1-B (definition of “RBC report”™).
Clearly, the January 5 Letter requested that BCNEPA submit information on its reported RBC levels. BCNEPA was
requested to provide an actuarial review and certification “in order to assess the statement of reserves, surplus and
RBC ratios.” Page 2 of the January 5 letter [emphasis added]. Additionally, the March 22, 2004 information
request is merely a component of a more exlensive investipation that is focused on BCNEPA’s RBC levels. In the
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(2)  RBC plans,’ including the results of reports of any examination or
analysis’ of a health organization performed under this article.

(b)  Except for insurance or other regulatory officials of the Commonwealth or other
Jurisdictions, information under subsection (a) shall be confidential and may not
be subject to subpoena by any Federal, State or other jurisdiction or made public
by the department or any other person without the prior written consent of the -
health orpanization unless the commissioner makes the information public for
purposes of Article V [the liquidation law].

(c) The following shall apply to publication of RBC levels:

() Except as required by this article, the publication, dissemination,
circulation or placement before the public, or directly or indirectly causing
the publication, dissemination, circulation or placement before the public,
of an assertion, representation or statement with repard to the RBC levels
or component derived in the calculation of RBC levels of 2 health
organization, including assertions, representations or statements intended
or used to rank health organizations, by an insurer, agent, broker or [any]
other person jn a newspaper, magazine or other publication, notice,
pamphiet, letter or other printed matter or by broadcast or electronic
transmission, is prohibited.... 40 P.S. § 221.11-B [emphasis added].

Accordingly, the RBC statute makes it abundantly clear that RBC information is not be disclosed
or disseminated by BCNEPA, the Department or any other person. For this reason, BCNEPA
asserts a confidentiality privilege for all documents reporting BCNEPAs current or projected
RBC levels, all analysis relating to BCNEPA’s current or projected RBC levels, and all

January 17 Bulletin Notice (a copy of which was included in the January 5 Letter), the Department requested that
BCNEPA supply additional information no later than April 15, 2004. The Bulletin Notice specifically requests that
BCNEPA 1dentify a target RBC ratio, and submit a business plan relating to the managements of its REBC levels.
Accordingly, the March 22 Submission is appropriately viewed as an “RBC report” under the RBC statute,

4 An “RBC plan” is defined as a comprehensive financial plan filed in accordance with [40 P.S. §221.5-B] .”
40 P.S. §221.1-B (definition of “RBC plan”). Section 221.5-B requires an RBC plan when a health organization has
sustained a “company action level event.” Even though BCNEPA has not sustained a “company action level event,”
the Bulletin Notice requests that BCNEPA submit an RBC plan to the Department to include justification of its RBC
levels, and proposed actions to lower its RBC levels in the future. Because the Department is requesting that
BCNEPA submit a RBC plan, the confidentiality provisions of the RBC statute apply to protect the submitted
information relating to BCNEPA's current or proposed RBC levels, identification of current or anticipated
conditions that may affect such RBC levels, and the business plan that BONEPA plans to follow to manage its RBC
- levels in the future,

5 Clearly, the January 5 Letter and Bulletin Notice request that BCNEPA perform analysis relating to its

current and projected RBC levels. Additionally, the January 5 Letter and Bulletin Notice advises that the
Department has undertaken various analysis of RBC levels for the Blues Plan to date, and intends to conduct
additional analysis in the futare. The RBC statute requires that all such analyses be maintained as confidential.
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statements relating to BCNEPA''s current or projected RBC levels or components derived in the
calculation of such RBC levels. BCNEPA also asserts this confidentiality privilege for all
documents prepared or obtained by the Department which relate to the reporting or analysis of
BCNEPA'’s current or projected RBC levels or components derived in the calculation of such
RBC levels.

The Examination Law Mandates Confidentiality

BCNEPA. is also entitled to confidentiality protection under the Examination Law, 40 P.S.
§ 323.1 et seq. (“Exam Law”).® Under that law, all documents produced during an examination’
must be held as confidential, and are not subject to public disclosure.

All working papers, recorded information, documents and copies thereof produced by,
obtained by or disclosed to the department or any other person in the course of an
examination made under this article shall be given confidential treatment and are not
subject to subpoena and may not be made public by the depattment or any other person
except to the extent provided in subsection (e) [relating to the final examination report].
Access may also be granted to the NAIC. Such parties must agree 1 writing prior to
receiving the information to provide it the same confidential treatment as required by the
act of June 1, 1957 (P.L. 390, No. 212), referred to as the Right-To-Know Law, unless
the prior written consent of the company to which it pertains has been obtained. 40 P.S.
§323.5(f) [emphasis added].

Under Section 323.5(f), confidential treatment is required by law to be applied to documents
created by, obtained by or disclosed to the Department during the course of an examination.
Although no “examination warrant” ® has been issued to BCNEPA, there is no doubt that the
Department is conducting an “examination” of BCNEPA in this matter. The Department has
requested BCNEPA’s books and records in order that the Department can verify BCNEPA’s
financial condition and ascertain whether BCNEPA is in compliance with the laws of the
Commonwealth® The Department is conducting an analysis of BCNEPA s financial statement,
analyzing other financial information and ratios, and evaluating actuarial opinions obtained by
BCNEPA.'® Further, the Department has retained consultants to assist it in its review, and has

6 BCNEPA is governed by the Exam Law pursuant to 40 P.S, §323.2 (definition of “insurer” includes

hospital plan corporations).

7 BCNEPA acknowledges that a final report of examination, and the insurer’s response therelo, are public
information. 40 P.S. §323.5(e)(1).

5 The Exam Law provides for the issuance of an examination warrant prior to the commencement of an

examination. 40 P.S. §323.4(a).
s See e.g. 40 P.S. §323.3(a).

10 See e.g. 40 P.S. §323.3(b).
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required that BCNEPA and the other Blues Plans pay for the costs of such consultants. The only
available statutory authority for the imposition of such costs on BCNEPA is the Exam Law.!!
The Department is clearly relying upon the Exam Law as a basis for its authornity in this matter;
BCNEPA understood that if it did not agree to pay these consultant fees, the Department would
fofmally institute a financial examnination.

Because the Department is acting as if an examination has been initiated, BCNEPA is entitled to
the confidentiality protections afforded by the Exam Law. The Exam Law makes it abundantly
clear that examination work papers prepared, and documents produced, during the course of an
examination are not subject to public disclosure. Accordingly, BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality
privilege for all documents included in its Submission, because they are submitted relative to a
de facto Department examination. BCNEPA also asserts a confidentiality privilege over work
papers and other documents prepared or obtained by the Department which relate to this matter.

BCNEPA’s Submission contains “Trade Secrets” Entitled to Protection from Disclosure
under the Uniform Trade Secrets Act

On February 19, 2004, Governor Rendell signed the Uniform Trade Secrets Act ("“UTSA™), 12
Pa. C. 8. § 5301 et seq. The new law prohibits the Insurance Department from disclosing the
trade secrets that are contained in BCNEPA’s Submission. '

In Section 5302 of the UTSA, a “trade secret” is defined as follows:

Information, including a formula, drawing, pattern, compilation including a customer list,
program, device, method, technique or process that: -

(1) derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being
generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by,
other persons who can obtain the economic value from its disclosure or use.

(2) is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to
maintain jts secrecy [emphasis added].

Section 5302 defines “misappropriation” to include the following:

u The Department has no authority to require that BCNEPA pay for consultants retained by the Department,

absent a statutory provision imposing such payment obligation on BCNEPA. See e.g. §§323.4(d) and 323.7

(expenses may be assessed against the licenses), Compare 40 P.S. §1171.8 (no statutory authority to assess the costs

of an investigation). While the RBC law authorizes the department to retain consultants and charge such expenses

. to the health organization, this provision applies only if there has been a “regulalory action event.” 40 P.S. §221.6-
B(d) and (). Inasmuch as BCNEPA has not sustained a “regulatory action event,” the RBC law does not provide

any foundation for the Department’s requirement that BCNEPA pay a portion of the expenses incurred by the

Department's consultants in this matter.
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(1) acquisition of a trade secret by one who knows or has reason to know that it
was acquired by improper means; or

(2) disclosure or use of a trade secret of another without express or implied
consent where the disclosure is done by one who:

(1) used improper means to acquire knowledge of the trade secret; -

(i) kmew or had reason to know at the time of disclosure that the trade secret
was:

(A)  derived from or through a person who had utilized improper means
10 acquire it;

(B) acquired under circumstances giving rise to a duty to maintain its
secrecy or limit its vse; or

(C)  derived from or through a person who owed a duty to the lawful
possessor of that trade secret to maintain its secrecy or limit its use.

The Department is prohibited from disclosing any BCNEPA trade secrets under §5302(2)(11)(B),
which prohibits the disclosure of a trade secret by a person'? who, at the time of disclosure, knew
or had reason to know that the trade secret was acquired under circumstances giving rise to a
duty to maintain its secrecy or limit its use. BCNEPA has identified to the Department the trade
secrets that are included within its Submission, and has expended considerable time, effort and
expense to maimtain the confidentiality of its trade secrets. BCNBEPA has not consented to the
disclosure of its trade secrets by the Department. The Department has statutory duties to
maintain the secrecy of BCNEPA's trade secret under the RBC Law, the Exam Law, and the'
Right to Know Law, 64 P.S. §66.1 et seq. (discussed below). Accordingly, the UTSA prohibits
the Department from disclosing BCNEPA'’s trade secrets.

BCNEPA’s Information is not a “Public Record”

BCNEPA’s submitted information is not available for inspection or duplication by a person other

than the Department under the Right to Know Law, 64 P.S. § 66.1 et seq. This statute defines a
“public record” as follows:

12 The Insurance Department falls within the UTSA’s definition of a “person,” which includes any

“government, governmental subdivision or agency....” 12 Pa.C.8 §5302.
13

UTSA provides for injunctive relief, monetary and exemplary damages, and an award of attorneys fees, for
violations of the act.
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Any account, voucher or contract dealing with the receipt or disbursement of funds by an
agency or its acquisition, use or disposal of services or of supplies, materials, equipment
or other property and any minute, order or decision by an agency fixing the personal or
property rights, privileges, immunities, duties or obligations of any person or group of
persons: Provided, That the ferm "public records™ shall not mean any report,
communication or other paper, the publication of which would disclose the institution,
"progress or result of an investigation undertaken by an agency in the performance of its
official duties, except those reports filed by agencies pertaining to safety and health in
industrial plants; it shall not include any record, document, material, exhibit. pleading,
report, memorandum or other paper, access to or the publication of which is prohibited,
restricted or forbidden by statute law or order or decree of court, or which would operate
to the prejudice or impairment of a person's reputation or personal security, or which
would result in the loss by the Commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions or
commissions or State or municipal authorities of Federal funds, excepting therefrom
however the record of any conviction for any criminal act. 65 P.S. §66.1 (definition of
“public record” [emphasis added].

Under the Right to Know Law, only “public records” are available for public
dissemination.

Unless otherwise provided by law, a public record shall be
accessible for inspection and duplication by a requestor in
accordance with this act.... Nothing in this act shal] provide
access to a record which is not a public record. 65 P.S. §66.2
[emphasis added]. '

It is clear from the January 5 Letter and Bulletin Notice that the Department is conducting an
investigation. BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege for all documents that evidence the
institution, progress or results of the Depariment’s investigation in this matter, including the
documents submitted by BCNEPA to assist the Department in its analysis, because such
documents specifically are exempted from the definition of “public record.”* Additionally,
BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege for its documents on the basis that the RBC statute,
Exam Law and the UTSA provide that BCNEPA.’s information is not to be disseminated.
Because confidentiality is “otherwise provided by law,” BCNEPA’s information is not a “public
record” and cannot be disclosed. Finally, because the RBC law explicitly acknowledges that
réelease of RBC information would be “damaging”' to BCNEPA, BCNEPA asseits a
confidentiality privilege based upon the potential for prejudice to or impairment of its reputation.

14 The confidentiality protections available under the Right to Know law are very strong, Indeed, an agency

or public official who violates the Right to Know Law is subject to criminal prosecution. 65 P.S. §66.5(a).
. 8 40 P.S. § 221.11-B(a).
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The submission also includes the bylaws of two foundations affiliated with BCNEPA: Hospital
Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania Foundation d/b/a/ Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue
Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania and the Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania.
Bylaws of non-profit organizations are not required to be filed with the Secretary of State and
thils are not available as public records. Accordingly, BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality
privilege under the Right To Know Law with respect to the bylaws included in the Submission.

The IRS Letter Rulings Regarding Tax-Exemption are Not Public Documents

The letter rulings issued by the IRS granting tax-exempt status are not public documents under
federal law. Accordingly, BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege for the IRS letter rulings
which are provided with the Submission.

Statements Regarding Fullillment of Social Mission are not Public Documents

BCNEPA assets a confidentiality privilege regarding the statements regarding the fulfillment and
effectuation of its social mission for the reasons set forth above, and under common law
principles. Such statements were prepared and are submitted to the Department relative only to
the ongoing investigation and examination. BCNEPA is currently the defendant in litigation
relating to alleged “excess surplus” issues.'® BCNEPA believes that it would be inappropriate to
release, disclose or disseminate these statements to the public, as they were prepared solely for
this Submission fo the Depariment.

Further these statements contain information which relate to the premium rates that BCNEPA
may charge in the future, and/or rating methodologies that BCNEPA may employ in the future.
The statements outline BCNEPA’s business plans, including matters relating to organizational
investment retumns and technology expenditures. These statements also contain information
about the Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania’s participation in the CHIP Program.
All such information constitutes confidential, proprietary and trade secrets that belong to
BCNEPA. These business plans and strategies were prepared and implemented at great time,
effort and expense to BCNEPA, and BCNEPA has taken all appropriate steps to keep such
matters out of the public domain. Further, such Confidential Information is not known to the
public and certainly is not known to competitors. Should any of this information fall into the
hands of competitors, BCNEPA will be severely and irreparably prejudiced. For this reason,
BCNEPA. asserts a confidentiality privilege relative to all information contained in its
Submission which contains information relating to BCNEPA’s past or anticipated future income,
liabilities, expenses, investment returns, reserves or reserve strategies, business plans, or rate-
making strategies.

Documents relating to the Actuarial Review are Confidential Information

16 Petty v. Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania d/bfa/ Blue Cross of Northeastern

Pennsylvania, Lackawanna Co. Ct. Com. PL.. No. 02-2258.
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The January 5 letter requested that BCNEPA obtain and provide to the Department an actuarial
certification for claims, as of year-end 2003, and other actuarial information. BCNEPA asserts a
confidentiality privilege with respect to the actuarial certification and all of the other actuarial
information prepared by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“Actuarial Information™). The Actuarial
Information includes information regarding reserving strategies and actuarial assumptions. The
Actuarial Information also includes the workpapers from and analyses by the actuary. All of this
material is Confidential Information under applicable common law principles. Release of any of
the Actuarial Information would permit BCNEPA’s competitors to gain an unfair advantage with
respect to knowledge of medical care cost trends, operating performance, prospective rate
making matters, and would substantially and irreparably harm BCNEPA. BCNEPA has
expended a large sum of money to obtain the Actuanal Information, and has taken all appropriate
steps to protect such information from disclosure in the public domain. Furthermore, disclosure
of the Actuarial Information would cause substantial disruption in the marketplace.

Documents which reference Confidential Information are also Confidential Information.

BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege over documents (or those portions of documents)
contained in the Submission which reference Confidential Information. To the extent that a
document identifies, explains or describes Confidential Information, such references are
confidential for the reason applicable to the Confidential Information itself. In particular,

~ BCNEPA asserts a confidentiality privilege over this memorandum and the “privilege log™ on
this basis.

The Confidentiality Privilege is Asserted with respect to BCNEPA and its Affiliates

For ease of reference herein, BCNEPA has been 1dentified as the entity asserting the
confidentiality privileges applicable to the Confidential Information. However, each of
BCNEPA, the Blue Ribbon Foundation, the Caring Foundation, First Priority Life Insurance
Company, Universal Managed Care, Inc., HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania d/b/a First Priority
Health, Erin Group Administrators, Inc. and BCNEPA's other affiliates hereby assert a
_confidentiality privilege with respect to any and all Confidential Information in which they have
a legally protectable interest.

Conclusion

The documents in BCNEPA’s Submission are entitled to confidentiality under the RBC and
Exam Laws, the Right to Know Law, and the Uniform Trade Secrets Act. Additionally,
BCNEPA’s informnation is entitled to confidentiality under common law principles, whereunder
confidential, proprietary and trade secret information is entitled to confidential treatment. All
information identified by BCNEPA as confidential is entitled to protection from disclosure by
the Department. Further, all RBC reports and analyses created or obtained by the Department
are entitled to confidential treatment under the RBC statute. All Department work papers
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(including materials prepared or obtained by Department consultants) are confidential under the
Exam Law. All Department analysis and work papers are also protected from disclosure under
the Right to Know Law.

BCNEPA requests _that the Department afford BCNEPA advance notice of any intent to publish,
disseminate, circulate, distribute, release, disclose or otherwise make available any of the
information that BCNEPA has marked as confidential, or that the Department has otherwise
prepared or obtained relating to this matter. BCNEPA requests that BCNEPA be notified at least
seven (7} calendar days in advance, such that BCNEPA can discuss the proposed dissemination
with the Department, and/or otherwise protect itself from the irreparable harm that would ensue
should Confidential Information be released inappropriately.

Further, BCNEPA requests_that the Department follow its established procedures for release of
any information in the Submission that BCNEPA has not identified as confidential. Pursuant to
the Right to Know Law, agencies are required to establish written policies to implement that law.
64 P.S. §66.8(a). Indeed, the Department has issued such written procedures, which are posted

on the Department’s website.!” In releasing non-confidential public records, BCNEPA requests
that the Depariment strictly follow its published written procedures, and the requirements
(including time limitations) prescribed by the Right to Know Law. In light of those established
procedures, posting any of the non-confidential materials submitted by BCNEPA on the
Department’s website would be inappropriate and violative of the Right to Know Law.

BCNEPA intends to take all steps necessary and appropriate to ensure that its Confidential
Information is not improperly released into the public domain. BCNEPA has not, and does not
hereby, consent to the publication, dissemination, circulation, release or disclosure of the
Confidential Information submitted herewith. BCNEPA hereby advises that the Department may
* not rely upon any oral consent to any such publication, dissemination, circulation, release or
disclosure by any person for or on behalf of BCNEPA. Any such consent will be issued by
BCNEPA only in a writing executed by a duly authorized officer of BCNEPA.

17 See www.ins.state.pa.us/ PA Right to Know Policy.
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March 22, 2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”)
Identification of Confidentiality Contact Person

All questions regarding information considered confidential within this'submission
should be directed to:

Edwin R. Goodlander, Esq.

Senior Vice President, Legal and Government Affairs, Chief Counsel and Secretary
Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania

19 North Main Strect

Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711

570-200-6475
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Prim'alerhm.sef?oopers LLp
Report of Independent Accountants
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors e OI?VEDACTED
HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania, Inc. FIDENTY,y
19 North Main Street

Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 18711

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by HMO of
Northeastern Pennsylvania, Inc. (d/b/a First Priority Health) (the “Company™), solely to assist
you in the matter identified in the January 5, 2004 letter from the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Insurance Department to Denise S. Cesare (the “January 5% Letter™). The
Company is responsible for the submission identified in the January 5™ Letter. This agreed-
upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of
these procedures is solely the responsibility of the party specified in this report. Conseguently,
we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either
for the purpose for which this report bas been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures we performed, and our findings, are described below.

1. Provide a summary of terms and an assessment of risk transfer for reinsurance contracts.

Findings -

2. For accident and health premiums due and nnpaid:

a2 Obtain a summary of the components of accounts receivable balance that comprise the
accident and health premiums due and unpaid line in the Annual Statement. The '
summary should be formatted as gross accounts receivable, less unapplied cash, less
non-admitted balances over 90 days, less otber allowances for doubtful accounts in
excess of 90 day non-admit, plus.or less any other miscellaneous debits or credits.

Findings —

REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL

I
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b. Obtain a summary of the general ledger accounts that comprise the gross accounts

receivable balance.

Findings —
—taw RED .
Account Description Balance Tiy,

c. For the gross accounts receivable accounts included in the accident and health
premiums due and unpaid line item that are supported by one or more detailed aging
reports, agree the account balance, per the general ledger, to the aging report(s).
Identify any reconciling items between each general ledger account and the related
aging report(s) and obtain written explanations for reconciling items in excess of
$50,000.

Findings -

4 Summarize the aging by category (e.g. 0-30/30-60/ 60-90 / 90+) for each of the
aging reports obtained in Step 2(c).

Findings - .

Aging (in days)
AT R

[ et o e e B D L oo

e. For accounts receivable accounts included in the accident and health premiums due
and unpaid line item that are not supported by a detailed aging report, agree the
account balance, per the general ledger, to a supporting schedule or reconciliation
prepared by the Company. Obtain 2 written explanation from the Company as to why
the receivable balanceis: C T

Finding —

coiEDACTED
H'DEN TIAL
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f  Obtain a listing of unapplied cash account balances included in the accident and health
premiums due and unpaid line and identify the related accounts receivable account
from Step 2(b) above to which the unapplied cash account relates.

Findings —

[

g. Obtain a detailed listing of debit balances recorded in each unapplied cash account.

Findings

T - Balance

L Obtain a listing of non-admitted accounts receivable balances included in the accident
and health premium due and unpaid line and agree the non-admitted accounts
receivable balances to the over 90 day amounts on the aging repots obtained in Step

2(c).

i From the information obtained in Step 2(c), select a sample of 20 individual
receivables balances and examine supporting documentation to verify the accuracy of
the aging by agreeing the invoice date to a supporting invoice and performing a
recalculation of the aging of the individual receivables. -

] Obtain a summary of any other bad debt reserve accouat balances included in the
accident and health premiums due and unpaid line and identify the related accounts
receivable balance from Step 2(c) to which the bad debt reserve relates.
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k. For those accounts receivable accounts supported by a detailed aging report and to
which the Company applies a bad debt reserve percentage to each aging category,
calculate the bad debt reserve related to the respective aging category as a percent of
each aging category.

Findings —
1. For those accounts receivable accounts not supported by a detailed aging report,

~ calculate the bad debt reserve related to the respective account as a percent of the total
accounts receivable balance.

Findings -

m. Obtain an analysis of bad debt write-offs for 2003 as a percentage of each accounts
receivable balance for which there is an allowance for doubtful accounts in excess of
the over 90 day balance and compare that write-off percentage to the percentages
derived in Step 2(k) or Step 2(I) as applicable.

Findings —

3. For premiums received in advance:

a  Obtain a summary of the components that comprise the accident and health premiums
received in advance line in the Annual Statement.

Findings — .

Balance
$

b. Obtain a summary of general ledger accounts that are included in the premiums
received in advance line in the Annual Statement. :

Findings —

Balance
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. Obtain a detailed listing of individual account balances and agree to balance recorded
on the general ledger.

Findings —

d. From the information obtained in Step 3(a), select 2 sample of 20 items.from each
detailed listing of premiums received in advance and examine the supporting cash
remiftance materials and the underlying invoice to determine that the date of cash
receipt was prior to January 1, 2004 and the date of service was as of, or subsequent
to, January 1, 2004.

Findings —
We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be
the expression of an opinion on the matter identified in the January 5™ Letter. Accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters

might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Company, and is not intended
to be and should pot be used by anyone other than the specified party.

?@WW

March 18, 2004
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS CoNFIpmED,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Report of Independent Accountants

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania
19 North Main Street

Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 18711

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Hospital
Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania (d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania) (the “Company), solely to assist you in the matter identified in the January 3,
2004 Jetter from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Insurance Department to Denise S.
Cesare (the “January 5™ L etter’™). The Company is responsible for the submission identified in
the January 5% [ etter. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance
with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the party
specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of
the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested
or for any other purpose.

The procedures we performed, and our findings, are described below.

1. Provide a summary of terms and an assessment of risk transfer for reinsurance contracts.

Findings -

2. For accident and health premiums due and unpaid:

a  Obtain a summary of the components of acconnts receivable balance that comprise the
accident and health premiums due and unpaid line in the Annual Statement. The
summary should be formatted as gross accounts receivable, less unapplied cash, less
non-admitted balances over 90 days, less other allowances for doubtful accounts in
excess of 90 day non-admit, plus or less any other miscellaneous debits or credits,

Findings -
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b. Obtain a summary of the general ledger accounts that compfise the gross accounts
receivable balance.

Findfngs - ] . -

Balance_
$

—

$

c. For the gross accounts receivable accounts included in the accident and health
premiums due and unpaid line item that are supported by one or more detailed aging
reports, agree the account balance, per the general ledger, to the aging report(s).
Identify any reconciling items between each general ledger account and the related
aging report(s) and obtain written explanations for reconciling items In excess of
$50,000.

Findings —

d.  Summarize the aging by category (e.g. 0-30/30-60/ 60-90 / 90+) for each of the
aging reports obtained in Step 2(c)-

Findings -

e. - For accounts receivable accounts included in the accident and health premiums due
and unpaid line item that are not supported by a detailed aging report, agree the
account balance, per the general ledger, to a supporting schedule or reconciliation
prepared by the Company. Obtain a written explanation from the Company as to why
the receivable balance 1s-

Finding —
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f  Obtain a listing of unapplied cash account balances included in the accident and health
premiums due and unpaid line and identify the related accounts receivable account
from Step 2(b) above to which the unapplied cash account relates.

Findings —

2 Obtain a detailed listing of debit balances recorded in each unapplied cash account.

Findings ~

h. Obtain a listing of non-admitted accounts receivable balances included in the accident
and health premium due and unpaid line aind agree the non-admitted accounts
receivable balances to the over 90 day amounts on the aging reports obtained in Step
2(c).

Finding -

i. From the information obtained in Step 2(c), select a sample of 20 individual
receivables balances and examine supporting documentation to verify the accuracy of
the aging by agreeing the invoice date to a supporting invoice and performing a
recalculation of the aging of the individual receivables.

Findings —
j.  Obtain a summary of any other bad debt reserve account balances included in the

accident and health premiums due and unpaid line and identify the related accounts - . —
receivable balance from Step 2(c) to which the bad debt reserve relates.

Findings —
——- k: - For those accounts receivable accounts supported by a detailed aging report and to
which the Company applies a bad debt reserve percentage to each aging category,
calculate the bad debt reserve related to the respective aging category as a percent of

each aging category.

Findings - : i
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L' For those accounts receivable accounts not supported by a detailed aging report,
calculate the bad debt reserve related to the respective account as a percent of the total
accounts receivable balance.

Findings —

m. Obtain an analysis of bad debt write-offs for 2003 as a percentage of each accounts
receivable balance for which there is an allowance for doubtful accounts in excess of
the over 90 day balance and compare that write-off percentage to the percentages
derived in Step 2(K) or Step 2(1) as applicable.

Findings —

3. For premiums received in advance:

a Obtain 2 summary of the components that comprise the accident and health premiums
received in advance line in the Annual Statement.

Findings —

dalance

b. Obtain a summary of general ledger accounts that are included in the premiums
received in advance line in the Annual Statement.

Findings -

Balance

c. Obtain a detailed listing of individual account balances and agree to balance recorded
on the general ledger. '

Findings —
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d.  From the information obtained in Step 3(a), select a sample of 20 items from each
detailed listing of premiums received in advance and examine the supporting cash
remittance materials and the underlying invoice to determine that the date of cash
receipt was prior to January 1, 2004 and the date of service was as of, or subsequent
to, January 1, 2004.

Findings —
We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be
the expression of an opinion on the matter identified in the January 5" Letter. Accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters

might have come to our attention that would have been reported-to youw

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Company, and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified party.

T Resesinbmcceompere a7

March 18, 2004
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BLUE CROSS OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

Actuarial Determination of Point Estimate of Recorded Claim Liability
Reserves

As of December 31, 2003
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PricewateshouseCoopers LLP

March 18, 2004

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania
19 North Main Street '

Wilkes-Baire, Pennsylvania 18711

Dear Audit Comx-n.itlee: Members:

We are pleased to present the results of our review of the recorded reserves of Hospital Service
Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania (d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvam.a) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as BCNEPAY), as of December 31, 2003.

BCNEPA retained PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) to perform an independent analysis- of
BCNEPA's recorded reserves as of December 31, 2003. This valuation has been conducted .in
accordance with the guidelines put forth by the Pennsylvania Insurance Department! and generally
accepted actnarial principles and practices.

The actuaries involved in this engagement are members of the Society of Actuaries and other professional
actuarial organizations and meet the “General Qualification Standard for Public Statements of Actuarial
Opinion” relating to healthcare benefit plans.

Our calculations were based on claims information, enrollment data, and other plan information furnished
by BCNEPA.

The valuation followed generally accepted actuarial methods and we performed such tests as we
considered pecessary to assure the accuracy of the resuits. The amounts presented in this report have
been determined according to the actuarial assumptions and methods stated berein. It should be

recognized, bowever, that because future events frequently do not occur as expected, there are usually
differences between projected and actual results. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the
projected values will materialize.

Should you have any questions, please call us. Respectfully submitted,

~ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Member of the American Academy of Actuaries

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
BCNEPA 00071
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Section I — Actuarial Opinion

I _», am associated with the firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. I am a
Fellow of the Society of Actuaries and also a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries. 1
meet the American Academy of Actuaries Qualification Standards for Statements of Actuarial
Opinion for Health Insurance Organizations and have been retained by BCNEPA to provide an
opinion with regard to loss reserves, actuarial liabilities and related items.

] have examined the actuarial assumptions and methods used in determining the net liability for
those items listed below, as included in the Annual Statement of BCNEPA as prepared for filing
with the state regulatory officials as of December 31, 2003. T relied upon records, summaries,
and other supporting data prepared by responsible officers and employees of the company. In
other respects, my examination included such review of the actuarial assumptions and actuarial
methods and such tests of the actuarial calculations as I considered necessary.

Based on my expertise and qualifications, I have limited the scope of my review to-the recorded
reserves for the following insurance companies (also referred to as subsidiaries) of BCNEPA:

» HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania
> Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania

In my opinion, for the entities upon which I am opining, the amounts carried in the respective
Annual Statements, for the insurance companies listed above, on account of the actuarial items
identified in the attached exhibits to this report, prepared in response to the request by the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Insurance Department in their letter dated January 5, 2004 to
Denise S. Cesare, President & Chief Executive Officer of BCNEPA:

> Are computed in accordance with commonly accepted actuarial standards consistently
applied and are fairly stated in accordance with sound actuarial principles;

> Are based on actuarial assumptions relevant to contract provisions and appropriate to the
purpose for which this report was prepared;

» Meet the requirements of the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania;

> Include appropriate provision for all actuarial items which the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania Insurance Department has requested to be included within the scope of this

renart.

Except where otherwise noted, actuarial methods, considerations and analyses used in forming
my opinion conform to the appropriate Standards of Practice as promulgated from time to time
by the Actuarial Standards Board, which standards form the basis of this statement of opinion. I
certify that the items above have been determined appropriately; however, because future events
frequently do not occur exactly as expected, there are usually differences between projected and
actual results.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP I
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Section I — Actuarial Opinion
(Continued)
Respectfully submitted,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
March 18, 2004

_ . FSA Date

Member, American Academy of Actuaries
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 2
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PricewaterhouseCoooers LLP
STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL OPINION

L__  am associated with the firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. 1 am a2 member
of the American Academy of Actuaries and have been retained by HMO of Northeastern
Pennsylvania (the Plan) with regard to loss reserves, actuarial liabilities and related items.

1 have examined the assumptions and methods used in determining loss reserves, actuarial
labilities and related items listed below, as shown in the annual statement of the organization as
prepared for filing with state regulatory officials as of December 31, 2003:

Claims Unpaid (Page 3, line 1) $33,028,263

Accrued Medical Incentive Pool and Bonus Payments $ 1,426,959
(Page 3, line 2)

Unpaid Claims Adjustment Expense (Page 3, line 3) $ 1,607,856

Aggregate Policy Reserves (Page 3, line 4) § -0

I relied upon underlying records and/or summaries prepared by the responsible officers or
employees of the Plar. In other respects, my examination included such review of the
assumptions and methods used and such tests of the calculations as I considered necessary.

In my opinion, the amounts carried in the balance sheet on account of the items identified above:

« Are in accordance with accepted actuarial standards consistently applied and are fairly stated
in accordance with sound actuarial principles

e Are based on actuarial assumptions relevant to contract provisions and appropriate to the
purpose for which the statement was prepared

« Meet the requirements of the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

« Make a good and sufficient provision for all unpaid claims and other actuarial liabilities of
the organization under the terms of its contracts and agreements

 Are computed on the basis of assumptions consistent with those used in computing the
corresponding items in the annual statement of the preceding year-end

« _Include appropriate provision for all actuanial iterns that ought to be established

The Underwriting and Investment Exhibit—Part 2B was prepared consistent with section 3.6,
“Follow-Up Studies,” contained in Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 5, “Incurred Health and
Disability Claims™ adopted by Actuarial Standards Board of the American Academy of Actuaries
in December 2000.

Actuarial methods, considerations, and analyses used in forming my opinion conform to the

relevant Standards of Practice as promulgated from time to time by the Actuarial Standards
Board, which standards form the basis of this statement of opinion.
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REDAC
CONFppnED STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL OPINION

This statement has been prepared for inclusion with HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania’s
statutory annual report, for filing with the authorities of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and
for filing with the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association and is intended for no other purpose.

~ ,FSA,MAAA
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

February 16, 2004
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PRICEAATERHOUSE( QOPERS CONTTDEN TRy,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL OPINION

L. . am associated with the firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. I am a member
of the American Academy of Actuaries and have been retained by Hospital Service Association
of Northeastern Pennsylvania (the Plan) with regard to loss reserves, actuarial liabilities and
related items. :

I have examined the assumptions and methods used in determining loss reserves, actuarial
liabilities and related items listed below, as shown in the annual statement of the organization as
prepared for filing with state regulatory officials as of December 31, 2003:

Claims Unpaid (Page 3, line 1} $53,316,837
Unpaid Claims Adjustment Expense (Page 3, line 3) $1,651,902
Aggregate Policy Reserves (Page 3, line 4) $8,380,213

I relied upon underlying records and/or summaries prepared by the responsible officers or
employees of the Plan. In other respects, my examination included such review of the
assumptions and methods used and such tests of the calculations as I considered necessary.

In my opinion, the amounts carried in the balance sheet on account of the items identified above:

e Are in accordance with accepted actuarial standards consistently applied and are fairly stated
in accordance with sound actuarial principles

« Are based on actuarial assumptions relevant to contract provisions and appropriate to the
purpose for which the statement was prepared

« Meet the requirements of the laws of the Commonweazlth of Pennsylvania

« Make a good and sufficient provision for all unpaid claims and other actuarial liabilities of
the organization under the terms of its contracts and agreements

e Are computed on the basis of assumptions consistent with those used in computing the
corresponding items in the annual statement of the preceding year-end

-e__Include apnropriate provision for all actuarial items that ught to be established

. The Underwriting and Investment Exhibit-—Part 2B.was prepared consistent with section 3.6, _
“Follow-Up Studies,” contained in Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 5, “Incurred Health and
Disability Claims™ adopted by Actuarial Standards Board of the American Academy of Actuaries
in December 2000.

Actuarial methods, considerations, and analyses used in forming mj opinion conform to the
relevant Standards of Practice as promulgated from time to time by the Actuarial Standards
Board, which standards form the basis of this statement of opinjon.
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STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL OPINION

“This statement has been prepared for inclusion with Hospital Service Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania’s statutory annual report, for filing with the authorities of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and for filing with the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association and
is intended for no other purpose.

! FSA, MAAA o REpy
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ONggy, EJ Ep

February 16, 2004
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Section II — Executive Summary CONFIp g 1;{%?%

Introduction

Pursuant to the January 5, 2004 letter from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Insurance
Department to Denise S. Cesare, we are providing an independent actuarial review and
certification of claims unpaid, accrued medical incentive pool and bonus payments, unpaid
claims adjustment expenses, and aggregate policy reserve as posted to the companies’ statutory
annual statements for 2003.

Point estimates were calculated for the following insurance subsidiaries of BCNEPA

» HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania
> Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania

Point Estimate as of December 31, 2003

In preparing the results of this review, we bhave relied upon information provided to us by
BCNEPA regarding claims information and enrollment. While the scope of our engagement did
pot call for us to perform an audit or independent verification of this information, we have
reviewed this information for reasonableness, but have not audited it. The accuracy of the results
presented in this memo is dependent upon the accuracy and completeness of the underlying
information.

In our analysis of BCNEPA’s claims and enrollment data, we have applied accepted actuarnal
techniques to calculate a point estimate which we believe is neither excessive nor deficient in
representing the reserve to be held for claims incurred but not reported as of December 31, 2003.

The table on the following page details the reserve point estimate we determined for BCNEFA
by subsidiary and in total, compared to the estimate BCNEPA determined.

PwC Roserve BCHEPA Reserve Implled implied
Est @ 1273172003 Est @ 123172003 Margln % Margln §

HMO of Northeasiem Pennsylvania s
Hospital Service Association of Nertheasiem Pennsytvanla 5
TOTAL k)
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 5
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Section II — Executive Summary
{Continued)

Section III contains detailed sumnmaries of the reserve point estimate by subsidiary.

The following page displays a reconciliation of the line item adjustments to the reserve estimate
to the insurance blanks, by subsidiary. BCNEPA and PwC’s reconciliations are shown.

Hosplal Senaes Associabon of
l HMO of Hortheastem PA Northeasiem PA
. Recorasd
Reserva PwC Estimale Resarve PwC Estmata
F Haalth Anmcal Stalement I |

Line 1 Clsims Unpadd 5 5- $ 3

Lima 2 Ancruod Medeca) incentiva Pool and Bomes Payments s - < 3

Lna 2 Uinpald Claims Adpustmenl Expenses H s s $

Lined  Apgregate Pobcy Reserves $ s 5 s

Sabiotal - Heatth Reserves - 1 s 3

Rep
DENT
1ar,
3

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 6
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REDACTED

. CONFID
Section [1 — Executive Summary ENTIAL

(Continued)

Paid Claims by Service Month and Payment Month

BCNEPA and its subsidiaries provided paid claims information by incurred month and payment
month for each line of business through December 2003. For most lines of business, three years
of paid claims data was received; in cases where a line of business has not been in existence for
four years, paid claims data was provided as of the plan’s inception.

Section I details the claims information, by subsidiary and line of business, used in the
December 31, 2003 analysis.

Enrollment

BCNEPA and its subsidiaries provided enrollment data by service month for each month in
which claims information was provided. .

Section TII details the enrollment information, by subsidiary and line of business, used in the
December 31, 2003 analysis.

Reconciliation

Our calculations were based on claims information and enrollment data provided by BCNEPA.
‘We did reconcile each line of business’s claims triangle and enroliment data with the claims and
enrollment data received for the last analysis. Depending on the line of business, the last
analysis was performed either December 31, 2002 or September 30, 2003. Any differences in
claims or enrollment data were discussed with BCNEPA before proceeding with the analysis.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 7
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COIJ:EF?ACTED
Section II — Executive Summary DENTL4y,

(Continued)

Methodology

For historical incurral months, completion factors were calculated which allowed claims for
incurred months with incomplete runout to be projected. The completion factor approach
generally yields less reliable results for the more recent incurral months, since the cumulative
payouts at these shorter durations are lower and less predictable than more mature months. “This
in turn produces less stable completion factor patterns on which to base an ultimate claims
projection. Therefore, for the most recent incurral months, in addition to the calculation of a
completion factor, a theoretical estimate of ultimate incurred claims per member per month
(PMPM) was determined based on historical ultimate incurred claims levels PMPM which
included appropriate provisions for claims trend and seasonality factors. For each line of
business, the estimate of outstanding claims liability (OCL) for the most recent incurral months
was developed looking at the trend in PMPM including seasonality. A range of our OCL
estimates was determined by varying the averaging period for calculating the completion factors,
by varying the averaging period for determining historical ultimate PMPM levels and by varying
the trend assumptions in the PMPM projection method.

It should be noted that different data smoothing techniques and trend assumptions will lead to
different results. Our estimate is based solely on our best estimate of reasonable smoothing
techniques and trend assumptions.

Actuarial Assumptions

For the most recent incurral months, in addition to the calculation of a completion factor, a
theoretical estimate of ultimate incurred claims per member per month (PMPM) was determined
based on historical ultimate incurred claims levels PMPM which included appropriate provisions
for claims trend and seasonality factors. These assumptions are detailed below for each line of
business.

Section III details the completion factors, estimated PMPMs, and trends by subsidiary and line of
business, used in the December 31, 2003 analysis.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 8
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Section III — Detailed Surnmaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

HMO OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

Section Summary

The reconciliation from the reserve estimate to the blank number for the HMO of Northeastern
Pennsylvania is illustrated on the following page. The pages thereafter illustrate our best
estimate calculation of the reserve as of December 31, 2003 for each line of business of with this

entity.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP g
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Section 1T — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

HMO of Northeasiem PA

BCHEPA PwC Percermags
Recorded Estlmate Difference DiHerenca

inef Clalms 'Unpa.'d
Clalme IBNR and O/S-Hon Sell Funded
DPW/Paca Accrual
Una2 Accrued Medicsl Incentive Poo f and Bonus Payments

Resarve for Provider Setflements
Acrued Quality Incentive Payments

tine3 Unpald Chalms Adjustmeant Expenses

Line 4 Aggregate Policy Resarves

Total Claims and Related Reserves

coﬁEDA Crgp
HDENTIAL

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 10
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
' (Continued)

Paid Claim Data Reconciliations and Recorded Reserve Reconciliation

Estimated PACE & DPW Accruals

Reserve for Provider Settlements- of self insurance portion)

11
BCNEPA 00085

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP



Section I1I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
' (Continued)

Accrued Quality Incentive Payments-" _ {Net of self insurance portion)

ImDACT
E
CONFIDENTIA,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Iz
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysts by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Reserve Summary

PwC Reserve CNEPA Reserv. implied Implied
Est @ 12/31/2003 |Est @ 12/31/2003 % Margin $ Margin
Base HMO T
POS
Blue Chip
Adult Chip
Prescription Drugs-Base HMO
Prescription Drugs-POS
Prescription Drugs-Blue Chip
Total
RE;
Cop P4
NHDE?V?D
g
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP I3
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continuéd)

HMO

Lag & Exposure Data

The following pages detail the claims and enrollment information, by line of business, used in

the December 31, 2003 analysis.

Detailed Analysis

rent data smoothing techniques and trend assumptions will lead to

It should be noted that diffe
different results. Our estimate is based solely on our best estimate of reasonable smoothing

techniques and trend assumptions.

14
BCNEPA 00088
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Section II — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

The completion factors, PMPMSs, annual trend, and reserve estimates are detailed below for each
line of business. _

REDACTE
CONFIDENTﬂL

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 15
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Section TII — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

" (Continued)
Basic HMO
Analysis
. -
. Selected Incurred”| Implied
Incurred Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated | PMPM [ Trends
. Month | Mem Paid & Incured|  Factor PMPM Incurred OCL  J}“Monthly { Annual
REDACTE
D
I6

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data. & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
POS
Analysis
_ Selected fncurred | Implied
Incurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated | PMPM | Trends
Month | Members urred Factor PMPM Incurred OCL Mnnthiv | Annual
REp,
4
TIAL
17

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Section III — Detailed Su

mmaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidia

(Continued)
Blue Chip
Analysis
Selected — fncurred | -lmplied
Incurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated |sEstimated | PMPM Trends
Month Memb}m Incured Factor | PMPM | incumed # OCL | Monthly | Annual
RE,
ConppACTEy,
AL
- 18

PricewaterkiouseCoopers LLP
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Adult Chip
Analysis
Selected /lncurred Implied
Incurred L'X Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated Estimaled/ PMPM Trends
Month | Members {=dncumred Faclor PMPM Incurred OCL/ Monthly | Annual
RE
CoNF?gC'TED
ENTIAL
19

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Section I1I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Basic HMO Rx

Analysis

. Selected Incurred | -Implied

Incurred | \ Paid & Completion | Selected | Eslimated | Estimated | PMPM | Trends

Month | Members |Njncured | Factor | PMPM | Incurred ocL | Monthly | Annual
RED4C )
C TEp

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 28

BCNEPA 00094



Section III - Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued) :
POS Rx
Analysis
. Selecled Incurred | Implied
Incurred \[s Paid & Completion | Selected { Estimated | Estimated | PMPM | Trends
Month | Mem Incurred Factor PMPM Incurred QcL Monthly | Annual
RE
CONF?ACTED
DEN
TI AL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 21
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Blue Chip Rx
Analysis
. Selected Incurred | Implied
Incurred = Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated PMPM |- Trends
Month MeMers Incurred | - Faclor PMPM | Incurred OCL Monthly' | Annual
REDACTE
-1ED
22

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Basic HMO
(Incurred Jan 2001 —Dec 2001)
et TanDT | Fenor | Mard1 | Aprol | Way01 | Jun0l | JurD1 | Auq01 | Sep01 | OctDi | NowDi Dot
Paymeni Monih
RE
mENT
1ar,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 23
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Section I1I - Detailed Sumimaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Basic HMO
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)
meumred Month | Jan-02 FebD2 | Mar02 | Apc02 | May02 | Jun02 02 Auglz | Sepl2 | ©Oct-02 | MNovd2 | Dec02
Payment Morkh - |
CO?\'EDACTED
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 24
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Basic HMO
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)
Trcumed Month | Jan-03 Feb-02 War03 Apr03 | Maypd | Jiee0d T3 | Aug03 | Sep03 O | _Nov03 | Dec03
| Paymer Month
Rep
Con, 4

PricewaterbouseCoapers LLP

25
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Section 11T — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

POS
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

Apr-01 May-01 Jun-01 Jul-(h Aug-01 Sep-01 ) Oct-01 NowD1 Dec-01

Incured Month {  Jan-01 Feb-01 Mar-01

Payment Month

RE

26
BCNEPA 00099
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
' (Continued)

POS
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002}

Incured Nomth | Jan0Z_|_Feb02 | Mar02 | Apc02 | May02 | Jun02 [ Ju02 | Aug02 | Sep02 | Oct02 | Nov2 | Decd2

Paymernt Manth

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 27
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Section I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
) (Continued)

POS
{Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

Incured Mooth | Jan-03 Feb03 Mar-02 Apr-03 May.03 Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug-03 Sep-03 Ocl-03 Nay-03 Dec-03

enl Month

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 28
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Blue Chip
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

Incured Month | Jan-01 Feb-01 Mar-01 Apr-0n May-01 | Jun-Oi Juk01 Aug-01 Sep-M Oct-01 Nav-01 Dec-01

Paymel-'ll Month L -

REDACT
CONHDE”TI?{L

PricewaterfiouseCoopers LLP 29
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Section II — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
' (Continued)

Blue Chip
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

{ncummed Monih |« Jan-02 Feb-02 Mar-02 | Apr02 | May02 | Jun-D2 JulEQ2 Aug-02 | Sep02 Oci-02 Nov-02 | Dec-02

Payment Month

Rep
ConnACT,
VD,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 3¢
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued) '

Blue Chip
_{Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

Incumed Month | Jan-03 Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug-03 Sep-03 Oct-03 Nov-03 Dec-03

Payment Month

31
BCNEPA 00104
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Adult Chip
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

Incurred Month | Jan01 Feb-01 Mar-01 Ape-01 May-01 Jun01 Jul-01 Aug-01 Sep-01 Oct-01 Nov-01 Dec01

Payment I'.Hnnl_h
CoiEDA CTEy
PricewarterhouseCogpers LLP 32
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Section I1I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
' {Continued)

Adult Chip
(Tncurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

Incurred Month §  Jan-02 Feb-02 Mar-02 Apr-02 May-02 Jun-02 Jul-02 Aug-02 Sep02 Oct-02 Nov-02 'Dec-oz

Payment Month

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 33
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Section IT] — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Adult Chip
(Incurred Jan 2003 - Dec 2003)

Incured Month | Jan-03 Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 | Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug03 | Sep03 Ocl-03 Nov-03 | Dec-03

Paymanl Manth —_—

RED4C
co NFID;;;?D

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 34
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Base HMO Rx
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001}
Incumed Monlh | Jan-01 | Feb-01 | Mar01 | Apr-01 7 May-01 | Jun-01 | Jul-01 [ Aug01 | Sep01 Oct-01_| Nov01 | Decoi
Paymanl Monlh . [ PV
R-EDAC
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 35
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Base HVIO Rx
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

Incued Month | Jan02 | Feb0Z | Mac0? | Am02 | May02 | Jun02 | Ju02 | Aug02 | Sep07 | OG0Z | Nov0d2 |_Dec02

Paymen Maonth
RED 4
, CT,
CONFIDEy lfr?u,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ' 36
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tT Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Base HMO Rx
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

Ircared Monlh .Ian-i]:! Feb-l:l'.'i'- Mar-03 Apc-03 May-03 Jun-01 Jul03 Ang-03 | Sep03 D103 MNow-{3 Dec-03

Paymenl Month . —_—

37
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

POS Rx
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

Incured Month | Jan-01 Feb-01 Mar-01 Aor-01 May-01 Jun-01 Jul-01 Aug-01 Seo01 Oc-01 Nov-01 Dec01

Payment Month

38

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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_Section INT — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
' (Continued) ‘

'POS Rx |
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

Payment Month | : . -

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 39
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Section II — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

POS Rx
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

Incurred Month { _Jan-03 Feb03 Mar-03 Apr-03 May-03 | Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug-03 Oct-03 Nov-03 | Dec-03

Payment Month] N—

REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
40

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Blue Chip Rx
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001}

Ircarred Monfh | Ja01 | Feaol | Maro1 | Aprol | May-01 [ Jum01 [ Jubol | Aug01 1 Sep Ot Oc-01_[_Nov-01_|_Dec-01

Paymenbantn] . 1 .. _

41
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
T (Continued)

Blue Chip Rx
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

o a0z | Febd2 | MardZ | Apr02 | May0? | Jun02 | Jw02 | AugDdZ | Sep02 | Oct02 [ Nov-02 | Dec02
Payment l.rlonlh
coices,
ENTL{L
PricewaterkouseCoopers LLP 42
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Blue Chip Rx
(Iocurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

Incumed Month | Jan03 | Feb03 | Mar03 | Apr-03 | May-03 ] Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug03 | Sep-03 | Oct-03 | Nov-03 | Dec-03

Payment Month ) -

REDACTE
D

43
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

HOSPITAL SERVICES ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

Summary .

The reconciliation from the reserve estimate to the blank number for Hospital Services Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania is illustrated on the following page. The pages thereafter illustrate our best
estimate calculation of the reserve as of December 31,2003 for each line of business of Hospital Services
Association of Northeaster Pennsylvania. : e

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 44
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-Gection NI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Hospial Service Assoclalion of Hoetheastem PA

BCNEPA PwC Percentaga
Recordod Estimata Diffgrence Differenca

Line 1 Claims Unpaid
Clatms [BNR and QVS-Non Setl Funded
Clakms BAR and (V5-Sed Funded - - . . o

AIP TS Due 10 Host
DPW/Pace Acorual

Line 2 A d Medicaf | fva Pool and Banus Payments

Line Cinpaid Chh:l_#d]mtnent Expentos
L tine 4  Aggreghte Policy Reserves COR]\&?]?CTED
’ Premium Daficlency Reserva ENTIAL

Expariencs Rating Cradits
Experience Rating Cred2s-Drugs

Totaf Claimn and Refated Reserves

-

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 45
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Sectionr Il — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Paid Claim Data Reconciliations and Recorded Reserve Reconciliation

Claim IBNR and O/S Self Funded-.

A/P ITS Due Host Plan — (. [ACH (Dr.BaL of . . ,2695 A/P ITS Due Host
Plan — BC (Dr. Bal. of ), and 2696 A/P ITS Due Host Plan — 65 Special (Cr. Bal. of
N .

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 46
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Section.ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Estimated PACE & DPW Accruals-%

Premium Deficiency Reserves-

.

Experience Rating Credits-

PricewnterhouseCoopers LLP
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: Section [ — Detziled Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Reserve Summary-

Pw( Raserve BCNEPA Aaserva ' _ Implied implied
Est @ 1231/2003 Est @ 12/31/2003 % Margin $ Margin

munity; Basic
Experiencs Raled and Access Cams 1
FEP

INon-Group Basle, Blua Chip Special Care
Preseriplion Drugs: faslcetel
i Sef Funded| %

Madlcap
Sealf Funded i
[Medigap '

Palor Madical b
Sell Funded}
Relrsurance

|Com pretersim
Self Funded|
Reimurance

Total

REDACTE
CONFIDEN TI?qL
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‘Section I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Lag & Exposure Data

The following pages detail the claims and enrollment information, by line of business, used in
the December 31, 2003 analysis.

Detailed Analysis

It should be noted that different data smoothing techniques and trend assumptions will lead to
different results. Our estimate is based solely on our best estimate of reasonable smoothing
techniques and trend assumptions.

The completion factors, PMPMs, annual trend, and reserve estimates are detailed below for each
line of business.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 49
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Community: Basic
Analysis
Selected . Incurred | Implied
Incurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated | PMPM | Trends
Month | Members Incurred Factor PMPM Incurred OCL Monthly | Annual
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
50
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Section I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Experience Rated and Access Care II (>100 & 51-99)

Analysis
Selected incurred § Implied
Incurred ‘ Completion | Selecled | Estimated Estimated | PMPM | Trends
Month” | Members | Paid & Incured Factor PMPM Incurred oCL Monthly | Annua!
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
51
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-Section ITI - Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

{Continued)

Non-Group Basic, Blue Chip, and Special Care

Analysis
Selected Incurred | Implied
Incurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated Estimated PMPM Trends
Month | Members Incurred Factor PMPM Incurred OCL Monthly | Annual
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
52
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Section NI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Drugs: Basic, Medigap, Access Care I & 1T
Analysis
Selected
e Incurred | Implied
Imrred : Completion | Selecled | Estimated | Estimated | PMPM Trgr:ss
nth | Members | Paid & Incured] Factor PMPM Incurred oCL Monthly | Annual
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
33

FPricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

BCNEPA 00126



,S_EC_EL__OHHL__D_‘?E‘led Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Medicap, 65 Ext, EB LD: BC Only
- Analysis
Selected
. 4 Incurred | Impli
Ir;Acurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated PMPM 'It:zrlrg:
onth | Members | Incumed | Factor | PMPM | Incured OCL | Monthly | Annual
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL

PricawaterhouseCoopers LLP
. , 54
BCNEPA 00127



Section TII — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Medigap, 65 Ext, EB LD: MM Only
Analysis
Selecled incurred | Implied
Incurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated | PMPM | Trends
Month | Members | Incumed Factor PMPM Incurred OCL Monthly | Annual
REDACTED
CONFD)ENTIAL
BCNEPA 00128
55

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP




Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Major Medical
Analysis
: Incurred | Implied
Selected
' i i Estimated PMPM Trends
id & Completion | Selected Estimated
Inl\?(:nrr;d Members Ir?ft.ll‘:red Factor PMPM lnE:urr'e_d‘_ QCL _ Mon_tl.llg_ Annual
REDACTED
CONFIDENTYAL,
1]
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Comprehensive Major Medical
Analysis
. Selected Incurred | implied
lncurred Paid & Completion | Selected | Estimated | Estimated PMPM Trends
Month, | Members | Incurred Factor _PMFM Incurred OCL Monthly | Annual
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
57

PricewaterfiouseCoopers LLP
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

Community: Basic

(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

(Continued)

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Incured Month | Jang1_ | Febot Mar-01 _Ape-01 May01 | Sdun-D1 Jul-0t Aug-0f Sep-01 Oct-01 Now01 Dec-01
| Payment Menth :
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
58

BCNEPA 00131




mmaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

Section 111 — Detailed Su

(Continued)

Community: Basic

(Incurred_ Jan 2002 - Dec 2002)

Incured Modih J?n-n; Febo0z | Mar0? | Ap02 | May02 [ Jun02 T Jubo2 4 Sep02 1 Ot02 | Now02 | Decd2
§ KTV p— n—— — -

REDACTED

CONFIDENTIAL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 59
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Section Il — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Community: Basic
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)
tncuered Month _Aen_ﬂ;ﬂ_m.__u.ﬂ?-_ﬂ Maye3 | Jun03 | Jui6) | Aw03 | SepGo | Octod | Fowed | Decos
Paymand Mordh
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP - 60
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Secﬁoxil ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Experience Rated and Access Care IT (100 & 51-99)
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

incured Month | Jon01 | Febdd ] Marol | _Ap01 | May0t [ hnO1 [ W6l J AugOf | Sep0t | Octt1 | Now0d! T Geedt
Payment Manth
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
61

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

BCNEPA 00134
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Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Experience Rated and Access Care IT (100 & 51-99)
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

FPricewaterkouseCoopers LLP

Tncurred Month | _Jan02 | _Fepo7 | War07 | Apr02 | Way02 | Juvdz | w02 | Aug07 | Sep02 | Gei02 | Wow02 | Pecd? |
PaymeniMonth ! @ 1
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
62

BCNEPA 00135




Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Experience Rated and Access Care II (>100 & 51-99)
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Terd Mot | Jan® | Fepos | Mar0s | Ax03 | Wayos | Jmos Jui-03 Sep 03 vl | Decd3
PaymentWonth |
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
&3

BCNEPA 00136



Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Non-Group Basic, Blue Chip, and Special Care
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

Inciamed Menth | Jan01 | Feodn | Mar01 | Apr01 | May01 1 JunOt Jur01 | AugD1 | Sep01 [ OctO1 RawD1_|_ Dec0l
,.Moﬂl!‘_ LN .
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 64
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

oeCion 11s — o e ————

(Continued)

Non-Group Basic, Blue Chip, and Special Care
~ (Incurred Jan 2002 - Dec 2002)

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

[ incumed Month | Janfz | Feb02 | Martz | Ape02 [ May02 1 Jun02 1 Jut2 Sep02_ | Oct02 | Neav02 | Gecd? |
LT M— ~—F+ '
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAY,
65

BCNEPA 00138




Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analgsis by Su_bsidiary

(Continued)

Non-Group Basic, Blue Chip, and Special Care
(fncurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

incumed Month | Jano3 | Feb03 | Warts | Ax03 | May0d | Jun03 Juo3 Aug0) | Sep03 [ Oct0)_| Nowd3 | Deco3
Payment Morth
HEDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
1]

BCNEPA 00139




Section ITI — Detailed Sumimaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Confinued)
Drugs: Basic, Medigap, Access Care 1 & II
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)
remdwonh | Jandi | Febot | Wardl | Apco1 | Mayoi | Jndd | Juor | Aug0r | SepOT T Oct0t T NowO1 T Decdl
Payment Month { -
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP &7 )
. BCNEPA 00140
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Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Drugs: Basic, Medigap, Access Care I & II
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)
|_Incumad Month | .Jan-02 Fab02 Mar-02 Apr02 May-02 Jun02 “Sap 02 Oci03 T B
[ Payment Month - ~

REDACTED

CONFIDENTIAL

PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP p

BCNEPA 00141



w&l&n@ﬁa, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Drugs: Basic, Medigap, Access Care I & II
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

incurred Month | fan03 ] Feb03 | Mar03 | Apr03 1 May03 | Jun-03 Jui-03 Aug03 | Sepdd 1 Octd | Novw0d | Dec0d

"L Paymant Month
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
i PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 69

BCNEPA 00142




‘Qection III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Medicap, 65 Ext, EB LD: BC Only
. {Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

| Incurred Moot | Jan-01 Feb-01 Mar-01 Apr-0t May-01 Jure01 Juro1 ] AugO1 Sep-01 Oct-01 Nov-01 Dec-01
Paymenl Month
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
70

BCNEPA (00143




Section I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
(Continued)

Medicap, .65 Ext, EB LD: BC Only
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

Incurred Month Jan02 Feb-02 Mar-02 Apr-02 May-02 Jun-2 Jula2 Aug0Z2 | Sep-02 Oel-02 Nov-02 Dec-(2

enfMonth L 1 ... "1 . . J—

REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL

PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP 71
' BCNEPA 00144



Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

{Continued)
Medicap, 65 Ext, EB LD: BC Only
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

ared o | T | Feoid | Maei | ferts | Wayes | Junds 03 Sep01 | Oct03 | Movd3 | Dec03
| Payment Monih
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
72

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

BCNEPA 00145




Section NI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continited)
Medigap, 65 Ext, EB LD: MM Only
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)
Incured Month .Ian-o‘1 ool | Mar01 | Apc01 | May0i | JunD1 Jut-01 Aug 01 | Sepd f Oct01 | Nowtl | Decdd |
P Month .
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
73

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

BCNEPA 00146



Section III — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary
‘ {Continued)

Medigap, 65 Ext, EB LD: MM Only
(Incurred Jan 2002 — Dec 2002)

| Incumed Month | lan-02 Fah-02 Mar-02 Apr-02 May-02 Jun

A2 Ju02 | Aug02 | Sepd2 Ocd2 | Nov02 | Decd2

Payment Month
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 74

BCNEPA 00147




Section I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Medigap, 65 Ext, EB LD: MM Only
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)
rerd Montn T Jands Feb0a Mar03 Apc-03_| Way-03 Jun03 Ju-03 Aug03_| Sep03 Octo3 Now-3 Dec03
| Payment Month ! f
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

75
BCNEPA 00148




Section IT] — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Major Medical
(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)
Incurred Month Jan-01 - Feb-01 Mar01 Apc01 May1 Jun-01 Ju-01 Augot | Sep 01 Cct-01 |  NoewD1 Dec-0H
Payment Manth
REDAC'E[‘ED
CONFIDENTIAL,
76

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
' BCNEPA 00149



Section J1I — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidia

(Continued)

Major Medical N

(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

[ Incired Manth | __Jand2 | Feb02 | Mar02 [ Apr02 [ May02 | Jun02 Ju07 | Aug0? | Sep02 ooz | roe2
Payment Noath

REDACTED
CONFIDENT] AL
BCNEPA 00150

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP




P T e

- Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Major Medical

(Incurred Jan 2003 — Dec 2003)

rcred oot T Tans | Feods | Mar03 | _Apros | May0d | Jun03 | Ju03 | Aug0) | Seplis | OuD3 | Novd3 | DecOd
PaymetMonth |
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
BCNEPA 00151

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

78




Section [T1 — Detailed Summaries, Data. & Analysis by Subsidiary

{Continued)

Comprehensive Major Medical
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

IncyaTed Month .lan-o; Feb-01 : Mar-01 Apc01 May-01 a0 Jui01 Aug01 | SepOi Cet01 Nov-01 Dec-01

Paymert Mot} el

REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
79

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

BCNEPA 00152




Section ITI — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)

Comprehensive Major Medical
(Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)

Incased Month | Jan02 Feh-02 Mar-02 Apr-02 May02 Jung2 Jui-02 Aug-02 Sep02 002 Howil2 .| Dec02
| PaymentManth | _____
REDACTED
CONFIDENTIAL
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 80

BCNEPA 00153




Section TII — Detailed Summaries, Data, & Analysis by Subsidiary

(Continued)
Comprehensive Major Medical
- {Incurred Jan 2001 — Dec 2001)
p_Iocurred Month | Jan-oa “Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-03 3 Jun03 03 Aug-03 Sep-00 Oct-03 Novw-a Dec03
Payment Mocth
REDACTED

CONFIDENTIAJ,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ' 81

BCNEPA 00154



Atftachment 6

March 22, 2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”)
Annual Statement Amendment
re: January S letter, page 2, paragraph (b)

The January 5 letter, page 2, paragraph (b) states that if the results of the actuarial
certification require an amendment to the annual statement blank filed by BCNEPA or
any of its insurance subsidiaries on or around March 1, 2004, an amended annual
statement blank shall be filed within 15 business days of submission of the information
herein requested.

Please be advised that, following our review of the actuarial review enclosed herewith as
attachment 5, we determined that no amendment is required for the annual statement
blanks filed on or about March 1, 2004 by BCNEPA or its insurance subsidiaries, HMO
of Northeastemn Pennsylvania, Inc. d/b/a First Priority Health, (“FPH”), or First Priority
Life Insurance Company, Inc. (“FPLIC”).

BCNEPA 00155



Attachment 7

March 22, 2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA”™)
Description of Affiliated Foundations

Re: January 5 letter, page 2, paragraph (c)

BCNEPA operates two foundations: 1) Hospital Service Association of Northeastern
Pennsylvania Foundation, d/b/a The Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania (Blue Ribbon Foundation) and 2) Caring Foundation of Northeastern

Pennsylvania (Caring Foundation).

The Blue Ribbon Foundation was formed in 2001 under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and operates within thirteen counties of northeastern and north central
Pennsylvania. Its purpose is to serve as a catalyst for change by fimding innovative
programs targeted at improving the health and wellness of the communities we serve.
Success of the foundation will enhance one’s quality of life as well as help make healthcare
more affordable, thereby supporting BCNEPAs overall mission to provide affordable
healthcare to as many as possible. From inception through 2003, BCNEPA confributed
approximately $8.5 million to the Blue Ribbon Foundation, during which time granis
totaling $1.5 million have been awarded to qualifying entities.

BCNEPA is also an equal member with Highmark Inc. in the Caring Foundation of
Northeastern Pennsylvania which administers the Children’s Health Insurance Program
(CHIP) in BCNEPA’s thirteen county service area. The Caring Foundation is also organized
under section 501(c)(3) of the Intemnal Revenue Code. Its purpose is to promote primary
health care for the children of those unemployed or marginally employed families that are
not eligible to participate in publicly funded programs and are unable to provide private
health insurance. The Caring Foundation is fonded by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
and by BCNEPA and Highmark Inc. who contributes program and support services. At
December 31, 2003, the Caring Foundation provided health insurance coverage to 11,473
children in our service area.

BCNEPA 00156



Attachment 8

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 491

CORPORATION BUREALU
ROOM 206 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING

P.O. BOX 8722 RECE'VED

HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722
JUL 31 2002

VICE FRESIDENT
GENERAL COUNSEL

BLUE' RIBEON FOUNDATION OF 'I»-'I‘:.-I:E BLUE CROSS OF NORTHEASTERN PENNYLVAN
Is THE

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HAPPY TO SEND YOU YOUR FILED DOCUMENT.
PLEASE NOTE THE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH. THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HERE TO SERVE YOU AND WANTS
TO THANK YOU FOR DOING BUSINESS YN PENNSYLVANTA.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU,
PLEASE VISIT OUR WEB SITE LOCATED AT WWW.DOS.STATE.DA.US/CORPS OR.
PLEASE CALL OUR MAIN INFORMATION TELEPHONE NUMBER (717)787-1057. FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING BUSINESS AND/OR UCC FILINGS, PLEASE
VISIT OUR ONLINE "SEARCHABLE DATABASE" LOCATED ON OUR WEB SITE.

ENTITY NUMBER: 3083504
MICROFILM NUMBER: 2002063

1761-1762

EDWIN R GOODLANDER ESQ

BLUE CROSS OF NORTHERSTERN PENNSYLVANIA
1% N MATN ST

WILKES-BARRE FA 18711

BCNEPA 00157
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N PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
C CORPORATION BUREAU

.\ Entity Number Application for Registration of Fictitious Name -
‘;’0’8’355‘5’5 54 PaC.S. § 311

N Document will be returned to the
ame
Edwin R. Goodiander _ aeme and address yon enter to
Address '
19 North Main
City State Zip Conde
Wilkes-Bamre Pennsylvania 18711
Fee: $52 '
IR . Filed in the Department of State on JUL 1 5 ZUUZ
QM) Fra
Secrdigry of the Commonwealth

In compliance with the requirements of 54 Pa.C.S. § 311 (relating to registration), lh%crsigned entity(ies) desiring to register a
. fictitious narme under 54 Pa.C.S. Ch. 3 (relatiug to fictitious names), hereby state(s) that-

1. The fictitious nane is:
The Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of Northeastem Pennsylvanla

2. A brief statement of the character or nature of the business or other activity to be carried on under or through

the fictitous name is:
The purposa Is to receive and expand funds excluslvely for charitable purposes

3. The address, including number and street, if any, of the principal place of business (P.0. Box alone is not

acceptable):
19 North Main Street Wilkes-Barre PA 18711 l.uzerne
Number and street City State Zip County

4. The pame and address, including number and street, if any, of each individual inlerested in the business is:

Name - Number and Street City State Zip

. pa NEPT O STATE

BCNEPA 00158



i 200208 3-1762

+ DSCB:54-311-2

5. Each entity, other than an individual, interested in such business is (are):
Hospital Service Associalion of Northeaslam Pennsylvanla Foundation a non-profit corporation

Name Form of Organization Organizing Jurisdiction
19 North Main Street Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711

Principal Office Address .
19 North Main Street  Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711

PA Registered Office, if any

Name L Form of Organization Organizing Jurisdiction

Principal Office Address

PA Registered Office, if any

6. The applicant is familiar with the provisions of 54 Pa.C.S. § 332 (relating o effect of registration) and
understands that filing under the Fictitious Names Act dots not create any exclusive or other right in the
fictitious neroe.

7. quionnl): The name(s) of t.he: agenl(s), if any, any one of whom is suthorized to execute amendments to,
wilhdrawals from or cancellation of this registration in behalf of all then existing parties to the registration, is
(are):

Name to be executed this

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Application for Registration of Fictitious

day of
I.ndividua'l Signature Individual Signature
Individual Signature Individual Signature

Q. P00 -

Signature = FEcRETAR) Signature

Title Title

BCNEPA 00159



RELEIVED

JAN 15 2002

VICE PRESIDENT
PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE GENERAL COUNSEL 47
CORPORATION BUREAU |
ROOM 206 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING
P.O. BOX 8722
HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722

HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATI
ON

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HAPPY TO SEND YOU- YOUR FILED DOCUMENT.
PLEASE NOTE THE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH. THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HERE TO SERVE YOU AND WANTS
TO THANK YOU FOR DOING BUSINESS IN PENNSYLVANTA. IF YOU HAVE ANY
QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU, GALL (717) 787-1057.

. ENTITIES THAT ARE CHARITIES AND SOLICIT FUNDS SHOULD CONTACT THE
BUREAU OF CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIGNS FOR REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS AT
DEPARTMENT OF STATE, BUREAU OF CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS, SUITE 300
124 PINE STREET, HARRISBURG, .PENNSYLVANTIA 17101 (717) 783-1720 OR
1-800-732-0999 WITHIN PENNSYLVANTA.

ENTITY NUMBER: 3040267
MICROFILM NUMBER: 2001095

0151-0154

E R GOODLANDER ESQ

BLUE CROSS OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA
10 N MAIN ST

WILKES-BARRE PA 18711

BCNEPA 00160



r PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE

CORPORATION BUREAU
~ Articles of Incorporation-Nonprofit
: (15Pa.C.5)
Entity Number Domeslic Nonprofit Corporation (§ 5306)
30 C{- d 2@ 7 Nonprofit Cooperative Corporation (§ 7102B)
Nemz Document will be returned to the
Edwin R. Goodlander, Esq. ' name snd address you eater to
Address the lelt.
19 Norih Main Street =
City Staiz Zip Code
Wilkes-Barmre, PA 18711
Fee: 3100 .
. Filed § epartmenl of S4ate on DEB 'I' 0 2001

Scefelify of the Commonwealth /

In compliance wilth the requirements of the applicable provisions (relafing 1o arficles of incorporalion or cooperative
. corporations generatly), the imdersigned, desiring to incorporate a nonprofit/nonprofit cooperation corporation, hereby state(s) that:

1. The name of the corporation is:
Hospilal Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania Foundation

2. The (a) address.of this corporalion’s current regislered office in this Commenwealih or (b) name of ils
commercial registered office provider and the county of venue is:

(8) Number and Street © City State Zip County
19 Notih Méin Strest. " Wilkes-Barme PA 18711 Luzems
() Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider County
clo:

3. The corporation is incorporated under the Nonprofit Corporation Law of 1988 for the following puspose or
puIpOses. :
Seg-Attached Exhibit A

. 4. The corporation does not conterplate pecuniary gam or profit, incidental or otherwise.

e
e

YIS AN AT Y BCNEPA 00161
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of

. ' 200195 - 15

DSCB:15-5306/7102B-2

‘ 5. Check one of the following:
X

The corporation is organized on a non-stock basis.

Option for Nonprofit Cooperative Corporation Only: The corporation is organized on a stock share basis.

6. For Nonprofit Corporation Only:
(Strike out if inapplicable): The-sorporationchall bavo ne-members—
(.S'Irilce_ out if ifm.pph'cab!e): The-incerporatess-sonslitule-amejor

7. For Nonprofit Cooperative Corporation Only:

Complete and strike cul the inapplicable term: The corporation is a cooperative corporation and the common
bond of membership among its (members) (shareholders) is:, .

8. The name(s) and address(es) of cach incorporator(s) is (are) (all incorporators musi sign below):
Address(es) |

' Name(s)
19 North Main Street, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711

9. The specified effective date, if any, is:
December 10, 2001
month day year hour, if any

10. Additional provisions of the articles, if nny, attach an 8% x 11 sheet.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the incorporator(s)
bas/have signed these Articles of Incorporation this

G _dny of Roremass |

Signahare

BCNEPA 00162
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Exhibit A

The purposes for which the corperation is organized are to receive and
maintain 2 fund or funds of real or personal property, or both, and, subject to
the restrictions and limitations set forth herein, to use and apply the whole or
any part of the income from these funds and the principal of these funds
exclusively for charitable, religious, scientific, literary or educational purposes
cither directly or by contributions to organizations that qualify as exempt
organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code and its
regulations as they now exist or as they may be amended. ,

No part of the principal of the funds of or the net eamnings of the corporation
shall inure to the benefit of any Director of the corporation, officer of the
corporation, or any private individual (except that reasonable compensation
may be paid for services rendered to or for the corporation affecting one or
more of its purposes), and no Director or officer of the corporation, or any
private individual, shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the
corporate assets on dissolution of the corporation. No substantial part of the
activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, lobbying
or otherwise atterpting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not
participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of
statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public
office.

The corporation shall distribute its income for each taxable year at such time
and in such manner as not to become subject to the tax on undistiibuted
income imposed by Section 4942 of the Internal Revemne Code, or
comresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws.

The corporation shall not engage in any act of self-dealing as defined in
Section 4941(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding provisions of
any subseguent federal tax laws. '

The corporation shall not retain any excess business holdings as defined in
Section 4943(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, or comresponding provisions of
any subsequent federal tax laws.

The corporation shall not make any investments in such manner as to subject
it to tax under Section 4944 of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding
provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws.

The corporation shall not make any taxable expenditures as defined in Section
4945(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding provisions of any
subsequent federal tax laws.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles of Incorporation, the
corporation shall not conduct or camry on any activities not permitted to be
conducted or camied on by an organization exempt from taxation under
Section 501(c)(3) or by an organization to which contributions are deductible
under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations as
they now exist or as they may be amended.

BCNEPA 00163
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On dissolution of the corporation or the winding up of its affairs, the assets of
the corporation shall be distributed, as the Board of Directors shall determine,
exclusively to charitable, religious, scientific, public-safety, literary or
educational organizations that would then qualify under the provisions of
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

BCNEPA 00164



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Attachment 9

BYLAWS
' OF
HOSPITAL SER VICE ASSOCIATION
OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATION

ARTICLET
MEMBERS

Membership. The member of the Corporation shall be Hospital Service Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania.

Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the member of the Corporation shall be held og
the last Thursday of Apri] at the registered office of the Corporation or such other time
and place as may be designated by the Board of Directors for the election of Directors
and such other business as may properly come before said meeting.

The number of members of the Board of Directors shall be set by the member at the
annual meeting. :

Notice of Annual Meeting. Notice of time, place and purpose of the annual meeting shall
be sent to the member of the Corporation at least ten (10} days prior thereto,

Special Meetings. Special meetings of the member may be called at any time by the
Chairperson, the President or by written request of a majority of the Board of Directorg
delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation. .

Notice of Special Meetings. Notice of the time, place and purpose of special meetings
shall be sent by the Secretary of the Corporation to the member of the Corporation no less

than five (3) days prior thereto. Such meetings shall be held at such time and place as
may be designated in the notice of such meeting.

Powers. The powers of the member shall be to set the number, elect and remove the

members of the Board of Directors, adopt and amend these Bylaws, and perform any
other act permitted by statute and not inconsistent with these Bylaws.

Action of Members by Consent. Any action required by law ta be taken at a meeting of

~ the member, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the member, may be taken

without a meeting if a consent in wriling, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed
by the member and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation.
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2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

ARTICLE I

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Powers. All powers of the Corporation, except those specifically reserved or granted to
the member of the Corporation by statute or by the Articles or these Bylaws, are hereby
granted o and vested in the Board of Djrectors including, without limitation of the
foregoing, the power to select and award recipients of grant funds when such award and
selection would exceed the power and authority of the individual designated by the Board
of Directors Lo 50 act; the power to conduct and direct the business and affairs of the
Corporation, including the power to borrow money and purchase, sell, lease away or
otherwise dispose of real estate, and change the Jocation of the registered office or
principal place of business.

Membership. The Board of Directors shall consist of no less than three (3) nor more than
six (6) Directors.

Qualifjcations. All Directors of the Corporation shall be natural persons between the apes
of twenty-one (21) and seventy-two (72) years, except that any Director shall complete
any full term during which such Director reaches the age of seventy-two (72) years.

Term, The Directors shall be divided into three (3) classes, and the term of Directors to
be elected at the annual meeting of the members of the Corporation shall be stagpered so
that, as nearly as possible, an equal number of Directors shall be elected in each
successive year. Otherwise, the term of office of each Director shall be three (3) years.
Each Director shall serve until his successor is elected and qualified, exceptin the event
of his death, resignation or removal.

Reoular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least
quarterly at the office of the Corporation or at such other time and place as the
Chairperson, the President or the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

Special Meelings. Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the
Chairperson, the President, or on the written request of any three members of the Board,
at such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time select, or as may be
designated in the notice calling the meeting.

Notice of Meetings. The notice of any meeting shall be given in accordance with the
provisions of Section 6.1 by or under the direction of the Secretary of the Corporalion to
every Director at least three (3) days before a special meeting and at Jeast seven (7) days
before a regular meeting.
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2.8 Waiver of Notice. Notice of any meeting of the Board of Directors necd not be given 10
any Director if waived by the Director in writing or if the Director is present al the
_ meeting, except where the Dircctor attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting
1o the transaction of any busincss because the sneeting was not lawfully called or
convened.

29 Adjournment. When a meeling is adjourned, it shall not be necessary 1o give any nolice
of the adjoumed mecting or the business 1o be transacled at an adjourned meeting other
than by announcement at the meeling at which such adjournment is taken.

210 Quomm. A majority of the Directors in office shall be necessary to constilule a quorom
for the transaction of business and the acts of a majonty of the Directors present and
voting (abstentions are not covnted for the purposcs of voting) at a meeting at which a
quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors.

211 Resignation. Any Direclor may resign from the Board at any time, such resignation 1o be
made in wriing and to take cffect vpon its acceptance by the Board of Directors.

212 Compensation. No member of the Board of Directors or any officer of the Corporation
shall be entitled 10 any compensalion when acling in the capacity of Director.

213 Paiticipation in Meelings by Conference Telephone. Any member of the Board of
Directors, including the entire Board of Directors, may participate in any meeting of the
Board of Directors or any commitiee of ihe Board of Directors (provided such Direclor is

_ otherwise enlitled to participate), be counted for the purpose of determining a guorum

thereof and exercise all rights and privileges to which the Director might be cntitled were
such Director personally in aliendance, including the right 10 voie, by means of
conference telephone or other similar communications equipment by means of which al}
persons at he meeling can hear each other.

214 Action of Board of Directors by Consent. Any action which may be 1aken 2t a meeting of
the Directors, or of the members of any committee of the Board of Directors, may be
taken without a meeling if a consent or consents in writing, seiting forth the action so
taken, shall be signed by all of the Directors, or the members of the commiltee, as the
case may be, and shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporalion. Such action shall
be deemed Nled with the Secretary regardless of whether the Sccretary or some other
authorized person has aclual possession of the minute book. Written consents by all of

" the Directors executed pursuant to this Section 2.14 may be executed in any number of
counterparts and shall be deemed effective as-of the date set forth therein.
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2.15 Manifestation r_)f Dissent. A Director of the Corporation who is present at a meeting of
the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed
to have assented to the action taken unless the Director's dissent shall be entered in the
minutes of the mecting or unless the Director shall file a written dissent to such action -
with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before adjournment thereof, or
shall forv_varq such dissent by registered or certified mail to the Secretary of the '
Corporation immediately after adjournment of the meeting. Such right of dissent shall
not be afforded to a Director who voted in favor of such action. :

2.16 Removal of Directors. The entire Board of Directors or any individual Director may be
removed from office without assigning any cause by action of the member.,
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3.1

ARTICLE lHI

OFFICERS

Officers. "The Officers of the Corporation shall be elected by the Board of Directors and
shall include a Chairperson of the Board, a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a
Treasurer, and a Secretary. Other Officers may be appointed as set forth in Section 3.2 of
these Bylaws. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created and filled at any meeting of
the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same persons except
the offices of President and Secretary.

a,

Chairperson. The Chairperson of the Board shall have general supervision ovex the
carrying out of the policies adopted or approved by the Board of Directors and shall
act as liaison between the Board and the other Officers and member of the
Corporation; shall preside at all meetings of the member of the Corporation and the
Board of Directors; and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as
may be assigned to the office by the Board of Directors. The Chairperson shall be an
ex-officio member of all committees.

President. The President shall have general and active anagement of the business of
the Corporation and be responsible for camrying into effect the policies adopted or
approved by the Board of Directors. The President may sign on behalf of the
Corporation any documents or instruments which the Board of Directors has
anthorized to be execuled, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof
shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws to some
other Officer or agent of the Corporation, or shall be required by law to be otherwise
signed or executed; and in general, the President shail perform all duties incident to
the Office of President in accordance with the provisions of this Article, shall
formulate and periodically present to the Board of Directors long range plans and
goals for the Corporation, and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed
by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Vice President. Each Vice President shall perform such duties as from time to time
may be assigned by the President or the Board of Directors. In the-event of the
absence of the President, the President shall des gnate the Vice President who shall
perform the duties of the President in the President's absence. In the event of the
President’s inability, incapacity, or refusal to act, the Board of Directors shall
designate the Vice President who shall perform the duties of the President. The Vice
President who is so designated by the President, or the Board of Directors shall
perform the duties of the President and when so acting shall have all the powers of
and be subject to the restrictions upon the President.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

d. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have general charge and custody of and be responsible
for all funds and securities of the Corporation and make such reports of its receipts
and disbursements in such form and manner as the Board of Directors may direct.
The Treasurer shall receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the
Corporation from any source whatsoever and deposit such monies in the name of the
Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected
by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall keep the accounts of the Corporation
and whenever and as required by the President or the Board of Directors, shall render
financial statements of the Corporation and, under the direction of the Board of
Directors, disburse the funds thereof; and in general, the Treasurer shall perform all
the duties incident to the Office of Treasurer and such other duties ag may from time
to time be assigned by the President or the Board of Directors.

e. Secretary. The Secretary shall have charge of all books and records of the
Corporation, including the Corporate Seal. The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes
of all meetings of the members of the Corporation and the Board of Directors. The
Secretary shall notify each member of the Corporation or of the Board of Directors,
of all regular and special meetings, giving reasonable written notice of the same and
shall perform such additional duties as may be directed by the President or the Board
of Directors.

Other Officers. The Board of Directors may appoint other officers of the Corporation
who shall hold their offices subject to the pleasure of the Board.

Election and Term of Office. The Officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually
by the Board of Directors after each annual meeting of the members of the Corporation.
If election of Officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as
soon as convenient. Bach Officer shall hold office for one year and until a successor is
elected.

Resignation. Any Officer may resign.from office at any time, such resignation to be
made in writing to the Board of Directors and to take effect upon its acceptance by the
Board of Directors.

Removal. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3.3, any Officer elected or
appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the members present and voting (abstentions are not counted for the purposes
of voting) at a meeting of the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best
interests of the Corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without
prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the persons so removed.

Bond. The Board of Directors may require any Officer to give bond and security in such
sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.
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4.1

42

ARTICIE IV
COMMITTEES

Committees. The Chairperson of the Board shall, by and with

the advice and consent of the Board of Directors, appoint such
cornunittees as may be deemed advisable or necessary. These
committees shall be chosen from the membership of the Board of
Directors and shall have the power and perform the duties which may
be delegated to them by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Quorum. A majority of the members of a board committee shall be
necessary to constitute 2 quorum for the transaction of business and the
acts of a majority of the members present and voting (abstentions are
not counted for the purposes of voting) at a committee meeting at which
a quorum is present shall be the acts of the committee.
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5.1

5.2

5.3

54

ARTICLEV
CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS
Contracts.

a. The Board of Directors may authorize any Officer or Officers, employee or
employees 1o enter into any contract or execute and deliver any subscription
agreement or instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such
authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

b. The Board of Directors may authorize an agent or agents to execute and deliver

contracts, agreements or instruments in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation
but such authority shall be limited to specific matters.

Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of
indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of
Directors.

Checks. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such
Officer or Officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from
time to time be determined by a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from
time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other
depositories as the Board of Directors may select.
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6.1

6.2

6.3

ARTICLE VI
NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Wiitten Notice. Whenever written notice is required to be given to any

person under the provision of any statutes or by these Bylaws, it miay be given to
such person either by sending a copy through the mail, electronic mail, by
overnight express, charges prepaid, or by facsimile, to the address or facsimile
number appearing on the books of the Corporation or supplied by such person to
the Corporation for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place,
day, and hour of the meeting and in case of a special meeting, the general nature
of the business to be transacted.

‘Writien Waiver of Notice. Whenever any written notice is required, a

waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice,
whether before or after the time stated in these Bylaws, shall be deemed
equivalent to the giving of such notice. Except in the case of a special meeting,
neither the business to be transacted nor the purpose of the meeting need be
specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting.

‘Waiver of Notice by Attendance. Attendance of a person at any meeting

shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when a person attends
a meeting for the express puipose of objecting to the transaction of any business
because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened.
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ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS

7.1 Indemnification.

a. The Corporation shall indemnify the Directors and the Officers of the .
Corporation against expenses (including legal expenses), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incured by such person, to
the fullest extent now or hereafter permitted by law in connection with any
threatened, pending or compieted action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,

_ criminal, administrative or investigative, brought or threatened to be brought
against such person, including actions or suits by or in the right of the
Corporation, by reason of the fact that such person is or was a Director or
Officer of the Corporation, or any of its subsidiaries, or acted as a Director or
Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, or any of its
subsidiaries, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a
Director, Officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise. However, notwithstanding any other
provision of this Article, the Corporation shall not indemnify any Director,
Officer or other person against any taxes or other expenses to the extent such
indemnification would constitute an act of self-dealing subject to the
provisions of §4941 of the Intemal Revenue Code.

b. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, similarly indemnify any person
other than a Director or Officer of the Corporation to the fullest extent now or
hereafter permitted by law for liabilities incurred by such person in connection
with services rendered for or at the request of the Corporation, or any of its
subsidiaries.

c. The provisions of this Section shall be applicable to all actions, suits or
proceedings commenced after its adoption, whether such arise out of acts or
omissions which occurred as to a person who has ceased to be Director or
Officer or to render services for or at the request of the Corporation and shall
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such person.
The rights of indemnification provided for herein shall not be deerned to be the
exclusive rights to which any Director, Officer, employee or other agent of the
Corporation may be entitled. :

10

BCNEPA 00174



7.2

7.3

Advances. The Corporation may pay the expenses incurred by any person
entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation in defending a civil or criminal
action, suit or proceeding in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or
proceeding vpon receipt and undertaking by or on behalf of such person, to repay
such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that such person is entitled to
be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized by law.

Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of
any person who is or was a Director, Officer, employee or agent of the
Corporation: or who is or was serving in any capacity in any other corporation or
organization at the request of the Corporation against any liability asserted against
such person or incurred by such person in any such capacity or arising out of such
person's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to
indemnify such person against such liability under law. Notwithstanding this
provision, the Corporation shall not provide insurance to any Officer, Director or
other person to the extent the provision of such insurance would constitute an act
of self-dealing subject to §4941 of the Intemal Revenue Code.

11
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8.1

8.2

0.1

10.1

ARTICLE VIII

CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Disclosure of Conflict of Interests. Directors, Officers and employees of the Corporation
shall be held to a strict rule of honesty and fair dealing between themselves and the
Corporation, and shall fully disclose all the facts of a possible conflict of interests to the
President and the Board of Directors.

Inquiry by Secretary. It shall be the duty of the Secretary of the Corporation, at Jeast
annually, to inquire of and receive written response from each Director, Officer,
management personnel and such other employees as the Board of Directors shall
designate as to possible conflicts of interests, and shall report the results of such inguiry
to the Board of Directors.

ARTICIE TX
SEAL

Description. The corporate seal shall consist of a circolar impression containing the
name of the Corporation, the state of incorporation and the word “Seal”, in such form as
shall be designated by the Board of Directors. Unless required by law or express
provision of these Bylaws, the use of the corporate seal shall not be necessary to the

- validity of any instrument.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENTS

Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended at any annual meeting of the member or at
any special meeting of the member called for that purpose; or at any meeting of the Board
of Directors called for that purpose by the affirmative vote of at least two thirds (2/3) of
the members of the Board present at such meeting, provided that a quorum is present and
that notice of the proposed amendments has been given at least fifteen {15) days before
the meeting to the members of the Board of Directors, and further provided that the
Board of Directors shall not have the power to amend thesg Bylaws on any subject that is
expressly committed to the member by Section 5504(b) of the Pennsylvania Nonprofit
Corporation Law. It is recommended that these Bylaws be reviewed every year.

12
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HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN

PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATION

(d/b/a Blue Ribbon Foundatlon of Blue Cross of Northeastern

Pennsylvama)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (UNAUDITED)

PECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Due from affiliate
Interest income receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Contribulions payable
Accounis payable and other Habililies

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2003

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-1-

2002
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HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

FOUNDATION

(d/b/a Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(UNAUDITED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT:

Interest income
Total revenues, gains and other support
EXPENSES:
Confribution expense
Program and supporting services
Total expenses

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES

Unrealized gains on investments
Transfer from Blue Cross

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED,
END OF YEAR

See accompanyng notes to financial statements.

-2

2003

2002
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HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN
PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATION

(d/bla Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: .
Change in net assets 3.
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets

{0 net cash used in operating activities:
Transfer of investments from Blue Cross
Unrealized gains on investments
Change in assets and liabilities:
Due from affiliale
Interest income receivable
Contributions payable v
Accounls payable and other liabilities Qé'b

Net cash used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sales and maturities of investments
Purchase of investmenis

Net cash provided by investing activities
- NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR b

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITY: During 2003, Hospital Service Association of
Northeastern Pennsylvania contributed §$: of investments to the Foundation.

See accompanying notes (o financial statements.

-3-
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HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN
PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATION

(d/bla The Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania)

RE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) DACTED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations — Hospilal Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania Foundation (d/b/a
The Blue Ribbon Foundalion of Blue Cross of Northeastem Pennsylvania) (the “Foundation™) is a not-
for-profit organization formed to invest in the beneficial health and quality-of-life initiatives of the
residents of the thirteen county region of Northeastern and North Central Pennsylvania.

The Foundation was formed by Hospital Service Association of Northeaslern Pennsylvania (d/b/a Blue
Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania) (“Blue Cross™), the sole corporale member of the Foundation. In
2001, Blue Cross funded the Fou.ndatioa by makmg an irrevocable donation of)

i As carnings from the endowment grow, the Foundation will
use those earnings to award future grants. In 2003, Blue Cross contributed an additional $: - by
making an irrevocable donalion ' r. The Foundation’s grart giving focuses
on three clearly defined areas: health and human semce.s children and famijlies, and education.

Financial Statement Presentation — For accounting purposes, the Company’s net assels are reported
into separate classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A
description of the three net asset categories follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets include those assels that are available forthe support of operations and for
which uses are not externally restricted, although their uses may be limiled by other factors such as by
contract or board designation.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not been
met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the procecds is not permanently
restricted.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifis, trusts, and pledges which require by donor restriction
that the corpus be invested i perpetuity and only the income be made available for operations in
accordance with donor restrictions.

All nel assets of the Company are unrestricted as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires managemeént lo make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes.
Actual resuils could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Foundation considers al! highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN
PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATION

(d/b/a The Blue Ribbon Foundation of Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) REDACTED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments — include debt and equity securities and are reporied at fair value, with unrealized holding
gains and losses excluded from deficiency of revenues, gains and other support over expenses. As of
. December 31, 2003, investments consisted of U.S. Treasury and federal agency debt securities of
1 as well as an equity sccurity of $| "~ As of December 31, 2002, investments
consisted of U.S. Treasury and federal agency debt securities of $i Income from investments
and realized pains and losses on unresiricted net assets are recorded as investment income. Unrealized

gains and losses on investments are excluded from deficiencies of revenues, gains and other support
OVEr expenses.

Gains and losses on the sale of dcbl and equity securifies are determined using the specific
identification method. If there are no securitics specifically identified, gains and fosses are determined
using the first-in, first-out method.

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All program and suppoiting services are provided by Blue Cross to the Foundation; such services

amounted to §, | and $ for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. At
December 31, 2003, Blue Cross owed the Foundation$ ' 1, for these services, which is mcluded in

due from affiliate. At December 31, 2002, the Foundation owed Blue Cross 3 , for these services,
which is included in accounts payable and other liabilities.

3. INCOME TAXSTATUS
The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal and slate income taxes. The Foundation files its own tax return and is
not part of (he Blue Cross consolidated tax return. *

4, CREDIT RISK
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Attachment 11

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINMNATI, OH 45201

Bmployer IQentification Number:

Date: JUL i 1 zw . 23-3101673

. DLN:
"HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF 17053163048022
WORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIZA Contact Pergon:
FOUNDATION JOHN J KOESTER ID# 31364
C/0 PETER G WOOD Contact Telephone Number:

19 N MAIN ST (877) 829-5500

WILKES-BRRRE, PA 18711-0000
Accounting Period Ending:

Decembexr 31
Addendum Applies:
Ho

Dear Applicant:

Pased on information pupplied, and assuming your operatione will be ag
stated in your application for recognition of exemption, we have determined you
are exempt from Federal income tax undér section 501 (a) of the Internal
Revenue Code as an organization described in section 501{c) (3) .

We have further determined that, as indicated in your application, you
aré a private .foundation within the meaning of section 509{a} of the Coda. 1In
this letter we a¥e not determining whether you are an operating foundation ag

defined in section 4942(j) (3).

If your sources of support, or Your purposes, character, or method of
cperation change. pleage let us know so we can comeider the effect of the
change on your exXempt status and foundation status. In the case of an amend-
ment Lo youxr organizational document or bylaws, please send us a copy of the
amended document or bylaws. Algo, you should inform us of all changes in vouxr

‘name or address.

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes under the Federal
Insurance Contributiones aAct (social Eecurity taxes) on remuneration of $100
or more you pay to each of yonr employees during a calendar year. You are
not liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA) .
However, since YoU are a private foundation, you are subject to excise taxas
under chapter 42 of cthe Code. You also may be subject to other Federal excige
taxes. If you bave any questions about excise, employment, or othex Federal

taxes, please let us know.

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in secktion 170 of the
Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts teo you or for your ugas
are deductible foF Federal estate and gift tax purposes if they meet the
applicable provieions of sections 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Code.

Contributi?n deductione are allowable to donors only to the extent that
their contxibutions are gifts, with no consideration receilved. Ticket pur-
chases and simllar payments in conjunction with fundraising events may not

Letter 1078 (D0/ca)
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HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF

neceesarily ¢udlify as deductible conkributions, depending on the eircum-
stances. See Revenue Ruling §7-246, publiched in Cumulative Bulletin 1%67-2,
on page 104, which sets forth gquidelines regarding the deductibility, as chari-
table contributions, of payments made by taxpayers for admiseion to or ather
participation in fundraising activities for charity.

You are reduired to file Form 990-PF, Return of Private FPoundation or
Section 4947{a) (1} Trust Treated as a Private Foundation. Foxm 990-PF mugt be
filed by the 15th day of the fifth month after the end of your annual account -
ing period. A penalty of $20 a day is charged when a return is filed late,
unless there ise reasonable cause for the delay. However, the mascd qum penalty
charged cannot exceed $10,000 or 5 percent of your gross receilpts for the year,
whichever is 1es8s. For oxganizatioms with gross recelpts exceeding £1,000,000
in any year, the penalty is $100 per day per return, unless there ig reasonable
cause for the delay. The maximam penalty for an organization with gross
receipts exceeding $1,000,000 shall not exceed $50,000. This penalty wmay also
be charged if a xeturn is not complete, so please be sure your retuin is
complete before you file it.

You are mot required to file Federal income tax returns unleag you are
subject to the tax on unrelated businesa income under section 511 of the Code.
If you are subject to this tax, you must file an income tax return on Form
990-T, Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return. In this letter we
are not determining whether any of your present or proposed activities are
unrelated trade or business as defined in section 513 of the Code.

You are reguired to make certain returns available fox public inspection
for three yeard after the later of the due date of the return or the date the
return ie filed. The returns required to be made available for public
inspection are Form 950-PF, Return of Private Foundation or Section 4947 {a) (1}
Nonexempt Charitable Trust Treated as a Private Foundation, and Form 4720,
Return of Certain BExcise Taxes on Charities and Other Persons Undey Chapters 41
and 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. You are also required to make available
for public imspection your exemption application, any supporting documents, and
your exemption letter. Copies of these documents must be provided to any
individual upon written or in person request without charge other than
reasonable fees for copying and postage:. You may fulfill this requirement by
placing these documents on the Internet. Penalties may be imposed for: fallure
to comply with these requirements. Additional information is available in
Publication S57, Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, or You may call our
toll free numbeXx shown above.

You need an employer identification number even if you have ng employees.
If an employer identification number was not entered on your application, a
number will be 288igned to you and you will be advised of it. Pleape use that
number on all returns you file and in all correspendence with the Internal

Revenue Service.

This determination is based on evidence that your funds are dedicated
to the purposes listed in section 501 (c) {(3) of the Code. To assure your
continued exemption¢ you should maintain records to show that funds are

Letter 1078 {DO/CG)
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expended only for those purpoBes. . If you distribute funds to other
organizations, Yyour records should show vhether they are exempt under
gection S01{c) (3). In cases where the recipient orxganization is not exempt
under section 501(c) (3), there should be evidence that the funds will remain
dedicated to the required purposes and that they will be used for those
purposes by the recipient.

If distributions are made to individuals, case histories regarding the
recipients ghould be kept showing names, addresses, purposes of awards, waunner
of gelectiocn, relationship (if any) to members, officers, trustees or donors of
funds to you, 50 that any and all distributions made to individuals can be
substantiated upon reqguest by the Intermal Revenue Sexvice. (Revenue Ruling
5¢6-304, C.B. 15956-2, page 306.})

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this letter.

Because thie letter could help regolve any questions about your exempt
statue and foundation status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

HWe have sent a copy of this letter to your representative as indicated
in your power of attorney. :

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shown in the heading of this lettex.

Sincerely yours,
77l

Steven T. Miller
Director, Exempt Organizations

Letter 1076 (DO/CG)
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Attachment 12

HOSPITAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTHEASTERN
PENNSYLVANIA FOUNDATION

OFFICERS
2003

Officers:
Chairperson
John P. Moses, Esq.

President
Denise S. Cesare

Secretary
Edwin R. Goodlander, Esq.

Treasurer
J. Kenneth Suchoski

Assistant Treasurer
Robert L. Mueller
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. . Attachment 13

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE RECE|VED44
@ CORPORATION BUREAU
ROOM 206 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING 0CT 0 2 2002
P.O. BOX 8722 VICEP&ESIDENT
HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722 GENERAL COUNSEL
RECEIVED
SEP 3D 2007

CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANTA CARING EOUNDATION

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HAPPY TO SEND YOU YOUR FILED DOCUMENT .
PLEASE NOTE THE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH. THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HERE TO SERVE YOU AND WANTS
TO THANK YOU FOR DOING BUSINESS IN PENNSYLVANIA.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU,
PLEASE VISIT OUR WEB SITE LQCATED AT WWW._DOS.STATE. PA.US/CORPS OR
PLEASE CALL OUR MATN INFORMATION TELEPEONE NUMBER (717)787-1057. FOR
e ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING BUSINESS AND/OR UCC FILINGS, PLEASE
VISIT OUR ONMLINE "SEARCHABLE DATABASE" LOCATED ON OUR WEER SITE.

ENTITIES THAT ARE CHARITIES AND SOLICIT FUNDS SHOULD CONTACT THE
BUREAT OF CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS FOR REGILSTRATION REQUIREMENTS AT
DEPARTMENT OF STATE, BUREAUT OF CHARITABLE ORGANTIZATIONS, 207 NORTH

OFFICE BULLDING, HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17120 {717) 783-1720 OR
1-800-732-099% WITHIN PENNSYLVANTA.

ENTITY NUMBER: 2203400
MICROFILM NUMBER: 2002079

0168-0169

CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PA
D 19 N MAIN ST
WILKES-BARRE PA 18711

BCNEPA 00138
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PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
CORPORATION BUREAU

Statement of Change of Registered Office (15 PaC8.)
__ Domestic Business Corporation {§ 1507)

Entity Number ____ Foreign Business Corporation (§ 4144}
210_50[00 X_ Domestic Nonprofit Corporation (§ 5507)
Foreign Wonprofit Corporation (§ 6144)

Domestic Limited Partnership (§ 8506)
Document will be returned to the

Name name and address you cnfer to
Caring Foundalion of Northeastem Pennsyfvanla the left.
Addrace L —
19 North Main Street
City State _Ep Code
Wikes-Bare, PA 18711
Fee: $52 Filed in the Department of State on S@ 1 0 ZBDZ

Sec of the Commonwealm

In compliance with the requirements of the applicable provisions of 15 Pa.C.S. {relating to corporations and unincorporated
. associalions), the undersigned corporation or limited parinership, desiring to effect a change of registered office, hereby siates that:

I. The name js:
Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania

PADEPT,

SEP 1

2. The (a) address of its initial registered office in this Commonwealth or (b) name of its cormunercial registered
office provider and the county of venue is:

fa) Number and street Citv State Zin County
70 North Main Street, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711 Luzeme
{b) Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider County

clo:

‘ 3. Complete part (a} or (b):

(a) The address to which the registered office of the corporation er limiled partnership in this Commonwealth is
to be changed is:

19 North Main Street, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711 Luzerne

Number and street City Stale Zip County
{b) The registered office of the corporation or limited partmership shall be provided by:

clo:

Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider County
OF STATE

0 2002

BCNEPA 00189



2002079~ 169

. DSCE:.:IS-ISO'?MI 44/5507/6144/8506-2

4. Strike out if a limited parinership:

* Such change was authorized by Lhe Board of Direclors of the corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused
this Application for Registration to be signed by a duly
authorized officer thereof this

éf_day of j%ﬂ'f"”b"te H00 2

Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania

@u::of mi‘oZz’ Q Pchship

Signature

Vica-Prasident - Legal, General Counsel and Secretary
Title

BCNEPA 00190



-

i

mﬁ’liéroﬁl‘r‘n Number___ Filed witl{ the Departmen¥of State on

o 9671649 0CT 301996

230 Yoo e Tl

Secretary of the Commonwealih \D

STATEMENT OF CORRECTION

DSCB:15-138 {Rev 90}

Entity Number,

In compliance with the requirements of 15 Pa.C.S. § 138 {relating to statement of correction) the undersigned association
or other person, desiring to correct an inaccurate record of corporate or other action or correct defective or erroneous execution
of a document, hereby states that:

1. The name of the association or other person is:_Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvanja

2. The {a) address of this association’s current registered office in this Commonwealth or {b} rame of its commereial registered
office provider and the county of venue is {the Department is hereby authorized to correct the following information to
coniorm to the records of the Department}:

{a)_70 North Main Street Wilkes-Barre PA 18711 Luzerne
Number and Street - City State Zip County
{b} clo:
Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider . County

For an association represented by a commercial reglstered office provider, the county in {b) shall be deemed the county in which the
association is located for venue and official publication purposes.

. The statute by or under which it was incorporated or the preceding filing was made, in the case of a filing that does not
constitute a part of the articles of incorporation of a corporation, is: 15 Pa. C.S, § 5306

4. The inaccuracy or defect, which appears in Department of State form_DSCB: 15-6306 filed on December 30, 1992 and
recorded in Roll and Film Number et seq., is:

The statement that reads * 6. The corporation shall have no members.” is incorrect.

5. (Check one of the following):

X_The portion of the document requiring correction in corrected form is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and made
a part hereof.

The original document to which this statement relates shall be deemed reexecuted.
The original document to which this statement relates shall be deemed stricken from the records of the Department.

"IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, the undersigned association or other person has caused this statement to be signed by a duly

authorized officer thereof or otherwise in its name this ___ 28th day of _ OCTOBER ,19__96
ohe . Brittai
/ me}
PADEPT. OF STATE PADEPT.OFSTATE  BY* %j PAS M’ N

{Signature}

0CT 3 01936 NOV 12 1996 miTLe: _Vice President - Legal, General Counsel

& Secretary
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-_"!,":, _" A 9674- 1670 Exhibit A

statement 6. Of the original Articles of incorporation should read as follows:

'Strike out if inapplicable}: :Fhe-eer-pﬁra{-haﬁ-sh‘&H—hﬂve—ﬁe-membefs—
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N i DEC 30 109

.Qicroﬁlm Number, St T Filed with the Depanment of State on
o~ ~ NN
rmthu mber <) FC HMB0 : '/_‘\% I‘"L—Lﬁ/‘/(
. - . Secretary of the Commonwealh
O

ARVICLES OF INCORPORATION - DOMES'HC NONPROFIT. CORPORATION
DSCH:15-5306 (Rev 89)

In compliance with 1he requirements of 15 Pa. C.S. § 5306 (relating 1o artictes of incorporation), the undersigned, desiring
o incorporate a nonprofit corporation, hereby states \hat;

1. The name of the corporation is:___Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania

2 The (a) address of this corporation’s initial regmered office in this Commonweanh or {b) commercial registered office
provider and 1he county of venue is:

{a) _70 North Main Street Wilkes-Rarre PA . 18711 l uzerne
' Numbet and Strost City Staio Zip Courty
(o)

Name of Commorcial Registetad Ofiice Piovider County

For a corporation represenied by a commeicial regisiered office provider, the coummy in (b) shall be deemed the county in which the
corpotation is localed for venus ang officiatl publicalion purpases.

3. The corporation is incorporated under the Nonprofit Corporation Law of 1588 for the Iollowirig PUIPGSE OF pUrposes:

. See attached Exhibit A.

3. The corporalion does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit, incidental or otherwise.
5. (Stike out if inapplicable): The corporation is organized upon a E¥ddk/nonstock basis.
6. {Stike ou if inapplicable). The corporation shall have no members.

7. (Stuike out # inapplicable): mnnnammm«mmmxmmmmnxmmmm

4.4

RO R OO0 OO KOO XX R X XS XXX XX XXX XA X XA XX XX AXXXXRY XX
mmxmmmxmmmm hxxhnmmmptm DKM&MWRXWKWWHMRRW’XHEMX

3. (Shike out if inappbcable): These Articles of Incorporation may be amended in the manner at the time prescribed by statute.
and all rights conferred upon members herein are granted subject to 1his reservation.

9. The name(s) and address({es) of each incorporatoi(s) is (are):

Name{s) Address(es)
~ Blye Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania 70 North Main Street.
D Hilkes-Barre, PA 18711

o

M DUAR KEIM 1 MPANT PHIL AL Praa BCNEPA 00193
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EXHIBIT A

To operate exclusively for charitable, educational, and scientific purposes, for the benefit
of the economically disadvantaged or elderly members of the Northeastern Pennsylvania
community or elsewhere by providing support for programs designed to improve the quality,
awareness of, and availability of health care.

Said Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the cormresponding provision of any future United
States Internal Revenue Law).

No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributed to its members, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall
be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make
payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth above. No substantial part
of the activities of the Corporaton shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise
attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in
(including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any
candidate for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the Corporation shall not carry on
any other activities not permitted to be carried on: (a) by a corporation exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding
provision of any future United States Intemmal Revenue Law) or, (b) by a corporation,
contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or
making provision for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all of the
assets of the Corporation exclusively for the purpose of the Corporation in such manner, or to
such organization or organizations operated exclusively for charitable purposes as shall at the
time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal

Revenuve Law), as the Board of Directors shall determine.
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BYLAWS
OF
CARING FOUNDATION
OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

ARTICLE I
MEMBERS

1.1 Membership. The member of the Corporation shall be Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania.

1.2  Anppual Meeting. The annual meeting of the member of the Corporation shall be held
on the last Thursday of May at the registered office of the Corporation or such other time
and place as may be designated by the Board of Directors for the election of Directors
and such other business as may properly come before said meeting. .

1.3  Notice of Annual Meeting. Notice of time, place and purpose of the annual meeting
shall be sent to the member of the Corporation at least ten (10) days prior thereto.

1.4  Special Mectings. Special meetings of the member may be called at any time by the
Chairperson, the President or by written request of a majority of the Board of Directors
delivered to the Secretary of the Corporation.

o 1.5  Notice of Special Meetings. Notice of the time, place and purpose of special meetings
shall be sent by the Secretary of the Corporation to the member of the Corporation no
Iess than five (5) days prior thereto, Such meetings shall be held at such time and place
as may be designated in the notice of such meeting.

1.6 Powers. The powers of the member shall be to set the number and elect the members
of the Board of Directors and to amend these Bylaws,

ARTICLE H
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1 Powers. All powers of the Corporation, except those specifically reserved or granted to
the member of the Corporation by statute or by the Articles or these Bylaws, are hereby
granted to and vested in the Board of Directors including, without limitation of the
foregoing, the power to conduct and direct the business and affairs of the Corporation,
including the power to borrow money and purchase, sell, lease away or otherwise dispose
of real estate, and change the location of the registered office or principal place of
business.
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2.2  Qualifications. All Directors of the Corporation shall be natural persons between the
ages of eighteen (18) and seventy (70) vears, except that any Director shall complete any
full term during which such Director reaches the age of seventy (70) years.

2.3  Membership.

2. The Board of Directors shall consist of no less than three (3) nor more than nine (9)
Directors.

b. Members of the Board of Directors shall serve for one (1) year and until their
successors are duly chosen and qualified.

c. A vacancy in the Board of Directors may be filled for the balance of the unexpired
term by the Board.

d. A member of the Board who has completed nine (9) years of continuous service
shall be a Director Emeritus; such Director shall be entitled to autend meetings of
the Board of Directors, but shall not have a voie and shall not be counted in
ascertaining the presence of a quorum.

- e. Service on the Board of Directors shall be limited to nine (9} years, provided that
following an absence from the Board for one year, such member is again eligible
for nine (9) years of continuous service.

2.4  Repgular Meefings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the last
Thursday of every quarter at the office of the Corporation or at such other time and place
as the Chairperson, the President or the Board of Directors may determine from time to
time.

2.5  Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the
Chairperson, the President, or on the written request of any three members of the Board,
at such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time select, or as may be
designated in the notice calling the meeting. .

2.6 Notice of Meetings. The notice of any meeting shall be in writing and shall be mailed
or delivered in person by or under the direction of the Secretary of the Corporation to
every Director at least three (3) days before a special meeting and at least seven (7) days
before a regular meeting.

2.7 - Waiver of Notice. Notice of any meeting of the Board of Directors need not be given
to any Director if waived by the Director in writing or if the Director is present at the
- meeting, except where the Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of
objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not lawfully called

or convened.
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2.8  Adjoumnment. When a meeting is adjourned, it shall not be necessary to give any notice
of the adjourned meeting or the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting other
than by announcement at the meeting at which such adjournment is taken.

2.9 Quorum. One more than one-half of the Directers in office shall be necessary to
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the acis of a majority of the
Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board
of Direclors.

2.10 Resignation. Any Director may resign from the Board at any time, such resignation to
be made in wriling and to take effect upon its acceptance by the Board of Directors.

2.11 Compensation. No member of the Board of Directors nor the President, nor any Vice
President, nor the Secretary, nor the Treasurer shall receive any salary when acting in
the capacity of Director. Such offices may be held by persons who are employees of the
Corporation, and Directors and Officers of the Corporation may receive compensation
from the Corporation for work done for the Corporation in a capacity other than that of
a Director.

2.12 articipation in Meelings b onference Telephone. Any member of the Board of
‘Directors, including the entire Board of Diréctors, may participate in any meeting of the
Board of Directors or any commitiee of the Board of Directors (provided such Director
is otherwise entitled to participate), be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum
thereof and exercise all rights and privileges o which the Director might be entitled were
such Director personally in attendance, including the right to vote, by means of
conference telephone or other similar communications equipment by means of which all
persons at the meeting can hear each other.

2.13  Action of Board of Directors by Consent. Any action which may be taken at a meeting
of the Directors, or of the members of any committee of the Board of Directors, may be

taken without 2 meeting if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so
taken, shall be signed by ail of the Directors, or the members of the commiittee, as the
case may be, and shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation. Such action shall
be deemed filed with the Secretary regardless of whether the Secretary or some other
authorized person has actual possession of the minute book. Written consents by all of
the Directors executed pursuant to this Section 2.13 may be executed in any number of
counterparts and shall be deemed effective as of the date set forth therein.

2.14 Manifestation of Dissent. A Director of the Corporation who is present at a meeting of
the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be
presumed to have assented to the action taken unless the Director's dissent shall be
entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless the Director shall file a written dissent
to such action with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before adjournment
thereof, or shall forward such dissent by registered or certified mail to the Secretary of
the Corporation immediately after adjournment of the meeting. Such right of dissent
shall not be afforded to a Director who voted in favor of such action.
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ARTICLE HI
OFFICERS

Executive Qfficers. The Officers of the Corporation shall be elected by the Board of
Directors and shall include a Chairperson of the Board, a President, one or more Vice
Presidents, a Treasurer, a Secretary, and such other officers as may be elected in
accordance with the provisions of this Article. Vacancies may be filled or new offices
created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices
may be held by the same persons except the otfices of Presidenit and Secretary. The
Office of Treasurer may be held by a Bank or Trust Company. -

a. (Chairperson. The Chairperson of the Board shall have general supervision over the
carrying out of the policies adopted or approved by the Board of Directors and shall
act as liaison between the Board and the other Officers and members of the
Corporation; shall preside at all meetings of the members of the Corporation, Board
of Directors and Executive Committee; and exercise such other powers and perform
such other duties as may be assigned to the office by the Board of Directors. The
Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of all committees.

b. President. The President shall have general and active management of the business
of the Corporation and be responsible for carrying into effect the policies adopted
or approved by the Board of Directors. The President may sign on behalf of the
Corporation any documents or instruments which the Board of Directors or the

' Execuntive Commitiee has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the
signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors
or by these Bylaws to some other Officer or agent of the Corporation, or shall be
required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general, the President
shall perform all duties incident to the Office of President in accordance with the
provisions of this Article, and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed
by the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee from time to time.

¢. Vice Presidents. Each Vice President shall perform such duties as from time to
time may be assigned by the President, the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee. In the event of the absence of the President, the President shalt
designate the Vice President who shall perform the duties of the President in the
President’s absence. In the event of the President’s inability, incapacity, or refusat
to act, the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors shall designate the Vice
* President who shall perform the duties of the President. The Vice President who
is so designated by the President, the Executive Commiliee, or the Board of
Directors shall perform the duties of the President and when so acting shall have all

the powers of and be subject to the restrictions upon the President.
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d. TIreasurer. The Treasurer shall have general charge and custody of and be
responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation and make such reports of
its receipts and disbursements in such form and manner as the Board of Directors
may direct. The Treasurer shall receive and give receipts for monies due and
payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever and deposit such monies in
the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as
shall be selecied by the Board of Directors or the Executive Commitlee. The
Treasurer shall keep the accounts of the Corporation and whenever and as required
by the President, the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee, shall render
financial statements of the Corporation and, under the direction of the Board of
Directors, disburse the funds thereof: and in general, the Treasurer shall perform
all the duties incident to the Office of Treasurer and such other duties as may from
time to time be assigned by the President, the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee.

e. Secretary. The Secretary shall have charge of all books and records of the
Corporation. including the Corporate Seal. The Secretary shall keep accurate
minutes of all meetings of the Members of the Corporation, the Board of Directors
and the Executive Committee. The Secretary shail notify each member of the
Corporation, of the Board of Directors, and of the Executive Commiitee of all
regular and special meetings, giving reasonable written notice of the same and shall
perform such additional duties as may be directed by the President, the Board of
Directors or the Executive Committee.

3.2 Other Officers. The Board of Directors may appoint other officers and agents of the
Corporation who shall hold their offices subject to the pleasure of the Boaid.

3.3 Election and Term of Office. The Executive Officers of the Corporation shall be elected
annually by the Board of Directors after each annual meeling of the members of the
Corporation. If election of Executive Officers shall not be held at such meeting, such
election shall be held as soon as convenient. Each Executive Officer shall hold office
for one year and uatil a successor is elected.

3.4  Resipnation. Any Officer may resign from office at any time, such resignation to be
made in writing and to take effect upon its acceptance by the Board of Directors.

3.5 Removal. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3.3, any Officer or agent elected
ar appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the affirmative vote of at
Jeast two-thirds (2/3) of the members present at a meeting of the Board of Directors
whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby,
but such removal shall be without prejudice to the conract rights, if any, of the persons
so removed.

3.6  Bond. The Board of Directors may require any Officer to give bond and security in such
sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.
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ARTICLE IV

CONTRACTS. LOANS, CHECKS. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

4,1 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any Officer or Officers. agent or
agents, o enter into any contract or execute and deliver any subscription agreement or
-nstrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation. and such authority may be
general or contined to specific instances.

42 Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of
indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board
of Directors.

4.3  Checks. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such
Officer or Officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from
time to time be determined by a resolution of the Board of Directors.

- 4.4 Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from
lime to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks. trust companies. or other
depositories as the Board of Directors may seiecl.

ARTICLE V
NOTICE OF MEETINGS

5.1 Written Notice. Whenever written notice is required to be given to any person under the
provision of any statutes or by these Bylaws, it may be given to such person either by
sending a copy through the mail or by telegram, charges prepaid, or by facsimile, to the
address or facsimile number appearing on the books of the Corporation or supplied by
such person to the Corporation for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the
place, day, and hour of the meeting and in case of a special meeting, the general nature
of the business to be wansacted.

59  Written Waiver of Notice. Whenever any written notice is required, a waiver thereof
in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after
the time stated in these Bylaws, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.
Except in the case of a special meeting, neither the business to be transacted nor the
purpose of the meeting need be specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting.

5.3 Waiverof Notice by Attendance. Atlendance of a person at any meeting shall constitute
a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when a person attends a meeting for the
eXpress purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting was

not fawfully called or convened. ) ,
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ARTICLE VI
@ INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS

- 6.1 Indemnification.

a. The Corporation shall indemnify Directors or Officers of the Corporation against
expenses (including legal expenses), judgments. fines and amounts paid in
settlement, actually and reasonably incurred by such person, to the fullest extent
now or hereafter permitted by law in connection with any threatened, pending or
completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative, brought or threatened to be brought against such person, including
actions or suits by or in the right of the Corporation, by reason of the fact that such
person is or was a Director or Officer of the Corporation, or any of its subsidiaries,
or acted as a Director or Officer or in any olher capacity on behalf of the
Corporation, or any of its subsidiaries, or is or was serving at the request of the

- Corporation as a Director, Officer, emplovee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

b. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, similarly indemnify any person other
than a Director or Officer of the Corporation to the fullest extent now or hereafter
permitted by law for liabilities incurred by such person in connection with services
rendered for or at the request of the Corporation, or any of its subsidiaries.

c. The provisions of this Section shall be applicable to all actions, suits or proceedings
e commenced after its adoption, whether such arise out of acts or oniissions which
occured as to a person who has ceased to be Director or Officer or to render
services for or at the request of the Corporation and shall inure to the benefit of the
heirs, executors and administrators of such person. The rights of indemnification
provided for herein shall not be deemed to be the exclusive rights to which any
Director, Officer, employee or other agent of the Corporation may be entitled.

6.2  Advances. The Corporation may pay the expenses incurred by any person entitled to be
indemnified by the Corporation in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding
in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt and
undertaking by or on behalf of such person, to repay such amount unless it shall
ultimately be determined that such person is eatitled to be indemnified by the Corporation
as authorized by law. -

6.3  Inmsurance., The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any
person who is or was a Director, Officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or who
is or was serving in any capacity in any other corporation or organization at the request
of the Corporation against any liability asserted against such person or incurred by such
person in any such capacity or arising out of such person’s status as such, whether or not
the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability

E under law,
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CARING FOUNDATION OF
NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

Persons authorized to sign checks drawn on the corporation’s checking account
with PINC Bank:

I Ward -

. 5. Dudzik—

. R. Brittain, Jr. -~
. G. Rollman

. I. Saunders ~

. E. Engel —

. K. Williams

TR T A

O
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ARTICLE VIT
CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

7.1 Disclosure of Conflict of Interests. Directors, Officers and employees of the Corporation
shall be held to 2 strict rule of honesty and fair dealing between themselves and the
Corporation, and shail fully disclose all the facts of a possible contlict of interests to the
President and the Board of Directors,

7.2 Inquiry by Secretary. It shall be the duty of the Secretary of the Corporation, at least
annually, 1o inquire of and receive writien response from each Director, Officer,
management personnel and such other employees as the Board of Directors shall
designate as to possible conflicts of interests, and shall report the results of such inquiry
to the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE vIIT

SEAL

Description. The seal of the Corporation shall be circular in form with the name of the
Corporation in the circumference and the words and figures “Incorporated - 1992 in the center.

ARTICLE TX
AMENDMENTS

Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended at any annual meeting of the members or
at any special meeting of the members called for that purpose by a majority vote of the members
present at such meeting, provided that a2 quorum is present and that notice of the proposed
amendments has been given at least fifteen days before the meeting; or at any meeting of the
Board of Directors called for that purpose by the affirmative vote of at least two thirds (2/3) of
the members of the Board present at such meeting, provided that a quorum is present and that
notice of the proposed amendments has been given at least fifteen (15) days before the meeting
to the members of the Board of Directors. It is recommended that these Bylaws be reviewed
at least every three (3) years. :
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Attachment 15

Caring Foundation of
Northeastern Pennsylvania

Financial Statements for the Years Ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 (Unaudited)
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CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page(s)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002 (UNAUDITED):
Statements of Financial Position _ 1
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 2
Statements of Cash Flows 3
Notes to Financial Statements 4-5
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CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (UNAUDITED)

DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash

Due from the Children’s Health Insurance Program

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements.

2002

REDAC Ty,
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CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (UNAUDITED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Commeonwealth premiums 3
Subscriber premiums
Contributed services
Interest income

Total revenues, pains and other support
EXPENSES AND LOSSES:
Health care costs
Program and supporting services

Total expenses and losses

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED,
END OF YEAR h)

-

See notes to financial statements.
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CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Increase in nnrestricted net assets
Adjustment to reconcile increase in unrestricted net

assets to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Change in assets and liabilities:
Due from the Children’s Health Insurance Program
Due to affiliates :
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CAGSH, END OF YEAR

See notes to financial statements.

2003

2002

BCNEPA 00209



CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations - Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania (the “Foundation™) is a not-for-
profit organization formed to administer the Children’s Health Insurance Program of Pennsylvania (the
“Program”).

The Foundation was formed by its two equal members, Hospital Service Association of Northeastern
Pennsylvania (d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania) (“Blue Cross™) and Highmark Blue .
Shield (“Blue Shield”). The Foundation receives funding from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the
“Commonwealth”) to administer the program in the thirteen county region of northeastern and north
central Pennsylvania to promote primary health care for the children of those unemployed or marginally
employed families who are not eligible to participate in publicly funded programs and are unable to
afford private health insurance. The program includes preventative coverage such as doctor’s office
visits; well-child care and immunizations; emergency medical and accident care: diagnostic and
laboratory tests; prescription drugs; preventive, routine and emergency dental, vision and hearing care;
and inpatient hospitalization.

Financial Statement Presentation - The Foundation reports information regarding its financial position
and aclivities with respect to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assels, temporarily restricted net
assets and permanently restricted net assets. The Foundation had no temporarily or permanently
restricted nef assets at December 31, 2003 or 2002.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements - In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This standard supercedes the accounting guidance
provided by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit activities
when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. The

implementation of SFA.S No. 146 did not have a material effect on the Foundation’s financial
statements.
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CARING FOUNDATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

2. OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

REDACTRp

3. INCOME TAX STATUS

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in section 501(c)(3) of the Intemnal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal income taxes.

4. CREDIT RISK

The entire balance of the amount due from the Children’s Health Insurance Program represents a
receivable from the Commeonwealth of Pennsylvania,

5. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Foundation’s operations are concentratéd in the northeasterm and north central regions of
Pennsylvania. Accordingly, regional economic issues are important.

* % k ¥ % ¥
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Attachment 16

" Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

Washington, DC 20224

Persan to Conlact:

pCaring Foundation of Northeastern
" Pennsylvania

70 North Main Street

Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711

Telephone Number:

Reter Reply to: CP:E:EQ0:T:2

Date: SEP | 9 t0gs

Enmployer Identification Number: 23-2718253
Key District: Baltimore
Accounting Pericd Ending: December 31
Foundation Status Classification: 5S09(a) (1) and 170(b) (1) (A) (vi)
. ¥ , Form 920 Reguired: VYes : )

Dear Applitant:

Based on the information supplied, and assuming your
operations will be as stated in your application for recognition
-of exemption, we have determined you are exempt from federal
income tax under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as
o an organization described in section S01(c) (3).

We have further determined that you are not a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code,
because you are an organization described in the section(s)
indicated abkove.

If your sources of support, or your purpeses, character, or
method of operation change, please let your key district know so
that office can consider the effect of the change an your exempt
status. In the case bf an amendment to your organizational -
document or bylaws, please send a copy of the amended document or

"~bylaws to your key district. Also, you Should inform your key
district office of all changes in your name or address.

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes under the
Federal Insurance Contributions Act (social security taxes) on
remeneration of 5100 or more you pay to each of your cenpleyeesn
during a calendar year. You are not liable for the tax imposed
under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act.

Since you are not a private foundation, you are not subject
to the excise taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. However, you
are not automatically exempt from other federal excise taxes. If
you have any questions about excise, employment, or other federal

e taxes, please contact your key district office.

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in
‘section 170 of the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers,

BCNEPA 00212



-2 -

caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania

or gifts to you or for your use are deductible for federal estate
and gift tax purposes if they meet the applicable provisions of
Code seqtions 2055, 2106, and 2522.

pDonors (including private foundatilons) may rely on this
ruling unless the Internal Revenue Service publishes notice +to
the contrary. However, if you lose your 509(a) status as
indicated above, donors (other than private foundations) may not
rely on the classificatlon indicated above if they were in part
responsible for, or were aware of, the act that resulted in your
loss of such status, or they acquired knowledge that the Internal
Revenue service had given notice that you would bhe removed from
that classificationl- Private foundations may rely on the
classificatipn as long as you were not directly or indirectly
controlled by them or by disqualified persons with respect to
them. However, private foundations may not rely on the
classification inditated aliove if they acquired knowledge that
the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that you would be
removed from that classification.

contribution @eductions are allowable to donors only to the
extent that their contributions are gifts, with no consideration
recelved. Ticket piirchases and similar payments in conjunction
with fund-railsing events may not necessarily gualify as fully
deductible contribuotions, depending on the circumstances. If
your organization conducts fund-raising events such as benefit
dinners, shows, membership drives, etc., where something of value
is received in retmrn for payments, you are required to provide a
wrltten disclosure istatement informing the donor of the fair
market value of the specific items or services being provided.
To do this you should, in advance of the event, determine the
fair market value of the beneflt received and state it in your

_fund-raising materials such as solicitations, tickets, and

receipts in such a gray that the donor can determine how much is
deductible and howmuch is not. Your disclosure statement should
be made, at the latest, at the time payment is received. Subject
to certain exceptioms, your disclosure responsikility applies to
any fund-raising ci¥cumstance where each complete payment,
including the contyibution portion, exceeds $75. In addition,
donors must have wmitten substantiation from the charity for any
charitable contribation of $250 or more. For further detalils
regarding these subStantiation and disclosure requirements, see
the enclosed copy of Publication 1771. For additlonal guidance
in this area, see Publication 1391, Deductibility of Payments
Made to Organizatioms Conducting Fund-Raising Events, which is
available at many IRS offices or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM
(1—800-829-3676). K .
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_Caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania

tn the heading of this letter we have indicated whether you
must file Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax. If Yes is indicated, you are required to file Form 990 only
if your gross receipts each year are normally more than $25,000.
If your gross receipts each year are not normally more than
$25,000, we ask that you establish that you are not required to
file Form 590 by completing Part I of that Form for your first
year. . Thereafter, you will not be required to file a return
until your gross receipts exceed the $25,000 minimum. For
guidance in determining if your gross receipts are "normally% not
more than the $25,000 limit, see the instructions for the Form
990, If a return is required, it must be filed by the 15th day
of the fifth month after the end of your annual accounting
period. A penalty of $10 a day is charged when a return is filed
late, unless there is reasonable cause for the delay. The
maximum penalty charged cannot exceed $5,000 or 5 percent of your
gross recelpts for the year, whichever is less. This penalty may
also be charged if a return is not complete, eo please be sure
your return is complete before you file it.

- _ You are required to make your annual return available for

‘ public inspection for three years after the return is due. You
are also required to make available a copy of your exemption
application, any supporting documents, and this exemption letter.
Failure to make these documents available for public inspectlon
may subject you to a penalty of 810 per day for each day there is
a failure to comply (up to a maximum of $5,000 in the case of an
annual return). See Intermal Revenue Service Notice 88-120,
1988-2 C.B. 454, for additional information.

you are not required to file federal income tax returns
unless you are subject to the tax on unrelated business income
_under section 511 of the Code. If you are subject to this tax,
you must file an income tax return on Form 990-T, Exempt
organization Business Income Tax Return. In this letter we are
. not determining whether any of your present or proposed :
- agtivities are unrelated trade or business as defined in section
B 513 of the Code.

In thies letter, we have not determined the effect on your
tax~exempt status of financing your activities with the proceeds
of tax-exempt bonds since you have not indicated that you intend
to use such methods now or in the future.

. You need an employer identification number even if you have

no employees. Please use that number on all returns you file and
‘EB in all correspondence with the Internal Revenue Service.
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caring Foundation of Northeastern Pennsylvania

We are informing your key district office of this ruling.
Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your
exempt status and foundation status, you should keep it in your
permanent records.

If you have any immediate questions about this ruling,
please contact the person whose name and telephone number are
shown in the heading of this letter. For other matters,
including gquestions concerning reporting requirements, please
contact your key district office.

. Sincerely,

= f‘a,....( B Loee
aanne 5. Gessay

chief, Exempt Organizations
Pechnical Branch 2

Enclosure:
. Pub. 1771
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Attachment 17

CARING FOUNPATION OF NORTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICERS
2002

Officers:
Chairperson, President and Chief Executive Officer
Denise S. Cesare

Vice President
Barbara Dubs

Vice President ~Finance, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
J. Kenneth Suchoski

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Edwin R. Goodlander, Esgq.
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Attachment 18

Blue Ribbon Foundation and Caring Foundation Offlcer Cross-reference to parent and its subslidlarles

BCNEPA 00217
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Attachment 19

March 22, 2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“"BCNEPA™)
Description of Social Mission Activity
re: January 5 letter, page 2, paragraph {c)

BCNEPA is a Pennsylvania nonprofit corporation, operating as a non-profit hospital plan
corporation under a Certificate of Authority granted by the Department. BCNEPA. complies
with the legal obligations imposed on non-profit corporations under Pennsylvania law. In
addition, BCNEPA pursues its mission of “Making Better Health Easier.” This mission
focuses on the customer and provides for healthy cutcomes, access to medical care, and
service excellence at the most affordable premium cost. It is this mission that is described in
this Attachment 19.!

As previously disclosed to the Department through testimony, BCNEPA has demonstrated
this commiitment to the customer and its mission through various activities that reflect
BCNEPA s role as a non-profit, community focused organization. In many cases, the
activities take the form of subsidies that directly benefit consumers of BCNEPA’s products
and, more often than not, are unlike the activities of the for-profit, public commercial insurers.
These include: .

Reserve Appreciation Credit: During the late 1990’s, the rapid growth in the stock market had
a favorable impact on BCNEPA's investment portfolio, creating growth in unrealized gains
and surplus. During this period, surplus levels increased approximately $200 million which
had a dramatic effect of strengthening BCNEPA’s balance sheet and overall financial position.
Prior to public or regulatory attention to the Blues® surplus levels, BCNEPA management and
the Board of Directors elected to reduce the pricing of insured and self-funded business in
recognition of the accelerated growth of the equity holdings through the introduction of a
“reserve appreciation credit.” This credit was applied to the pricing beginning in 2001
utilizing pricing flexibility provided through Act 159. The collective reserve appreciation
credits approximated , Tespectively.

Surplus Funded Initiatives: To maintain the ability to operate as a viable insurance entity,
BCNEPA is required to invest in information technology capabilities, to comply with new
state and federal mandates (i.e., HIPAA), and is subject to one-time, extraordinary charges.
Management and the Board of Directors evaluate the impact these investments and expenses
may have on insurance rates and frequently elect to fund the projects through application of
surplus, rather than insurance rates. These initiatives are referred to as “surplus funded
initiatives.” In 2003 and 2002, BCNEPA and FPH collectively incurred expenses of

! “Social mission™ is not defined in the Hospital Plan Corporations Act (40 P.S. §6101 et seq.) or in

the Pennsylvania Nonprofit Corporation Law of 1988, as amended, 15 PA.C.S. §5301 et seq. Furthermore,
the Department did not define “social mission” in the January 5 Letter or the Bulletin Notice.
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REDACTED Attachment 19

millionand. million, respectively, that were not built into the administrative expense
component of our insurance rates.

Investment Income Credit: BCNEPA and its insurance subsidiaries earn interest and dividend
income on their investment portfolios. One hundred percent of the net interest and dividend

_income earned by the companies is used to reduce the rates charged to both insured and self-
funded customers through an investment income credit. For-profit, public insurers typically
allow investment income to drop directly to the bottom line. BCNEPA does not. Customers
get the direct benefit of this investment income subsidy. The collective investment income
credits applied were § and. .in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Subsidized Products: BCNEPA’s community focus as a non-profit organization serves the
non-group, individual market by offering health insurance at subsidized rates. Benefactors to
these subsidies are enrollees in the Medicare supplemental, non-group indemnity, and non-
group major medical products. The “group subsidy” (amounts charged to group customers in
lieu of a premium tax charge) is a distinct component of the group insured rates that enables
BCNEPA to provide reduced rates to the non-group market. The result is premium rates for
the non-group market that are significantly less than the actual cost of medical care services
and the administrative expense to service the products. The group subsidy provided rate
reductions totaling 3 in2003 and §. .in 2002. In addition, the administrative
expense component of the non-group rates is lower than actual costs, resulting in an
“administrative expense subsidy” by BCNEPA. The subsidy reduced premium rates by
approximately $ .in 2003 and another § in 2002.

Blue Ribbon Foundation: The Biue Ribbon Foundation was formed in 2001 as a subsidiary of
BCNEPA. Iits purpose is to serve as a catalyst for change by funding innovative programs
targeted at improving the overall health and wellness of the communities BCNEPA serves.
Healthier communities raise the quality of life and provide for more affordable healthcare in
the long run, both principle focus areas in BCNEPA’s mission. The foundation was funded
with contributions totaling $8.5 million over the past two years and has awarded grants to
qualifying, tax-exempt organizations in the amount of $1.5 million during this time period.

Caring Foundation: BCNEPA administers the Children’s Health Insurance Program of
Pennsylvania in its thirteen county service area, providing health care benefits to the children
of needy families. BCNEPA contributes program, support, and ouireach services to the
Caring Foundation. The value of these services was approximately $0.3 million annually for
2003 and 2002.

Premium Tax Forgiveness: As part of its enabling legislation, BCNEPA, as a non-profit

hospital plan corporation, is not obligated to pay premium tax assessments within the

Commonwealth. In retum, BCNEPA strives to provide health care coverage at the most

affordable price to as many individuals as possible in the thirteen counties of northeastern and

north cenfral Pennsylvania. Premium tax savings are passed directly to non-group customers

through lower premium rates. Premium tax savings for non-group customers amounted to
1and § in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Community and other programs: BCNEPA. sponsors numerous community programs,
including the Captain Kid Program, which is presented to first- and second-grade
students, featuring educational modules on nutrition, safety, and personal hygiene, and
illustrating the importance of healthy eating habits, fitness, safety and an overall healthy
way of living for good health today and for the future. BCNEPA also sponsors the

_Scoring Goals for Health program, which focuses on middle school-aged children, and
heightens awareness of healthy attitudes and habits among young children, instill values
for physical fitness, and promotes dedication and sportsmanship, all to improve the
quality of life in northeastern and north central Pennsylvania

BCNEPA also sponsors a company-wide volunteer program known as the "Caring
Corps," which encourages employees to make a difference in their communities by
becoming spirited participants in volunteer service. All employees are allowed 15 hours
of paid leave per year to support non-profit charitable organizations focused on health
and human services, families, children and education. For 2002 and 2003, the wages and
benefits attributable to volunteer service approximated $72 thousand.
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REDACTED Attachment 20

March 22, 2004 Letter to
Pennsylvania Insurance Department
from Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania (“BCNEPA™)
Role of For-profit Subsidiaries
re: January 5 letter, page 2, paragraph (e)

BCNEPA is the ultimate parent of several for-profit, wholly-owned 'subsidiaries: First Priority
Life Insurance Company (FPLIC), Universal Managed Care, Inc. (UMC), Erin Group
Administrators, Inc. (EGA), Eastern Physicians Group, PC (EPGPC), Universal Managed
Care Holding Company, Inc. (UMCHC) and Eastern American Casualty Insurance Company
(EACIC), a general business corporation.

Active for-profit subsidiares

FPLIC does not write any insurance business or have any operations at the present time but is
. the statutory vebicle through which BCNEPA intends to deliver, among other things, .

. FPLIC’s for-profit status
provldes a mechanism by which BCNEPA can seek a retum of capital to assist the non-profit
parent in meeting its social and operational goals. As business volumes increase, BCNEPA
will contribute sufficient paid-in-capital to ensure that financial strength and solvency is
always assured. Should future business volumes level out or decline due to shifting health
insurance product designs or consumer preferences, excess capital can be transferred back to
BCNEPA  either through dividends or return of capital.

UMC was formed in the mid 1980’s to initially provide, at an additional cost, utilization
review services for those companies who purchased insurance from BCNEPA. This initial
function ceased in 2002. Now, UMC is the legal entity used by BCNEPA . )

. . The strategy is part of BCNEPA’s!
tactivities that are focused on health-related initiatives that provide direct
‘support of BCNEPA’s mission of focusing on healthier medical outcomes and making
healthcare more affordable. In April 2003, UMC acquired Erin Group Administrators, Inc.
(EGA), a third-party benefits administrator in Lancaster, Pennsylvania. ~
. As a for-profit, UMC provides the
opportunity to return capital to BCNEPA to meet BCNEPA's social and operational goals.

Inactive for-profit subsidiaries

EPGPC, UMCHC and EACIC are inactive, for-profit subsidiaries that no longer serve a
business purpose and are being dissolved. -
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B].U.BCI'O 58 19 North Main Street, Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711
. Information: 570.200.4300
of Northeastern Pennsylvania

An Independent Licensee of the Blue Gross and Blue Shield Association
®Feglstered Mark of the Blua Cross and Blue Shield Association

May 17, 2004

Sandra L. Ykema
Depariment Counsel
Insurance Department
1341 Strawberry Square
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Re: May 7, 2004 Inquiries Regarding March 22 Submission

Dear Ms. Ykema:

.'5_1.\_1:-':‘—‘-’

Hospilal Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania, d/b/a Blue Cross of Northeastern
Pennsylvania ("BCNEPA"} is in receipt of your May 7, 2004 letter {“May 7 Letter”), wherein you
posed several inquiries regarding informalion provided by BCNEPA 1o the Insurance
Department ("Depariment”) under cover letler daled March 22, 2004 (“March 22 Submission”).
This letler is in response to the May 7 Letter.

First, please be advised that First Priority Life Insurance Company has not yet begun
operations. See lhe second paragraph of Attachment 20 to the March 22 Submission. See
also footnote 1 in ltem A of lhe materials BCNEPA provided to the Department under cover
tetter dated April 15, 2004 (“April 15 Submission™).

Second, see attached exhibit A for BCNEPA's comments pertaining o accident and health

unearned premiums. Please note that BCNEPA did not post uneamed premiums to the 2003

stalutory financial slatements. Premiums received prior to (he effective date of coverage were

: recorded as “Premiums received in advance” and posted to page 3 of the 2003 stalulory
. financial statements.

L5

# The May 7 Letter also requested additional informalion relating to the independent acluarial
review and cerlificalion provided in the March 22 Submission. Specifically, the May 7 Letter
requesled that BCNEPA provide a discussion of selection or derivation for the completion
factors, See attached exhibit B, prepared by BCNEPA's independent actuaries,
PriceWaterhouseCoopers, conceming the methodology and approach utilized to arrive at the
selected completion faclors.

Per your request, this response is being provided to you in electronic format via an e-mail
addressed lo your allenlion,

Please be advised that BCNEPA asserls confidentiality proteclion for this lelter and exhibits
{both the “hard” and electronic copies} based upon the Commonwealth Court's Order daled
March 23, 2004 in Capital Blue Cross v. Koken, holding that “a preliminary injunction is granled
to the exlenl that aff plans submilted will be kept confidential until further order of court”
[emphasis added). Further, BCNEPA asserls confidentiality protection for the eleclronic version -

i
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of the March 22 Submission for 1he reasons staled therein, and for the enlirely of the March 22
Submission based upon the Cemmonweallh Courl’s March 23 Order, referenced above.

Finally, please note lhal BCNEPA continues 1o asser all of issues and rights raised in the March
22 and April 15 Submissions, including but nol limiled to lhe Commissioner's and the
Depariment’s lack of authority. BCNEPA reserves all of ils righls 1o contest or challenge lhe
issuance of the January 17, 2004 Bullelin Notice and all matters arising thereunder or relaled
therelo, or under the Deparlment January 5, 2004 letter io BCNEPA.

Sincerely,

e

William C. Reed
Executive Vice President & Chiel Operaling Officer

Allachment(s)

BCNEPA 00223



Response to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department’s
May 7, 2004- Request for Information from
y: Blue Cross of Northeastern Pennsylvania

H

“Premuiums Recetved in Advance”

Exhibit A

Neither Hospital Service Association of Northeastern Pennsylvania d/b/a Blue Cross of
Northeastern Pennsylvania (BCNEPA) nor HMO of Northeastern Pennsylvania d/b/a
First Prionty Health (FPH) has posted any unearned premiums to its statutory 2003
financial statements. Premium payments received in advance of the due date are
reflected as “Premiums received in advance” in accordance with Statement of Statutory

Accounting Principle No. 54, Individual and Group Accident and Health Contracts,
paragraph 6, which states: '

“Advance premiums are those premiums that have been received by the
reporting entity prior to or on the valuation date but which are due afler the
valuation dates. The total amount of such advance premiums is reported as a

liability in the statutory financial statements and is not considered premium
income until due.”

BCNEPA posted $12,790,330 in premiums received in advance on line § of the
Liabilities, Capital and Surplus schedule in its 2003 annual statement. Premium received
in advance were reviewed by PriceWaterhouseCooper’s (PwC) under its agreed-upon
procedures engagement with BCNEPA. PwC’s report regarding these balances is
addressed in the March 22 submission under electronic attachment 5.2, paragraph 3. FPH
posted $4,849,296 in premiums received in advance on line 8 of the Liabilities, Capital
and Surplus schedule in its 2003 annual statement. PwC’s report regarding these balances
is addressed in the March 22 submission under electronic attachment 5.5, paragraph 3.
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